




p ial ting 

on the ud t 

- 1-1 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

98th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting on the Budget of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City 
Hall, Friday, June 21, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams. 
Members Absent: Miller and Woodward. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-276 Excuse Councilperson Gloria Miller and Don Woodward for personal reasons. 
Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Councilwoman Miller arrived at 3 :04 p.m. 

19-277 
Taylor-Burks. 

Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Reports 

1. Status reports requested by the City Council. (The City Council requested the following 
reports during the June 18, 2019 City Council Meeting and at various other budget meetings.) 

a. Jaycee Park Memo and Contract 
b. Where are the crossing guards located? 
c. Mowing Memo (Grass cutting is listed in several parts of the Budget. (The report should 

detail and explain all of the mowing that is done by the City.) 
d. Breakdown of City Events. (What are the various items that $22,500 in this line item cover?) 
e. What is 226-528-816-000 Services-Contracted Construction for $500,000? 
f. Cable Report (status of Capital Outlays) 

1 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

g. Wade Trim Contract Report. (What is the $29,500/$30,000 in budget? 
h. Organization Chart listing all of the City departments and the various positions in each 

department. 

Discussion 

2. City Council Proposed Changes to the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget. (The City Council 
made the following amendments to the proposed budget for 2019-2020 at the June 18, 2019 City 

19-278 
Pietila. 

Council Meeting.) · 

a. Remove death and birth certificate from the schedule of fees. 
b. Add to the Fee Schedule non-refundable fees for tax incentives. (see attached list of fees) 
c. Remove the Community Development Deputy Director position. 
d. Remove the Community Service Rep position from Community Development. 
e. Reclassify the Purchasing Specialist Rep position as the Purchasing Agent to be in 

compliance with the Charter. 
f. Reduce Contractual Temp to $10,000 in Mayor's Office budget. 
g. Change Mayor Projects to OU Initiative in Mayor's Office budget. 

Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Abstain: Waterman and Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

19-279 Motion to limit debate to 2 minutes per person. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-280 Motion to reduce Giamarco Mullins Horton from $345, 000 to $200,000. Moved by 
Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

19-281 Motion to reduce Finance Director Salary to $50,000. Moved by Councilperson Miller 
and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

2 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-282 Motion for two (2) full-time Youth Recreation and the rest part-time. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Pietila and Waterman 
No: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter and Miller 
Motion Failed. 

19-283 Motion for one (1) full-time Manager and the rest part-time for Youth Recreation 
position. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-284 Motion for City Council Budget changes (see attached changes noted in red) in 
addition, add $15,000 for travel to the budget and the National League of Cities membership of 
$4,600. The cost is to be split equally between the Council's budget and the Mayor's office budget. 
Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-285 Motion to add an additional $50,000 for legal services for Medical Marihuana. 
Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-286 Motion to remove Tele-Van from the budget. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-287 Motion to reduce 101-690-902-000 advertising to $5,000 from $31,800. Moved by 
Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

3 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-288 Motion to amend 101-690-818-000 from other Professional Services to Blight Court 
for $90,000. Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-289 Motion for 101-756-971-001 to remain a restricted fund. Moved by Councilperson 
Miller and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-290 Motion for Election Budget Changes. (see attached changes noted in red) Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-291 Motion for $5,000 raise for the Interim City Clerk, it is incorporated in the Clerk's 
budget changes. (see attached changes noted in red) Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 
Councilman Williams was absent during the vote. 

19-292 Motion to amend $2,388 Miscellaneous Expenses under Finance to $500. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-293 Motion to reduce 101-774-745-003 City Events from $22,500 to $10,000. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

4 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-294 Motion to add 2020 Census account for $25,000. Move by Councilperson Taylor-
Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-295 Motion to reduce 101-818-818-236 Tree Services back to $125,000 and add $75,000 
to 203-463-236 Street Fund (Local) for Tree trimming and removal. Moved by Councilperson Carter 
and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-296 Table to move Customer Service Rep from half time in both Community 
Development and Youth Recreation to full-time in Youth Recreation position. Moved by Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-297 Motion to eliminate the 13 vacant part-time Youth Recreation positions. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: None 
No: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
Motion Failed. 

19-298 Motion to remove the Assistant to Cable Director Position. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

y. 585-000-695-00lchange to zero. 
z. 585-564-974-035 to $600,000 
aa. Transfer in General Fund to Parking Fund 564 

5 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

19-299 Motion to reduce Employee Meals- Commission Food from Mayor's budget to 
$500. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-300 Motion to eliminate Executive Office Assistant from Mayor's Budget. Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-301 Motion for Medical Marihuana Prof. Service broken down by three categories. 
$158,395 to: Prof. Services - Application $8,395, Prof. Service- Financial Advisor to City Clerk 
$120,000 and Prof. Services - Hearing Officer $30,000. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Four (4) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 5:51 p.m. 

6 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

98th Session of the Terith Council 

A Special Meeting on the Budget of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City 
Hall, Friday, June 21, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams. 
Members Absent: Miller and Woodward. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-276 Excuse Councilperson Gloria Miller and Don Woodward for personal reasons. 
Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Councilwoman Miller arrived at 3:04 p.m. 

19-277 
Taylor-Burks. 

Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Reports 

1. Status reports requested by the City Council. (The City Council requested the following 
reports during the June 18, 2019 City Council Meeting and at various other budget meetings.) 

a. Jaycee Park Memo and Contract 
b. Where are the crossing guards located? 
c. Mowing Memo (Grass cutting is listed in several parts of the Budget. (The report should 

detail and explain all of the mowing that is done by the City.) 
d. Breakdown of City Events. (What are the various items that $22,500 in this line item cover?) 
e. What is 226-528-816-000 Services-Contracted Construction for $500,000? 
f. Cable Report (status of Capital Outlays) 

1 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

g. Wade Trim Contract Report. (What is the $29,500/$30,000 in budget? 
h. Organization Chart listing all of the City departments and the various positions in each 

department. 

Discussion 

2. City Council Proposed Changes to the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget. (The City Council 
made the following amendments to the proposed budget for 2019-2020 at the June 18, 2019 City 
Council Meeting.) 

19-278 
Pietila. 

a. Remove death and birth certificate from the schedule of fees. 
b. Add to the Fee Schedule non-refundable fees for tax incentives. (see attached list of fees) 
c. Remove the Community Development Deputy Director position. 
d. Remove the Community Service Rep position from Community Development. 
e. Reclassify the Purchasing Specialist Rep position as the Purchasing Agent to be in 

compliance with the Charter. 
f. Reduce Contractual Temp to $10,000 in Mayor's Office budget. 
g. Change Mayor Projects to OU Initiative in Mayor's Office budget. 

Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Abstain: Waterman and Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

19-279 Motion to limit debate to 2 minutes per person. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-280 Motion to reduce Giamarco Mullins Horton from $345, 000 to $200,000. Moved by 
Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

19-281 Motion to reduce Finance Director Salary to $50,000. Moved by Councilperson Miller 
and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

2 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-282 Motion for two (2) full-time Youth Recreation and the rest part-time. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Pietila and Waterman 
No: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter and Miller 
Motion Failed. 

19-283 Motion for one (1) full-time Manager and the rest part-:-time for Youth Recreation 
position. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-284 Motion for City Council Budget changes ( see attached changes noted in red) in 
addition, add $15,000 for travel to the budget and the National League of Cities membership of 
$4,600. The cost is to be split equally between the Council's budget and the Mayor's office budget. 
Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-285 Motion to add an additional $50,000 for legal services for Medical Marihuana. 
Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-286 Motion to remove Tele-Van from the budget. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-287 Motion to reduce 101-690-902-000 advertising to $5,000 from $31,800. Moved by 
Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

3 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-288 Motion to amend 101-690-818-000 from other Professional Services to Blight Court 
for $90,000. Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-289 Motion for 101-756-971-001 to remain a restricted fund. Moved by Councilperson 
Miller and second by Councilperson Pietila. , 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-290 Motion for Election Budget Changes. (see attached changes noted in red) Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-291 Motion for $5,000 raise for the Interim City Clerk, it is incorporated in the Clerk's 
budget changes. (see attached changes noted in red) Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 
Councilman Williams was absent during the vote. 

19-292 Motion to amend $2,388 Miscellaneous Expenses under Finance to $500. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-293 Motion to reduce 101-774-745-003 City Events from $22,500 to $10,000. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

4 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-294 Motion to add 2020 Census account for $25,000. Move by Councilperson Taylor-
Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williarps, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-295 Motion to reduce 101-818-818-236 Tree Services back to $125,000 and add $75,000 
to 203-463-236 Street Fund (Local) for Tree trimming and removal. Moved by Councilperson Carter 
and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-296 Table to move Customer Service Rep from halftime in both Community 
Development and Youth Recreation to full-time in Youth Recreation position. Moved by Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-297 Motion to eliminate the 13 vacant part-time Youth Recreation positions. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: None 
No: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
Motion Failed. 

19-298 Motion to remove the Assistant to Cable Director Position. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

y. 585-000-695-00lchange to zero. 
z. 585-564-974-035 to $600,000 
aa. Transfer in General Fund to Parking Fund 564 

5 



June 21, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

19-299 Motion to reduce Employee Meals- Commission Food from Mayor's budget to 
$500. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-300 Motion to eliminate Executive Office Assistant from Mayor's Budget. Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-301 Motion for Medical Marihuana Prof. Service broken down by three categories. 
$158,395 to: Prof. Services - Application $8,395, Prof. Service- Financial Advisor to City Clerk 
$120,000 and Prof. Services - Hearing Officer $30,000. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Four (4) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 5:51 p.m. 

6 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



Attachment 

-- --- .. - ,,- _, .... , .. . .. ·- -- ~·.·· .. . ---· .. - -.. . ~- .. - ... ··- .. ~- ·-· ,.,,.' .. , .. 

~ 
Ec:orn:miic Deue!cpment 0-2pa1tn-ierrl: ~2e [f\J m·1-Refr.ir:-clabt,2] 

J 
/, 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

I 
! PA 210 of 2005 

$1,500 
' 

I Plant Rehabilit2tion & Industrial 

Development Act $1,500 

PP,"i98 of 1974 
f 

l Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act [OPRA] I j $1,500 
PA 146 of 2000 I 

-1 I Payment in Lieu of Tax [PILOT] j 

I State Housing Development Authority /.\ct $1,500 
ij 

1 I PA 346 of 1966 
i ~ 
' Brownfield Tax Increment Financing [TIF] :1 ' r 

Brownfield Redevelopment Finandng Act $1.,500 
l ! 

r. ! ~· PA 381 of 19S6 j 
,, l ·------ ··--- -·- - - ----------·- -- ~ ~~--- - --· ·------ ··--· ·-· .. L----- I-•-=....:...-----•~""• ,:-.u.:,_=•·•• "-="- ---=- ~---• ---••-- _ .. -""1...-,-_ '-'---==--• --- - """--• .r,:=-1..=."'5 



City Council 

The proposed changes to the budget are in red 

Increase Legislative Counsel salary to $95,000 

Add Legislative Fiscal Analyst position with a salary of $65,000 job description attached 



GLNUMBER 

101-000-694.009 

OTHER REVENUE 

Fl NES AND FORFEITS 
1 01-000-668. 000 

FINES AND FORFEITS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

101-000-665.001 

101-000-665. 1 00 

DESCRIPTION 

Event and Short 

PDBAPARKING VIOLATION REVENUE 

Investments Income 

UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

101-000-669.014 Land Lease 

101-000-670.005 City Owned Equipment Rental 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

Totals for dept 000 -

Total - Function Unclassified 

Function: TRANSFERS (OUT) AND OTHER SOURCES 

Dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

101-966-699.276 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 276 

101-966-699.280 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 280 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

Total - Function TRANSFERS (OUT) AND OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 
Function: GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
Dept ro1 - City Council 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-101-702.000 

101-101-704.000 

101-101-715.000 

101-101-716.000 

101-101-717.000 

101-101-718.500 

101-101-719.000 

101-101-719.001 

Salaries & Wages 

Supervisory Wages 

F.1.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

2018-19 

ACTIVITY 

THRU 06/30/19 

(54) 

1,403,173 

6,667 

6,667 

341,933 

44,413 

27,789 

71,387 

485,522 

30,369,350 

2018-19 

PROJECTED 

ACTIVITY 

(24) 

1,741,395 

8,000 

8,000 

309,357 

50,340 

33,273 

169,387 

562,357 

35,833,039 

2019-20 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2,022,068 

8,000 

214,500 

34,272 

168,000 

2020-21 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2,069,490 

8,080 

8,080 

218,790 

34, 957 

171 ,360 

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
········································· 

................ ..... ............ ..... .. ........................ 
2,118,271 2,168,460 1,963,839 

8,160 8,241 8,323 
................................................ ············ ······"· 
8,160 8,241 8,323 

223,165 227,628 232 ,1 80 

36,359 37,450 38,199 

174,787 178,282 181,847 .... ... ....................................................................... ... ... ...................... .................................................... ... . .. . 
416,772 425, 107 434,311 443,360 452,226 

36,877,660 37,833,347 39,664,529 40,279,169 

.... ......................... .. ......... ....... ... 

30,369,350 35,833,039 36,877,660 37,833,347 38,816,349 39,664,529 40,279,169 

16,679 21,395 21,000 21,630 22,278 22,946 23,634 

225,000 275,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 ............ ................................... 
16,679 246,395 296,000 253,380 260,980 268,809 276,873 

246,395 296,000 253,380 260,980 268,809 

.... . ...................................... .......................................... . 
16,679 246,395 296,000 253,380 260,980 268,809 276,873 

36,079,434 37,173,660 38,086,727 39,077,329 39,933,338 40,556,042 

96,250 115,500 209,101 215,374 65,000 221,835 228,490 235,344 

75,385 89,230 $95,000 

13,115 15,606 15,996 16,475 16,969 17,478 18,002 

4,686 5,519 6,685 6,885 18,786.98 7,091 7,303 7,522 

341 643 1,184 1,219 440.00 1,255 1,292 1,330 

1,508 1,785 6,300 6,489 4,550.00 6,683 6,883 7,089 

498 634 625 643 4,478.50 662 681 701 

189 242 105 108 1,200 111 114 117 .................................................. .......... .............................................................................................................................. .......................................... 
2018-19 2018-19 2019-20 2019-220 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 



GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

ACTIVITY 

THRU 06130119 .......... ................................. .... .......................... 
PERSONNEL SERVICES 

SUPPLIES 

101-101-727.000 

101-101-728.000 

101-101-730.000 

101-101-731 .003 

SUPPLIES 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

Publications & Maps 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-101-804.000 

101-101-804.018 

101-101-805.001 

101-101-807.000 

101-101-808.101 

101-101-818.000 

101-101-851.000 

101-101-852.010 

101-101-861 .000 

101-101-901 .000 

101-101-914.000 

101-101-931 .001 

101-101-942.000 

101-101-942.002 

Legal Services 

Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 

Audit Compliance Fee 

Services - Membership Dues 

DISTRICT PROJECTS 

Other Professional Services 

SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 

Travel Expenses 

Printing and Bindery Service 

Insurance Property Coverage 

Services - Building Maintenance 

Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

COPIER SUPPLES 

101-101-957.002 Training Expense 

101-101-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 101 - City Council 

Dept 171 - Mayor 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-171-702.000 

101-171-707.003 

101-171-715.000 

101-171-716.000 

101-171-717.000 

101-171-718.500 

101-171-719.000 

101-171-719.001 

Salaries & Wages 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

101-171-721 .010 Health Care Waiver 

101-171-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

191,972 

1,265 

8 

27 

1,300 

4 ,304 

27,133 

47,000 

17,291 

20,085 

3,297 

1,242 

4,456 

709 

96 

41,572 

34 

110 

985 

5,862 

174,176 

367,448 

269,173 

550 

21 ,394 

8,497 

1,030 

4,220 

815 

1,374 

10,407 

46,970 

364,430 

PROJECTED MAYOR REC. 

ACTIVITY BUDGET ........................... 
229,159 239,996 

2,686 

19 

3,000 

6,000 

4,000 

1,500 

4,205 14,500 

5,739 

29,993 

47,000 

17,636 

181,475 

2,723 

1,484 

4,948 

10,000 

33,340 

53,200 

17,750 

50,000 

100,000 

615 

5,849 

1,200 

44,144 

2,500 

120 

200 

2,000 

Counci l Rec MAYOR REC. 

. -~-u_d_9-e.t.. .. .... 8.~.°-.~-~T 
247,193 254,606 

3,060 5,000 

6,120 31,000 

4,080 1,000 

1,530 

14,790 

10,300 30,000 

34,340 25,000 

53,800 

18,282 

93,460 98,000 

103,000 50,000 

633 

6,024 

1,236 

45,468 

2,575 

123 

206 

2,060 

3,121 

6,242 

4,161 

1,560 

15,084 

10,609 

35,370 

54,400 

18,830 

96,263 

106,090 

651 

6,204 

128 

49,886 

2,500 

100 

200 

2,000 

2,976 

348,788 

15,000 15,450 20,000 

1,273 

46,832 

2,652 

126 

212 

2,121 

15,913 

397,546 

582,152 

323,794 

850 

25,673 

9,830 

1,956 

5,031 

981 

1,869 

12,670 

80,267 

462,921 

'':335:g·fa"""'"" .. 386,957 

590,414 

401,990 

600 

31,784 

38,898 

5,083 

15,162 

1,275 

1,434 

12,886 

70,000 

579,112 

648,940 

414,049 

618 

32,737 

40,064 

5,235 

15,616 

1,313 

1,477 

13,272 

72,100 

596,481 

667,236 

426,470 

636 

33,719 

41,265 

5,392 

16,084 

1,352 

1,521 

13,670 

74,263 

614,372 

MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET BUDGET 

262,241 270,105 

3,183 

6,366 

4,244 

1,591 

15,384 

10,927 

36,431 

54,944 

19,394 

99,150 

109,272 

670 

6,390 

1,311 

48,237 

2,731 

129 

218 

2,184 

16,390 

408,378 

686,003 

439,264 

655 

34,730 

42,502 

5,553 

16,566 

1,392 

1,566 

14,080 

76,490 ....................... 
632,798 

3,246 

6,493 

4,328 

1,622 

15,689 

11,254 

37,523 

55,493 

19,975 

102,124 

112,550 

690 

6,581 

1,350 

49,684 

2,812 

132 

224 

2,249 

16,881 

419,522 

705,316 

452,441 

674 

35,771 

43,777 

5,719 

17,062 

1,433 

1,612 

14,502 

78,784 

651,775 



Legislative Fiscal Analyst 

FLSA: Administrative exemption 

Summary: The Legislat ive Fiscal Ana lyst wi ll actively participate in functions re lated to bui lding financial statements, 
analyzi ng complex fi nancial data, preparing advanced models and financ ial forecasts. The selected candidate wi ll have 
the opportunity to showcase their experience and skills to support the goals of the City Counci l, wh ile act ively 
participating in new init iatives to further enhance the accuracy and integrity of the City's financ ial data. Performs 
complex work re lated to account ing, financial report ing, and advanced analysis of the city's fi nances. Work involves 
the application of financial ana lysis with an emphasis on budgetary issues, contracts, agreements and personnel 
studies. May be requi red to perform intermed iate accounting work involving, preparation of fi nancial statements and 
genera l led ger accounting duties. Review, analyze, eva luate financial data; prepares reports and responds to inquiries; 
and recommends and approves actions to resolve fi nancial issues. 

Supervision 

Supervision Received: Works under general su pervision of the City Council or City Council designee. May work 
independently with responsibility for an assigned function or program. 

Supervision Given: No supervisory responsibilities. 

Job Environment 

• The environment in City Hal l is one of a typical business office environment, with electro-mechanica l 
computer- and telecommunications-related equipment; exposure to noise from shredders, printers, cop iers, 
telep hones, and other computer-re lated equipment. 

• Operates PC-based computer system and other office equipment. 
• Has regu lar, daily contact with personnel and offices throughout the City Hall in answering questions and 

solving problems. 
• Has access to publ ic information fi les in the computer systems. 
• Errors could result in the damage to or loss of info rmation resulti ng in legal consequences to the City. 

Essential Functions 

The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be 
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, 
related, or a logical assignment of the position: 

• Develops, interprets and implements financ ial concepts fo r financia l planning and control. 
• Assists the City Counci l in the budget process and puts together required tables and charts. 
• Reviews revenues/expenditures and assists the City Council to ensure that budgetary goals are met. 
• Performs technica l analysis to determine present and future f inancial performance. 
• Gathers, analyzes, prepares and summarizes recommendations for financial plans, trended future 

requi rements and operating forecasts. 
• Performs economic research and studies in the areas of rates of return, depreciations, working cap ita l 

requ irements, investment opportun ities, investment performance and impact of governmental requirements. 
• Carries out assignments that are typical ly stra ightforward financial in nature. 
• May co llaborate with the Legislative Counsel and other staff on proj ects. 
• Prepares analysis and suggests amendments to the budget. 
• Collect and analyzes multiple statistica l factors. 

Decision Making 



Selects from rriu lt iple procedures and methods to accomplish assigned tasks and applies organ izational policies to 
the financial approva ls. 

Assistance/Leadership Provided 

Occasionally provides assistance, guidance, and/or training to peers and/or less experienced staff serves as a technica l 
resource or mentor to other emp loyees. May lead or instruct peers and/or less experienced workers in high level or 
technical j obs. 

Recommended Minimal Qualifications 
Education, Training, and Experience: Bachelor's degree in finance, accounting or related field and three years ' of 
specific governmental accounting professional experience. CPA license preferred. 

Knowledge, Ability, and Skill: 

• Extensive knowledge of concepts and processes in finance area. 
• Strong understanding of relationship of professional discipline with other organizations and funct ions. 
• Skil l in use of Microsoft Office, accounting software, databases. 
• Skil l in interpersonal communications and in presenting information. 
• Ability to apply professional knowledge to carry out ass ignments with limited supervision. 
• Ability to process numbers quickly and accurate ly. Ab ility to spot inconsistencies and either troubleshoot 

issues as they arise or escalate to higher level. 
• Ab ility to tra in others. 
• Ability to build effective re lationships within the organization. 
• Abil ity to interpret and apply regulations, procedures and related information. 
• Critical th inking ability. 
• Familiarity with GAAP principa ls and (Federal Aviation Admin istration) FAA PFC Program. 
• Proficient in BS&A or other governmental financial applicat ions. 
• Attend Council Meetings when requi red 

Essential Capabilities and Work Environment 
• Regular, re liable, and punctual attendance at work. 
• Frequent use of personal computer, cop iers, printers and telephones. 
• Frequently works under dead lines, as a team member, and in direct contact with others. 

Physical Requirements 

The physica l demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

Minimal physical effort required to perform work under typ ical office conditions. Whi le performing the duties of th is 
job, the employee is regularly requ ired to sit and stand; must regularly lift and or move items up to ten pounds, 
frequent ly lift items up to 25 pounds, and occasionally lift or move items up to 50 pounds; be able to clearly hear 
constituents when speaking in person or on the telephone. Specific vision abi lities required by this job include close 
vision, distance vis ion, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adj ust focus. 

This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and the employee and is 
subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. 



!From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Sarah Lindsay <lindsay@nlc.org > 
Friday, June 14, 201910:28 AM 
Monique Sharpe 
NLC Membership 
FY 2019 Dues Adjustment Chart DRAFT (002).docx; Membership Overview.pdf; 
MemberApp_FY19_Fillable.pdf 

This email originated from of City of Pontiac. 

1:1.1::1.~~~--Y..?..1:1..T~-~?..ls..1.1.i.~~--!~~ .. ~~.1.1.~~.r. ... ~1 .. ~~.~;ic_p~.cting the .. ~~ssag~:.... . . . ......... ........................ . 

Ms. Sharpe-

Thank you for reaching out about Pontiac's interest in rejoining NLC. Pontiac's annual member dues are $4,601.01. I 
have attached a chart of the current dues and next year's dues that will be effective Oct. 1. I have also attached a brief 

overview of some of the benefits of membership with NLC as we ll as the membership application. Please let me know if 

you have any questions. 

Have a nice weekend! 
Sarah 

Sarah Lindsay 
Midwest Program Manager 

Member Servlces and Engagement 
National League of Cities 

202-626-3067 I 

,,.- 111· •• , r ,,. ·· • . .- ,.,r 
SUI MIT 

1 



05/15/2 0 I 9 BUDGET REPORT FOR CI TY OF PONTIAC 

Calculations as of 06/3 0/2 0 I 9 

2018-19 

ACTIVITY 

2018-19 2019-20 

PROJECTED MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION THRU 06/30/19 ACTIVITY BUDGET ........................................ ........................ ........... ...... . .......................... ... .... . 
101 -253-728.001 Postage - Large Mailing 13,904 16,904 16,000 

101-253-729.001 Printed Forms 7,701 10,268 8,500 

2020-21 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

16,320 

8,670 

101-253-731 .003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,000 3,060 
....... ·:fo)lOff 

SUPPLIES 23,762 28,234 30,000 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-253-807.000 

101-253-812.000 

101-253-818.000 

101-253-818.008 

101-253-818.080 

101-253-820.008 

101 -253-851 .000 

101-253-852.010 

101-253-914 .000 

101-253-942.000 

101-253-942.002 

101-253-957.002 

Services - Membership Dues 

Services - Armored Car Services 

Other Professional Services 

Bank Service Charges 

PROF. SERV - BS&A 

Services - Security A larm Systems 

SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHON E 

SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 

Insurance Property Coverage 

Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

COPIER SUPPLES 

Training Expense 

101 -253-959.000 Miscel laneous Expenses 

8,216 9,833 

4 ,372 4,516 

7 ,711 7 ,711 

2,235 2 ,605 

718 851 

715 847 

18,188 21 ,825 

82 109 

139 185 

300 309 

11 ,000 11,330 

500 515 

5,000 5,150 

7,840 7,980 

3,000 3,090 

423 435 

1,097 1,129 

15,178 15,633 

200 206 

300 309 

4,400 4,532 

100 103 

2021 -22 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

16, 646 

8,843 

3,121 
31,210 

318 

11,669 

530 

5,304 

8 ,1 20 

3,182 

448 

1, 162 

16,102 

212 

318 

4,667 

106 ................................ .. .. .. .. .... .. .............. ........... ................... ...... 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 42,376 48,482 49,338 50,721 52,138 

T otals for dept 253 - Treasurer 2os."ii1 :i" · ··· ······· · · 2ssj4s ················· ··········34:,i°,si s · · ":3·s2:i'ii:i"s 362,974 

Dept 255 - MEDICAL MARIHUANA APPLICATIONS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-255-804.000 Legal Services r.ur ~r\11(..~..::- l\"\•h o·~hc.; 'I 
<• t.>f .., ,"'\/II - - nn ~.v ,r.\ h~;N:J..>r \"l. C, 'fy C'letll. 
n .:,°' _,,-I•<•·- ~\er- n,-,.: c,f-,i.:-~;-

o THER SERVICES AND CHARGES ~ 

Totals for dept 255 - MEDICAL MARIHUANA APPLICATIONS 

Dept 257 - Assessor 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-257-819.000 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

Contractual Temp/PT Labor 1,800 

101500 10,815 11,139 
t• t'6 (re\\ over ~r"CM \=y 14) 

I .,~.,. 
<., I 

H.-,t-t~~5···· 10,815 11,139 

10,815 11,139 

1,800 3,000 3,090 3,182 

1,800 3,000 3,090 3,182 

2022-23 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET . ............................... 
16,978 

9,019 

3,183 
31,831 

327 

12,019 

545 

5,463 

8,260 

3,277 

461 

1,196 

16,585 

218 

327 

4,807 

109 
53,594 

2023-24 

MAYOR REC. 

336 

12,379 

561 

5,626 

8,400 

3,375 

474 

1,231 

17,083 

224 

336 

4,951 

112 

55,088 

........................................... ... 
373,435 384,200 

11,473 11,817 

11,473 11,817 

11,473 11,817 

3,277 3,375 

3,277 3,375 

SUPPLIES 
101 -257-728.000 

SUPPLIES 

Postage 11,000 11,000 11 ,220 11 ,444 11,672 11,905 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-257-818.015 Assessor Svce- Oakland Cnty 

101-257-957.002 Training Expense 

101-257-957.003 Employee Meals - Commission Food 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Appendix A 

11,000 11,000 11 ,220 

409,000 413,270 417,000 

60 60 75 77 

500 515 
················· .......................................... ·········· ···· ····"''"'······· 

60 409,060 413,845 417,592 

Page 10of74 

.............. ..................... ...................... . .................. . 
11,444 11,672 11,905 

421,000 

79 

530 
421,609 

433,908 

81 
545 

434,534 

433,908 

83 

561 
434,552 



Elections Proposed Changes 

Salaries & Wages increased by $5,000 (Cover the cost of part-time election help) 

Overtime Wages decreased by $23,161 (No overtime wages will be paid the Asst. City Clerk is a 
salary position) 

Postage was increased by $10,840 to cover the cost the Citizens Voter Information Guide 



05/15/201 9 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
Calculations as of06/30/2019 

2018-19 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021 -22 2022-23 2023-24 

ACTIVITY PROJECTED MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION THRU 06/30/19 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ............................................................. ... 

101-171-727.000 Office Supplies 16,898 21,041 17,000 17,340 17,686 18,039 18,399 

101-171-728.000 Postage 2,700 1,425 1,300 1,326 1,352 1,379 1,406 

101-171-730.000 Publications & Maps 319 319 340 346 352 359 366 

101 -171-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 3,179 3,179 3,180 3,243 3,307 3,373 3,440 

101 -171-731 .003 COMPUTER EQUI PMENT 2,644 2,644 2,645 2,697 2,750 2,805 2,861 

101-171-740.000 Operating Supplies 236 239 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 
suPPLIEs 25,976 ···· ·· ........ ·· 2a .-sXi ...... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .... .. 21;:·sss ·· ... ·2s.-4a2 ·· ........ 27.i:ioi 27,546 ····· .. · · 2·a:ae4 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-171 -807.000 Services - Membershi p Dues 9,533 9,533 16,540 17,036 17,547 18,073 18,615 

101 -171 -808.171 MAYOR PROJECTS 30,000 30, 900 31,827 32,781 33,764 

101-171 -818.000 Other Professional Services 11,538 44,431 30,000 30, 900 31 ,827 32,782 33,765 

101-171-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 4,000 4,839 1,237 1,274 1,312 1,351 1,391 

101-171-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 2,283 2,503 4,021 4,1 41 4,265 4,392 4,523 

101-171-861.000 Travel Expenses 4,082 3,000 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

101-171-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 11,246 11,863 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

101-171 -914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 20,786 24,943 20,238 20,845 21,470 22,115 22,778 

101 -171-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 198 200 200 206 212 218 224 

101-171-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 676 901 750 772 795 818 842 

101-171-957.002 Training Expense 4,990 5,000 5,000 5, 150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-171-957.003 Employee Meals - Commission Food 248 300 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES ... . ............... s.ii)frio....... 107,513 ......... i.22·,4ss 126,159 129,941 ................... 133:sis.. .. .............. i:i7,ii44 

.............................. ................... .... ...... ... ................ ..... . ................ ..................................... .. .. .. . 
Totalsfordept171-Mayor 459,986 599,281 727,563 749,1 22 771,320 794,179 

Dept 191 - Elections 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101 _191 _702.000 Salaries & Wages 51,947 60,267 60,252 56,909 58,616 60,374 62,185 

101 -191 -702.004 Overtime Wages 21,988 21,988 O 23,876 24,592 25,329 26,088 

101 -191-702.020 SALARIES & WAGES (NON FICA) 50,580 45,578 31,475 32,419 33,391 34,392 35,423 

101-191-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 1,008 858 1,596 1,643 1,692 1,742 1,794 

101-191-702.104 MAINTENANCE - OVERTIME 2,321 2,321 3, 198 3,293 3,391 3,492 3,596 

101-191-705.002 Temporary/Part-time Clerical/Tech 325 325 

101-191-715.000 F.I CA - City Contri bution 6,596 7,144 6,881 7,087 7,299 7,517 7,742 

101 -191 -716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 296 287 18, 393 18, 944 19,512 20,097 20,699 

101 -191-717.000 Life Insurance 69 76 730 751 773 796 819 

101-191-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRI BUTIONS 990 1,013 3,897 4,01 3 4, 133 4,256 4,383 

101-191-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 472 490 2,173 2,238 2,305 2,374 2,445 

101-191-719.001 Dental Insurance 150 150 416 428 440 453 466 

101-191-721 .010 Health Care Waiver 3,854 4,976 7,293 7,511 7,736 7,968 8,207 
PERSONNEL SERVICES .................. .. ...... 'i'4i:ii596 145,473 136,304 1·s9·J12 ... .. ...... .... ........ .... ... i·s·faso ........................ .. .... 16B:'iso ................. .... .. ..... i.i:i;·a47 

SUPPLIES 

Appendix A 
Page 5 of 74 



05/15/2019 

GL NUMBER 

101-191-727.000 

101-191-728.000 

101-191-729.001 

101-191-740.000 

SUPPLIES 

BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTI AC 

Calculations as of06/30/2019 

DESCRIPTION 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

Printed Forms 

Operating Supplies 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-191-809.000 

101-191-851 .000 

101-191-852.010 

101-191-861 .000 

101-191-902.005 

101-191-932.010 

101 -191-942.000 

101-191-957.002 

Services-Elections 

SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 

Travel Expenses 

Public Notices 

Services - Maintenance-All Other Eq 

Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

Training Expense 
101-191-957.003 Employee Meals- Commission Food 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

2018-19 2018-19 

ACTIVITY PROJECTED 

THRU 06/30/19 ACTIVITY 
.... ... ..... .. ... . ..........................................•.. 

403 43 

4,544 8,697 

2,880 4,754 

2019-20 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2,650 

16,840 

4,905 
6,380 6,380 5,150 

14,207 

17,607 

716 

349 

153 

1,788 

1,265 

1,677 

597 

24,152 

19,874 

16,000 

860 

413 

153 

1,788 

1,265 

1,677 

591 
········· ·· ······················ 

22,747 

29,545 

18,630 

38 

366 

1,030 

5,150 

2,884 

824 

5,150 

824 
34,896 

2020-21 2021-22 

MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET BUDGET 

2,703 2,757 

6,120 6,242 

5,003 5,1 03 

5,253 5,358 .................................. 19-,-;iifo 
19,079 

19,188 

39 

376 

1,060 

5,304 

2,970 

19,763 

40 

387 

1,091 

5,463 

3,059 

873 

5,463 

873 

2022-23 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2,812 

6,366 

5,205 

5,465 
19,848 

20,355 

41 

398 

1, 123 

5,626 

3, 150 

899 

5,626 

899 

848 

5,304 

848 
35,937 

....... ................................................ 
37,01 2 38, 117 

........................................ 200,745 ....................... ................ .. .. .. ................................... . 
Totals for dept 191 - Elections 

Dept 201 - Accounting 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 
101-201-818.000 

101-201-851 .000 

101-201-852.010 

Other Professional Services 

SERVICES -COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

SERVICES-CABLE TV/INTERNET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 201 - Accounting 

Dept 202 - Income Tax Administration 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 
101-202-702.000 

101-202-715.000 

101-202-716.000 

101-202-717.000 

101-202-718.500 

101-202-719.000 

101-202-719.001 

101-202-721 .010 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

SUPPLIES 
101-202-727 .000 

101-202-728.001 

Appendix A 

Salaries & Wages 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

Health Care Waiver 

Office Supplies 

Postage - Large Mailing 

178,955 188,094 

257,400 

385 

419 

258,204 

280,800 

460 

496 

281,756 

258,204 281 ,756 

54,120 64,200 

4,509 5,426 

247 469 

218 304 

394 515 

6,874 

289,200 

154 

1,097 

290,451 

21 4,1 28 

297,600 

158 

1,129 

298,887 

220,352 

297,600 

162 

1, 162 

298,924 

226,755 

297,600 

166 

1, 196 

298,962 

............ ........... . ......................................... .......................... ............. . 
290,451 298,887 298,924 298,962 

113,141 116,535 120,031 123,631 

9,083 9,355 9,635 9,924 

18,232 18,778 19,341 19,921 

1,396 1,437 1,480 1,524 

3,150 3,244 3,341 3,441 

450 463 476 490 

652 671 691 71 1 

5,593 5,760 5,932 6,109 
............................... .. .. ..... .. ........ .. ... .. ...... ................... ... .. .. .. .... ... ....... ....... ....... 

64,781 77,788 151,697 156,243 160,927 165,751 

39 52 750 765 780 795 

28,400 35,001 37,500 38,250 39,015 39,795 

Page 6 of74 

2023-24 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2,868 

6,493 

5,309 

5,574 
20,244 

20,965 

42 

409 

1,156 

5,794 

3,244 

925 

5,794 

925 

39,254 

233,345 

306,500 

170 

1,231 

307,901 

307,901 

127,339 

10,221 

20,518 

1,569 

3,544 

504 

732 

6,292 ........ .. .................. .. ........ 
170,7 19 

810 

40,590 



City Clerk 

Changes are noted in red. 

Salaries & Wages increased by $36,981 to cover the cost of the Customer Service Rep salary of 
$35,360 and Interim City Clerk salary of $90,000 

Benefits for Customer Service Rep 

$6,520 increase to Ordinances 

$500 increase to Public Notices 



05/15/2019 

GL NUMBER 

101-206-818.080 

101-206-818.090 

101-206-851 .000 

101-206-852.010 

101-206-861 .004 

101-206-876.010 

101-206-901.000 

101-206-914.000 

101-206-942.000 

101-206-942.002 

101-206-957.002 

BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
Calculations as of 06/30/2019 

DESCRIPTION 

PROF. SERV - BS&A 

PROF. SERV.-SHREDDING 

SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 

Services - Travel-Mileage 

REFUNDS OVER/UNDER PAYMENTS 

Printing and Bindery Service 

Insurance Property Coverage 

Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 

COPIER SUPPLES 

Training Expense 

101-206-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 

2018-19 

ACTIVITY 

THRU 06/30/19 

19,846 

160 

921 

699 

18 

20,786 

82 

708 

2018-19 

PROJECTED 

ACTIVITY 

19,846 

173 

1,024 

827 

385 

5,500 

24,943 

82 

944 

2019-20 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

20,310 

500 

385 

2,924 

500 

5,500 

23,906 

150 

1,200 

5,500 

2020-21 2021-22 

MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET BUDGET 

20,780 21,260 

515 530 

396 407 

3,011 3, 101 

515 530 

5,665 5,834 

24,623 25,362 

154 158 

1,236 1,273 

5,665 5,834 

1,570 1,538 2,388 2,459 2,533 

2022-23 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

21,750 

545 

419 

3,194 

545 

6,009 

26,123 

162 

1,311 

6,009 

2,609 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES ··· ··········· ······· ··22i:i")fo4 ······ ··· ·········2·6:fsii ··································· ········································· ········ 116,713 120,010 123,388 126,852 

Totals for dept 206 - Finance Administration 

Dept 215-c-City Clerk 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-215-702.000 

101-215-702.004 

101-215-707.003 

101-215-715.000 

101-215-716.000 

101-215-717.000 

101-215-718.500 

101-215-719.000 

101-215-719.001 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

SUPPLIES 

101-215-727.000 

101-215-728.000 

101-215-731 .003 

SUPPLIES 

Salaries & Wages 

Overtime Wages 

CELL PHONE STIPEND 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-215-816.005 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - PUBLIC RELATIONS 

101-215-816.006 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -MEDICAL MARIHUANA 

101-215-818.000 Other Professional Services 

101-215-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

101-215-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 

101-215-901 .000 Printing and Bindery Service 

101-215-902.004 Ordinances 
101-215-902.005 Public Notices 

Appendix A 

446,389 549,409 

103,870 

195 

350 

7,939 

14,097 

508 

1,939 

303 

560 

129,761 

3,197 

488 

3,685 

7,083 

674 

349 

34,531 
8,093 

126,485 

195 

350 

6,154 

17,625 

968 

2,392 

368 

818 

155,355 

3,964 

628 

4,592 

1,000 

25,000 

736 

804 

413 

23,000 

9,000 

Page 8 of74 

623,760 642,210 

189,842 157,467 

1,000 705 

11 ,695? 12,045 

43,150 25,664 

2,193 1,975 

8,670? 8,930 

625 463 

661 ,191 

162, 191 

726 

12,406 

26,433 

2,034 

9, 197 

476 

680,726 

167,056 

747 

12,778 

27,225 

2,095 

9,472 

490 

1,401 1,020 1,050 1,081 ........ ............................................... .. ..................................... ..... .. .......... .. . 
238,211 

3,863 

1,030 

412 ......... 
5,305 

1,000 

1,000 

654 

2,558 

1,000 

23,000 
9,000 

208,269 21 4, 51 3 

3,940 4,018 

1,050 1,071 

420 428 ....................................................... ..... .................... 
5,410 5,517 

1,030 1,060 

1,030 1,060 

673 693 

2,634 2,71 3 

1,030 1,060 

16,974 17,483 

8,755 9,017 

220,944 

4,098 

1,092 

436 

5,626 

1,091 

1,091 

713 

2,794 

1,091 

18,007 

9,287 

2023-24 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

22,260 

561 

431 

3,289 

56 1 

6 ,1 89 

26,906 

166 

1,350 

6, 189 

2,687 .................................. 
130,412 

700,837 

172,067 

769 

13, 161 

28,04 1 

2,157 

9,756 

504 

1,113 

227, 568 

4,179 

1,1 13 

444 

5,736 

1,123 

1,123 

734 

2,877 

1,123 

18,547 

9,565 



05/15/2019 

GL NUMBER 

101-215-914.000 

101-215-942.000 

101-215-942.002 

BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 
Calculations as of 06/30/2019 

DESCRIPTION 

Insurance Property Coverage 

Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 

COPIER SUPPLES 

101-215-957.002 Training Expense 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 215 - City Clerk 

Dept 228 - Information Technology 

SUPPLIES 

101-228-727.000 

101-228-728.000 

101-228-731 .001 

101-228-731 .003 

SUPPLIES 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

COMPUTER SUPPLIES 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-228-818.000 

101-228-818.063 

101-228-851 .000 

101-228-852.010 

101-228-914.000 

Other Professional Services 

Prof. Serv-Sarcom 

SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 

Insurance Property Coverage 

101-228-932.012 Services- Maintenance-Comptr Equip 

101-228-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 

OTHER SERVI CES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 228 - Information Technology 

Dept 253 - Treasurer 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-253-702.000 

101-253-702.004 

101-253-715.000 

101-253-716.000 

101-253-717.000 

101-253-718.500 

101-253-719.000 

101-253-719.001 
101-253-721.010 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

SUPPLIES 

101-253-727.000 

101-253-728.000 

Appendix A 

Salaries & Wages 

Overtime Wages 

F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

MEDICAL INSURANCE 

Life Insurance 

MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Workers Compensation Insurance 

Dental Insurance 

Health Care Waiver 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

2018-19 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

ACTIVITY PROJECTED MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

THRU 06/30119 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
.... .. ...... ... .. .................................... ......... ... .... ... .............................. ................... .. ... ... 

28 ,061 33,673 25,394 26,156 26,940 27,749 28,581 

48 48 103 106 109 112 115 

1,264 1,685 412 424 436 449 462 

1,512 2,412 4 ,120 4,243 4 ,370 4 ,501 .................. ...... ............................ ... .......................................................... ...... 
81 ,615 97,771 68,241 63,055 64,941 66,885 68,886 

....................................... .................... .. ..... ......... ....................................................... ................... 
215,061 257,718 379,998 276,734 284, 971 293,455 302, 190 

302 302 400 408 416 424 432 

10 3 

4 ,380 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

537 ................ .............. ~.'.~.~.°. ...................... .. ... ~,°.°.~ .... 3,060 3,121 3,1 83 3 ,246 
.... i.i'.4ss ... .................... ..... 1°j)frl ........... .. ... ............ i.3);07 ................. ......... 

849 3 ,305 7,780 13,678 

5,945 7 ,560 15,000 4 ,900 4,900 4,900 4,900 

231 ,750 309,000 310,000 310,000 310,000 31 0,000 320,000 

2,589 3,113 543 559 575 592 609 

487 587 1,462 1,505 1,550 1,596 1,643 

15,589 18,707 

21,041 25,300 25,300 25,450 36,200 37,950 37,950 

50 50 51 52 53 54 

277 ,401 364,317 352,355 
342,465....... .. ... .. .. . .. 35:i,iii..... ........... . . 355)jii'i . . ............. 

365, 156 

............................... .... ........... ... .............................. ................... ............ ...... ............. .. .. .... .... ..... 

278,250 367,622 360,135 355,933 366 ,814 368,698 378,834 

110,599 144,368 209,227 215,503 221,968 228,627 235,485 

475 439 439 452 465 478 492 

8,946 11,434 17,025 17,535 18 ,061 18,602 19 ,1 60 

12,123 14,237 13,981 14,400 14,832 15,276 15,734 

574 1,173 2,442 2,515 2,590 2,667 2,747 

2,280 2,922 5,950 6,128 6 ,31 1 6 ,500 6,695 

259 326 875 901 928 955 983 

409 541 756 778 801 825 849 

4,109 6,092 12,886 13,272 13,670 14,080 14,502 .................. ..................... ................................ .. ............................................................................................ ... ....... .............................. .......................... 
139,774 181,532 263,581 271 ,484 279,626 288,010 296,647 

1,861 709 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

296 353 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

Page 9 of 74 



#2 

MINUTES 
Special Meeting 

on the Budget 

6-24-19 



June 24, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council· 

99th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting on the Budget of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City 
Hall, Monday, June 24, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. by Councilwoman Mary Pietila. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Members Absent: Carter, 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-302 Excuse Councilperson Randy Carter for personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson Woodward. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-303 Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Woodward. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Councilman Randy Carter arrived at 3:06 p.m. 

19-304 Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Woodward. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-305 Motion to move public comment after approval of the agenda. Move by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 

1 



June 24, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

Motion Carried. 

No public comment. 

Ordinance-Adoption of Emergency Ordinance City of Pontiac Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget and Fee 
Schedule 

*Recess for 15 minutes* 

*Back in Session at 3:35 p.m. * 

Continue discussion regarding FY 2019-2020 Budget and Fee Schedule 

19-306 Motion to recess meeting until 9:00 a.m. on June 25, 2019. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

June 25, 2019 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 
Councilperson Patrice Waterman and Don Woodward were absent during the vote. 

Council Meeting reconvened at 9:06 a.m. on June 25, 2019 

Continue discussion regarding FY 2019-2020 Budget and Fee Schedule 

*Recess* 

*Back in Session at 10: 10 a.m. * 

19-307 Adoption of Emergency Ordinance for FY 2019-2020 Budget and Fee Schedule. 
Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No:None 
Emergency Ordinance Approved. 

**Please see attached Emergency Ordinance after meeting minutes** 

Council President adjourned the meeting at 10: 15 a.m. 

2 



June 24, 2019 Special Meeting on the Budget 

3 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



Budget Ordinan_£_~--... --:. __ _ 
. ~=----.--:L._1 ~{t_u 

r; ~;: ,; ,.
1
,.. Ordinance No. XXXX 

LL,/) fi r•..:- •-;);:: ~ ~£, 
~V\C:,\..I i.}~~F'"l'"\1 . 

An Ordinance to appropriate the su~~ o'frfohey necessary to meet the expenditures set forth in the budget 
:- •. -~! J ; ,, -. .. -

recommended for th1toperc!l:lon;of thl3 q~ ef:fi~ntiac, Michigan; t~ defray the debts, expenditures, and liabilities 

of said City for the fiscal year beginning the first day of July, 2019; to adopt the fee schedule for public records and 

services for the fiscal year 2019/20. 

Whereas, the proposed General Appropriations Act is· required to be effective July 1, 2019 so the City can legally 

operate. 

The City of Pontiac Ordains: 

Section 1. Title. 

This ordinance shall be known as the City of Pqntiac 2019-2020 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2. Public Hearing on the Budget. 

Pursuant to MCLA 141.412 and .413, notice of a public hearing on the proposed budget was published in The Oakland 

Press, a newspaper of general circulation on Thursday, June 6, 2019 and a public hearing on the proposed budget 

was held on Thursday June 13, 2019. 

Section 3. Millage Levy, Administration Fee, and Penalties. 

The City Council for the City of Pontiac shall authorize the following millages to be levied and collected on the general 

property tax of all real and personal property within the City upon the curr~nt tax roll an allocated millage of 11.1699 
r 

operating; 1.4862 youth center; 1.3961 capital improvement; 2. 7923 sanitation; 0.4954 senior s_ervices. The City 

Treasurer is hereby authorized to impose a one percent (1%) property tax administration fee for all property taxes 

due, And a late penalty charge when applicable, in conformance with Section 44 of Public Act 206 of 1893. 

Section 4. Adoption of budget by Line item. 

The City Council of the City ot Pontiac received a .five-year budget for 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22, 2022-23, and 2023-

24 fiscal years. The City Council of the City of Pontiac adopts the 2019-2020 fiscal year budgets for the various funds 

by line item. City officials responsible for the expenditures authorized in the budget may expend City funds up to, 

but not to exceed, the total appropriation authorized for each line item. 

Section 5. Payment of Bills. · 

Pursuant to the Local Financial Stability and Choice Act and the Accounting Procedures Man_ual for Local 

Governments in Michigan, all claims (bills) against the City shall be, approved by the Mayor or the Finance Director 

of the City of Pontiac prior to bei_ng paid. 



Budget Ordinance {Continued) 

Section 6: Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures--Estimated total revenues and expenditures, including transfers in 

and out and other sources, for the various funds of the City of Pontiac beginning July 1, 2019 are $69,221,399 in 

revenues and $81,860,352 in expenditures, as set forth in the 2019-2020 budget as reflected in the budget report 

dated 6/25/19. 

Section 7. Specific Appropriations. 

There are no specific appropriations contained in the budget. 

Section 8. Periodic Financial Reports. 

The Finance Director shall provide the Mayor and City Council financial reports on a monthly basis. 

Section 9. Budget Monitoring and Amending. 

Whenever it appears to the Finance Director that the actual and probable revenues in any fund will be less than the 

estimated revenues upon which appropriations from such fund were based, and when it appears that expenditures 

will exceed an appropriation upon which appropriations from such fund were based, the Finance Director shall 

present to the Mayor recommendations to prevent expenditures from exceeding available revenues or 

appropriations for the fiscal year. Such recommendations shall include proposals for reducing appropriations, 

increasing revenues .or both. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to amend an appropriation line item within 

a fund or department that does not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000) within a fiscal year. Any budget 

amendments to a line item or department that exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000) within a fiscal year must be 

approved by the City council prior to amendment. For all transfers in and transfer out between appropriation line 

items or departments exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000) must be approved by City Council prior to such 

transfer. 

Section 10. Severability. 

If any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be unconstitutional, void, illegal, or 

ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, clause, or provision declared to be unconstitutional, 

void, or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part of this Ordinance, but the remainder of this Ordinance shall stand and 

be in full force and effect. 

Section 11. Repealer. 

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give 

this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 12. Publication. 

The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. 

Section 13. Emergency Declaration and Effective Date. 

This Ordinance is declared an emergency to allow the City to legally spend money after July 1, 2019 and shall be 

effective immediately upon adoption. 



Budget Ordinance {Continued) 

With revenue and expenditures categorized by appropriated line item as herein provided: 

Fund 

Number Am~rogriation Line Item Revenues Exgenditures 

101 General $ 37,173,660 $ 39,644,992 

202 Major Streets $ 6,219,080 $ 6,647,877 

203 Local Streets $ 1;671,941 $ 2,832,770 

208 Youth Recreation Millage $ 1,118,061 $ 931,276 

209 Cemetery Care Fund $ 693,053 $ 693,053 

212 Senior Activities Millage $ 350,227 $ 511,176 

226 Sanitaton Fund $ 4,476,187 $ 4,476,187 

231 Cable Fund $ 161,870 $ 233,273 

239 TIFA District 2 $ 378,319 $ 632,001 

240 TIFA District 3 $ 1,960,044 $ 2,450,990 

243 Brownfield Redeveloping Auth $ 40,070 $ 40,070 

249 Building Department $ 2,216,800 $ 2,078,704 

252 CDBG FY2012 Fund $ $ 
263 Home Buyers Assistance Fund $ $ 
265 Drug Enforcement $ 42,885 $ 53,483 

276 District Court $ 3,815,155 $ 3,815,155 

277 MIDC Fund $ 512,703 $ 909,868 

280 Public Act 48 $ 225,000 $ 275,000 

445 Capital Improvement $ 955,354 $ 1,925,333 

585 Parking $ 194,919 $ 1,776,067 

659 Insurance $ 6,661,422 $ 11,294,825 

677 Self-Insurance Wk Comp $ 354,649 $ 638,252 



Budget Ordinance {Continued) 

General Fund - 101 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Income Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 

Federal Grants 

State Grants 

Charges for Services 

Fines and Forfeits 

Interest and Rents 

other Revenue 

Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Public Works 

Community and Economic Development 

Recreation and Culture 

Other Functions 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Major Street Fund - 202 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

State Grants 

Interest and Rents 

Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Public Works 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Major Street Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

8,470,851 

14,188,360 

275,000 

20,000 

10,479,589 

997,020 

8,000 

416,772 

2,022,068 

296,000 

37,173,660 

6,223,829 

20,753,383 

2,558,206 

2,055,964 

3,689,940 

1,835,294 

2,528,376 

39,644,992 

(2,471,332) 
16,831,781 
14,360,449 

5,592,400 

26,680 

600,000 

6,219,080 

6,647,877 

6,647,877 

(428,797) 

1,194,588 

765,791 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

Local Street Fund - 203 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

State Grants 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Public Works 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Local Street Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Youth Recreation Millage Fund - 208 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Other Revenue 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Recreation and Culture 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 
-

Recreation Millage Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Cemetery Care Fund - 209 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Government 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Cemetery Care Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

1,644,000 

27,941 

1,671,941 

2,232,770 

600,000 

2,832,770 

(1,160,829) 

4,620,715 

3,459,886 

968,061 

150,000 

1,118,061 

931,276 

931,276 

186,785 

186,512 

373,297 

693,053 

693,053 

693,053 

693,053 

18,327 

18,327 



Budget Ordinance {Continued) 

Senior Activities - 212 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Recreation and Culture 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Senior Activities 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Sanitation Fund - 226 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Charges for Services 

Other Revenue 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Public Works 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Sanitation Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Cable Revenue - 231 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Charges for Services 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Government 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Cable Revenue 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

329,361 

20,866 

350,227 

511,176 

511,176 

(160,949) 

941,630 

780,681 

1,832,013 

1,985,566 

625,000 

33,608 

4,476,187 

4,476,187 

4,476,187 

5,410,730 

5,410,730 

153,250 

8,620 

161,870 

233,273 

233,273 

(71,403) 

1,197,516 

1,126,113 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

Tax Increment Finance Authority District 2 - 239 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Charges for Services 

Contribution from Primary Government 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Debt Service & Financial Guarantee 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Tax Increment Finance Authority District 2 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Tax Increment Finance Authority District 3 - 240 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Contribution from Primary Government 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Debt Service & Financial Guarantee 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Tax Increment Finance Authority District 3 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority - 243 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Community and Economic Development 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

74,637 

50,000 

253,682 

378,319 

632,001 

632,001 

(253,682) 

(2,673,059) 

(2,926,741) 

1,469,098 

490,946 

1,960,044 

2,450,990 

2,450,990 

(490,946) 

(1,849,758) 

(2,340,704) 

40,070 

40,070 

40,070 

40,070 

233,322 

233,322 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

Building Department Fund - 249 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Licenses and Permits 

Charges for Services 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Public Safety 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Building Department Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

CDBG FY2012 Fund - 252 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Community Development 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

CDBG FY2012 Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Home Buyers Assistance Fund - 263 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Community Development 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Home Buyers Assistance Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

2,137,800 

76,500 

2,500 

2,216,800 

2,078,704 

2,078,704 

138,096 

753,025 

891,121 

30,335 

30,335 

3,638 

3,638 



Budget Ordinance {Continued) 

Drug Enforcement Fund - 265 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Fines and Forfeits 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Public Safety 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Drug Enforcement Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

District Court - 276 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Charges for Services 

State Grants 

Fines and Forfeits 

Interest and Rents 

Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Government 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

District Court 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

42,000 

885 

42,885 

53,483 

53,483 

(10,598) 

222,717 

212,119 

773,700 

182,896 

1,022,000 

1,800 

1,834,759 

3,815,155 

3,776,167 

38,988 

3,815,155 

2,093 

2,093 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

MIDC Fund - 277 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

State Grants 

Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Government 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

MIDC Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/ APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

PA 48-Telecommunications Fund - 280 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

State Grants 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

PA 48 - Telecommunications Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

494,715 

17,988 

512,703 

909,868 

909,868 

(397,165) 

551,693 

154,528 

225,000 

225,000 

275,000 

275,000 

(50,000) 

58,105 

8,105 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

Capital Improvement Fund - 445 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Public Works 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Capital Improvement Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Parking Fund - 585 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

State Grants 

Interest and Rents 

Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Public Works 

Recreation and Culture 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Parking Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Net Position 

Estimated Ending Net Position 

928,632 

26,722 

955,354 

1,610,333 

125,000 

190,000 

1,925,333 

(~69,979) 
2,305,466 

1,335,487 

(1,000) 

163,020 

32,335 

564 

194,919 

64,760 

1,711,307 

1,776,067 

(1,581,148) 
12,877,720 

11,296,572 



Budget Ordinance (Continued) 

Insurance Fund - 659 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Charges for Services 

Other Revenue 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Other Functions 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Insurance Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

Workers' Compensation Fund - 677 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Charges for Services 

Interest and Rents 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Other Functions 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Workers' Compensation Fund 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

5,964,970 

696,452 

6,661,422 

11,294,825 

11,294,825 

(4,633,403} 

5,579,925 

946,522 

338,252 

16,397 

354,649 

638,252 

638,252 

{283,603) 

904,960 

621,357 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

! I 
i I 

1
1 / 1--1 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

: .I ". I I ,,, 2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER · il1Jf~J~}~Jf.I!9.X:L._r ____ "_r_ BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

•.c' •. ,_JC I,: ('. ,) /Jr·/ u: c:' l 

ESTIMATED REVENUES'!/ I,'',',, '··' ! : I i_,.L/.:.Li I 
Dept 000 
PROPERTY TAXES 

101-000-403.000 Current Property taxes 7,373,400 7,594,602 7,822,440 8,057,113 8,298,826 
101-000-403.002 Property Tax Chargebacks (161,000) (165,830) (170,804) (175,928) (181,205) 
101-000-403.007 PROPERTY TAXES OVER/SHORT 75 77 79 81 83 
101-000-404.001 Property tax aid in lieu of tax 220,095 226,697 233,497 240,501 247,716 
101-000-405.000 Property Tax-PY Refunds (1,000) (1,030) (1,060) (1,091) (1,123) 
101-000-405.005 PROPERTY TAX - PY NON AD VALOREM COLLECT 

101-000-425 .000 Mobile home taxes 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 

101-000-441.000 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE 1 215,116 221,569 228,216 235,062 242,113 

101-000-445.000 INTEREST ON TAXES 300,000 309,000 318,270 327,818 337,652 
101-000-445.00"4 TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT PENALTIES 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

101-000-447.000 PROPERTY TAX ADMINISTRATION FEE 372,665 383,844 395,359 407,219 41~~~?-~--
PROPERTY TAXES 8,470,851 8,724,974 8,986,723 9,256,322 9,534,010 

INCOME TAXES 

101-000-438.000 City income taxes 15,094,000 _ 15,419,000 15,752,000 15,921,000 16,093,000 
101-000-438.001 City income taxes refunds (905,640) (925,140) (945,120) (955,260) __ (965,580) 

INCOME TAXES 14,188,360 14,493,860 14,806,880 14,965,740 15,127,420 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 

101-000-451.000 BUSINESS LICENSES 72,000 73,440 74,908 76,406 77,934 

101-000-452.000 PLAN REVIEW CHARGES 30,000 30,600 31,212 31,836 32,472 

101-000-456.010 VACANT PROPERTY REGISTRATION 50,000 51,000 52,020 53,060 54,121 

101-000-478.001 MEDICAL MARIHUANA LICENSE FEE 100,000 102,000 104,040 106,120 108,242 

101-000-478.449 ROW PERMIT 23,000 23,460 23,929 24,407 24,895 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 275,000 280,500 286,109 291,829 297,664 

Page 1 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

101-000-464.001 Comcast Franchise Fees 456,000 465,120 474,422 483,910 493,588 

101-000-464.002 AT&T Franchise Fees 99,000 100,980 102,999 105,058 107,159 

101-000-609.004 NSF FEES 700 714 728 742 756 

101-000-610.270 FEES FOR GARNISHMENTS 100 102 104 106 108 

101-000-612.000 Zoning Board Of Appeal 13,000 13,260 13,525 13,795 14,070 

101-000-613.000 HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 7,000 7,140 7,282 7,427 7,575 

101-000-614.005 PLANNING REVIEW FEES 20,000 20,400 20,808 21,224 21,648 

101-000-615.000 Engineering Inspection 100,000 102,000 104,040 106,120 108,242 

101-000-617 .001 Site Plan Review 45,000 45,900 46,818 47,754 48,709 

101-000-617.002 APPLICATION FEES - REHAB 300 306 312 318 324 

101-000-617.003 Special Exception Permit 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

101-000-617.004 Zoning Application 25,000 25,500 26,010 26,530 27,060 

101-000-617.005 Vacation/Dedication 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

101-000-617.006 LAND DIVISION PLAT/LOT SPLIT COMBO FEE) 11,000 11,220 11,444 11,672 11,905 

101-000-617.751 PARK RENTAL PERMIT 2,300 2,346 2,392 2,439 2,487 

101-000-626.300 FALSE SECURITY ALARM CHARGES 200 204 208 212 216 

101-000-626.371 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - BUILDING 800 816 832 848 864 

101-000-632.371 NUISANCE ABATEMENT- CITY 50,000 51,000. 52,020 53,060 54,121 

101-000-632.372 NUISANCE ABATEMENT-COURT ORDERED 20,000 20,400 20,808 21,224 21,648 

101-000-636.041 Reimb.-Oakland County Sheriff OT 120,000 122,400 124,848 127,344 129,890 

101-000-636.215 NOTARY SERVICES 500 510 520 530 540 

101-000-636.266 FOIA RESPONSES 500 510 520 530 540 

101-000-636.441 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES - DPW 

101-000-636.751 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES - PARKS 2,000 2,040 2,080 2,121 2,163 

101-000-641.020 Chemical Breath Test Fees 13,000 13,260 13,525 13,795 14,070 

101-000-642.000 Charges for Services - Sales 100 102 104 106 108 

101-000-643.006 Sale of Voter List 120 122 124 126 128 

101-000-643.253 DUPLICATE TAX BILLS 400 408 416 424 432 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 997,020 1,016,960 1,037,293 1,058,027 1,079,175 

Page 2 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

FEDERAL GRANTS 

101-000-532.000 Federal grants others 20,000 20,400 20,808 21,224 21,648 
FEDERAL GRANTS 20,000 20,400 20,808 21,224 21,648 

STATE GRANTS 

101-000-542.000 ATPA STATE GRANT 65,000 66,950 68,958 71,026 73,156 

101-000-570.000 STATE GRANT - HOUSING AND COMM DEV. 

101-000-574.000 STATE SHARED REVENUE 10,371,589 10,682,736 11,003,218 11,333,314 11,673,313 

101-000-578.000 State liquor licenses 43,000 44,290 45,618 46,986 48,395 

STATE GRANTS 10,479,589 10,793,976 11,117,794 11,451,326 11,794,864 

OTHER REVENUE 

101-000-636.674 TRANSPORTATION SERVICES lS0,000 lSl,500 153,0lS 154,S45 156,090 

101-000-636.752 MUNICIPAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 255,000 255,300 255,609 255,927 

101-000-637.300 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE - SHERIFF 500 sos 510 515 520 

101-000-640.005 DPW SUPPORT SERVICE - FROM OTHER FUNI 306,304 315,493 324,957 334,707 344,748 

101-000-640.022 101 Admin Reimb-From Other Funds 1,166,264 1,201,252 1,237,287 1,274,405 1,312,638 

101-000-651.003 CITY EVENTS - DREAM CRUISE 15,000 15,150 15,301 15,454 15,608 

101-000-671.000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 

101-000-671.253 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE - TREASURER 5,000 5,050 S,100 5,151 5,202 

101-000-673.001 Sale of Property 

101-000-675.001 Contribution -Misc Donations 

101-000-686.000 REIMBURSEMENTS 

101-000-686.020 REIMB - PONTIAC SCHOOLS POLICE LIAISON 124,000 125,240 126,492 127,756 129,033 

101-000-686.200 REIMB. - PARKS UTILITIES 

101-000-694.009 Event Over and Short 

OTHER REVENUE 2,022,068 2,069,490 2,118,271 2,168,460 1,963,839 

Page 3 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

FINES AND FORFEITS 

101-000-668.000 PDBA PARKING VIOLATION REVENUE 8,000 8!~80 8,160 8,241 8,323 

FINES AND FORFEITS 8,000 8,080 8,160 8,241 8,323 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

101-000-665.00_1 Investments Income 214,500 218,790 223,165 227,628 232,180 

101-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

101-000-669.014 Land Lease 34,272 34,957 36,359 37,450 38,199 

101-000-670.005 City Owned Equipment Rental 168,000 171,360 174,787 178,282 181,847 

INTEREST AND RENTS 416,772 425,107 434,311 443,360 452,226 

Totals for dept 000 - 36,877,660 37,833,347 38,816,349 39,664,529 40,279,169 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

101-966-699.276 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 276 21,000 21,630 22,278 22,946 23,634 

101-966-699.280 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 280 275,000 · 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 296,000 253,380 260,980 268,809 276,873 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 296,000 253,380 260,980 268,809 276,873 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 37,173,660 38,086,727 39,077,329 39,933,338 40,556,042 

Page 4 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 101- City Council 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-101-702.000 Salaries & Wages 275,500 215,374 221,835 228,490 235,344 

101-101-704.000 Supervisory Wages 

101-101-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 21,076 16,475 16,969 17,478 18,002 

101-101-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 24,917 6,885 7,091 7,303 7,522 

101-101-717.000 Life Insurance 2,354 1,219 1,255 1,292 1,330 

101-101-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 10,850 6,489 6,683 6,883 7,089 

101-101-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 814 643 662 681 701 

101-101-719.001 Dental Insurance 991 108 111 114 117 ----------
PERSONNEL SERVICES 336,502 247,193 254,606 262,241 270,105 

SUPPLIES 

101-101-727.000 Office Supplies 5,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

101-101-728.000 Postage 31,000 6,120 6,242 6,366 6,493 

101-101-730.000 Publications & Maps 1,000 4,080 4,161 4,244 4,328 

101-101-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

SUPPLIES 38,500 14,790 15,084 15,384 15,689 

Page 5 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-101-804.000 Legal Services 30,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

101-101-804.018 Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 25,000 34,340 35,370 36,431 37,523 

101-101-805.001 Audit Compliance Fee 53,200 53,800 54,400 54,944 55,493 

101-101-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 20,050 18,282 18,830 19,394 19,975 

101-101-808.101 DISTRICT PROJECTS 98,000 93,460 96,263 99,150 102,124 

101-101-818.000 Other Professional Services 50,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 

101-101-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 615 633 651 670 690 

101-101-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 5,849 6,024 6,204 6,390 6,581 

101-101-861.000 Travel Expenses 15,000 

101-101-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 1,200 1,236 1,273 1,311 1,350 

101-101-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 44,144 45,468 46,832 48,237 49,684 

101-101-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 2,500 2,575 2,652 2,731 2,812 

101-101-942.000 Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 120 123 126 129 132 

101-101-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 200 206 212 218 224 

101-101-957.002 Training Expense 2,000 2,060 2,121 2,184 2,249 

101-101-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 20,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 __ 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 367,878 386,957 397,546 408,378 419,522 

Totals for dept 101 - City Council 742,880 .648,940 667,236 686,003 705,316 

Page 6 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 171- Mayor 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-171-702.000 Salaries & Wages 356,990 414,049 426,470 439,264 452,441 

101-171-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 600 618 636 655 674 

101-171-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 28,341 32,737 33,719 34,730 35,771 

101-171-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 20,666 40,064 41,265 42,502 43,777 

101-171-717.000 Life Insurance 4,514 5,235 5,392 5,553 5,719 

101-171-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 12,012 15,616 16,084 16,566 17,062 

101-171-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,100 1,313 1,352 1,392 1,433 

101-171-719.001 Dental Insurance 1,024 1,477 1,521 1,566 1,612 

101-171-721.010 Health Care Waiver 12,886 13,272 13,670 14,080 14,502 

101-171-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 10,000 72,100 74,263 76,490 78,784 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 448,133 596,481 614,372 632,798 651,775 

SUPPLIES 

101-171-727.000 Office Supplies 17,000 17,340 17,686 18,039 18,399 

101-171-728.000 Postage 1,300 1,326 1,352 1,379 1,406 

101-171-730.000 Publications & Maps 340 346 352 359 366 

101-171-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 3,180 3,243 3,307 3,373 3,440 

101-171-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,645 2,697 2,750 2,805 2,861 

101-171-740.000 Operating Supplies 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

SUPPLIES 25,965 26,482 27,007 27,546 28,094 

Page 7 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

-· 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-171-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 18,840 17,036 17,547 18,073 18,615 
101-171-808.171 OU INITIATIVE 30,000 30,900 31,827 32,781 33,764 
101-171-818.000 Other Professional Services 30,000 30,900 31,827 32,782 33,765 
101-171-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 1,237 1,274 1,312 1,351 1,391 
101-171-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 4,021 4,141 4,265 4,392 4,523 
101-171-861.000 Travel Expenses 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,27_7 3,375 
101-171-901.000 Printi_ng and Bindery Service 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 
101-171-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 20,238 20,845 21,470 22,115 22,778 
101-171-942.000 Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 200 206 212 218 224 

101-171-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 750 772 795 818 842 

101-171-957.002 Training Expense 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-171-957.003 Employee Meals - Commission Food 500 1,545 1,591 1,638 _ 1,687 _ 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 123,786 126,159 129,941 133,835 137,844 

Totals for dept 171, - Mayor 597,884 749,122 771,320 794,179 817,713 

Dept 191- Elections 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-191-702.000 Salaries & Wages 55,252 56,909 58,616 60,374 62,185 

101-191-702.004 Overtime Wages 23,876 24,592 25,329 26,088 

101-191-702.020 SALARIES & WAGES (NON FICA) 31,475 32,419 33,391 34,392 35,423 

101-191-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 1,596 1,643 1,692 1,742 1,794 

101-191-702.104 MAINTENANCE - OVERTIME 3,198 3,293 3,391 3,492 3,596 

101-191-705.002 Temporary/Part-time Clerical/Tech 5,000 
101-191-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 6,881 7,087 7,299 7,517 7,742 

101-191-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 18,393 18,944 19,512 20,097 20,699 

101-191-717.000 Life Insurance 730 751 773 796 819 

101-191-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 3,897 4,013 4,133 4,256 4,383 

101-191-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 3,913 2,238 2,305 2,374 2,445 

101-191-719.001 Dental Insurance 416 428 440 453 466 

101-191-721.010 Health Care Waiver 7,293 7,511 7,736 7,968 8,207 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 138,044 159,112 163,880 168,790 173,847 

Page 8 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
SUPPLIES 

101-191-727.000 Office Supplies 2,650 2,703 2,757 2,812 2,868 
101-191-728.000 Postage 16,840 6,120 6,242 6,366 6,493 

101-191-729.001 Printed Forms 4,905 5,003 5,103 5,205 5,309 

101-191-740.000 Operating Supplies 5,150 5,253 5,358 5,465 5,574 

SUPPLIES 29,545 19,079 19,460 19,848 20,244 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-191-809.000 Services-Elections 18,630 19,188 19,763 20,355 20,965 

101-191-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 38 39 40 41 42 

101-191-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 366 376 387 398 409 

101-191-861.000 Travel Expenses 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 1,156 

101-191-902.005 Public Notices 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 5,794 

101-191-932.010 Services - Maintenance-All Other Eq 2,884 2,970 3,059 3,150 3,244 

101-191-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 824 848 873 899 925 

101-191-957.002 Training Expense 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 5,794 

101-191-957.003 Employee Meals - Commission Food 824 848 873 899 925 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 34,896 35,937 37,012 38,117 39,254 

Totals for dept 191- Elections 202,485 214,128 220,352 226,755 233,345 

Dept 201-Accounting 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-201-818.000 Other Professional Services 289,200 297,600 297,600 297,600 306,500 

101-201-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 154 158 162 166 170 

101-201-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,097 1,129 1,162 1,196 1L~3_! __ 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 290,451 298,887 298,924 298,962 307,901 

Totals for dept 201-Accounting 290,451 298,887 298,924 298,962 307,901 

Page 9 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTiAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 202 - Income Tax Administration 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-202-702.000 Salaries & Wages 113,141 116,535 120,031 123,631 127,339 
101-202-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 9,083 9,355 9,635 9,924 10,221 
101-202-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 18,232 18,778 19,341 19,921 20,518 
101-202-717.000 Life Insurance 1,396 1,437 1,480 1,524 1,569 
101-202-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 3,150 3,244 3,341 3,441 3,544 
101-202-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 450 463 476 490 504 
101-202-719.001 Dental Insurance 652 671 691 711 732 
101-202-721.010 Health Care Waiver 5,593 5,760 5,932 6,109 6,29_~~-

PERSONNEL SERVICES 151,697 156,243 160,927 165,751 170,719 

SUPPLIES 

101-202-727.000 Office Supplies 750 765 780 795 810 
101-202-728.001 Postage - Large Mailing 37,500 38,250 39,015 39,795 40,590 
101-202-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 700 714 728 742 756 
101-202-740.000 Operating Supplies 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

SUPPLIES 41,950 42,789 43,644 44,515 45,402 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-202-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 2,000 2,060 2,121 2,184 2,249 

101-202-818.061 Prof. Serv-lnnovative Software Serv 290,000 290,000 290,000 290,000 290,000 

101-202-818.601 PROF. SERV-INNOV SOFT - DELINQ COLLECTl1 15,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 

101-202-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 115 118 121 124 127 

101-202-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 731 752 774 797 820 

101-202-861.000 Travel Expenses 400 412 424 436 449 

101-202-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 57,500 59,225 61,001 62,831 64,715 

101-202-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 5,059 5,211 5,367 5,528 5,694 

101-202-957 .002 Training Expense 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 373,805 376,318 378,903 381,567 384,310 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

101-202-977.005 Furniture & Fixtures 1,800 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,800 

Totals for qept 202 - Income Tax Administration 569,252 575,350 583,474 591,833 600,431 

Page 10 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ------
Dept 206 - Finance Administration 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-206-702.000 Salaries & Wages 298,771 406,547 418,743 431,305 444,244 
101-206-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 769 

101-206-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 23,677 30,966 31,894 32,850 33,835 
101-206-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 43,150 34,679 35,719 36,790 37,893 
101-206-717.000 Life Insurance 4,740 5,140 5,294 5,452 5,615 
101-206-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 18,514 26,033 26,813 27,617 28,445 

101-206-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 871 1,202 1,238 1,275 1,313 
101-206-719.001 Dental Insurance 2,119 1,655 1,704 1,755 1,807 
101-206-721.010 Health Care Waiver 9,967 10,266 10,573 10,890 ll,2J:_~--

PERSONNEL SERVICES 402,578 516,488 531,978 547,934 564,368 

SUPPLIES 

101-206-727.000 Office Supplies 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

101-206-728.000 P~stage 1,600 1,632 1,664 1,697 1,730 

101-206-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

SUPPLIES 5,600 5,712 5,825 5,940 6,057 

Page 11 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-206-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 1,350 1,390 1,431 1,473 1,517 

101-206-818.000 Other Professional Services 36,700 37,801 38,935 40,103 41,306 

101-206-818.065 Prof. Serv- P&M - Budget 15,400 15,800 16,200 16,600 17,000 

101-206-818.080 PROF. SERV - BS&A 20,310 20,780 21,260 21,750 22,260 

101-206-818.090 PROF. SERV.-SHREDDING 500 515 530 545 561 

101-206-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 385 396 407 419 431 

101-206-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 2,924 3,011 3,101 3,194 3,289 

101-206-861.004 Services - Travel-Mileage 500 515 530 545 561 

101-206-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 5,500 5,665 5,834 6,009 6,189 

101-206-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 23,906 24,623 25,362 26,123 26,906 

101-206-942.000 Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 150 154 158 162 166 

101-206-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 1,200 1,236 1,273 1,311 1,350 

101-206-957.002 Training Expense 5,500 5,665 5,834 6,009 6,189 

101-206-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 500 ------------ 2,459 -----------
2,533 2,69~---- 2,687 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 114,825 120,010 123,388 126,852 130,412 

Totals for dept 206 - Finance Administration 523,003 642,210 661,191 680,726 700,837 

Dept 215 - City <;:lerk 

PERSONNEL SERVICES. 

101-215-702.000 Salaries & Wages 189,841 157,467 162,191 167,056 172,067 

101-215-702.004 Overtime Wages 1,000 705 726 747 769 

101-215-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-215-715.000 F..I.C.A. - City Contribution 14,523 12,045 12,406 12,778 13,161 

101-215-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 43,150 25,664 26,433 27,225 28,041 

101-215-717.000 Life Insurance 2,554 1,975 2,034 2,095 2,157 

101-215-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 11,145 8,930 9,197 9,472 9,756 

101-215-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 553 463 476 490 504 

101-215-719.001 Dental Insurance 1,877 1,020 1,050 1,081 1,113 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 264,643 208,269 214,513 220,944 227,568 

SUPPLIES 

101-215-727.000 Office Supplies 3,863 3,940 4,018 4,098 4,179 

101-215-728.000 Postage 1,030 1,050 1,071 1,092 1,113 

101-215-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 412 420 428 436 444 ------- -------- ----
SUPPLIES 5,305 5,410 5,517. 5,626 5,736 

Page 12 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ------

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-215-816.005 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - PUBLIC RELATION 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

101-215-818.000 Other Professional Services 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

101-215-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 654 673 693 713 734 

101-215-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 2,558 2,634 2,713 2,794 2,877 

101-215-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

101-215-902 .004 Ordinances 23,000 16,974 17,483 18,007 18,547 

101-215-902.005 Public Notices 9,000 8,755 9,017 9,287 9,565 

101-215-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 25,394 26,156 26,940 27,749 28,581 

101-215-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 103 106 109 112 115 

101-215-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 412 424 436 449 462 

101-215-957.002 Training Expense 4,120 4,243 4,370 4,501 4,636 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 68,241 63,055 64,941 66,885 68,886 

Totals for dept 215 - City Clerk 338,189 276,734 284,971 293,455 302,190 

Dept 228 - Information Technology 

SUPPLIES 

101-228-727.000 Office Supplies 400 408 416 424 432 

101-228-728.000 Postage 

101-228-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 4,380 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

101-228-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

SUPPLIES 7,780 13,468 13,537 13,607 13,678 

Page 13 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-228-818.000 Other Professional Services 15,000 4,900 4,900 4,900 4,900 
101-228-818.063 Prof. Serv-Sarcom 310,000 310,000 310,000 310,000 320,000 
101-228-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 543 559 575 592 609 
101-228-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,462 1,505 1,550 1,596 1,643 
101-228-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 

101-228-932.012 Services - Maintenance-Comptr Equip 25,300 25,450 36,200 37,950 37,950 

101-228-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 50 51 52 53 54 ---------
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 352,355 342,465 353,277 355,091 365,156 

Totals for dept 228 - Information Technology 360,135 355,933 366,814 368,698 378,834 

Dept 253 - Treasurer 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-253-702.000 Salaries & Wages 209,227 215,503 221,968 228,627 235,485 

101-253-702.004 Overtime Wages 439 452 465 478 492 

101-253-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 17,025 17,535 18,061 18,602 19,160 

101-253-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 13,981 14,400 14,832 15,276 15,734 

101-253-717.000 Life Insurance 2,442 2,515 2,590 2,667 2,747 

101-253-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 5,950 6,128 6,311 6,500 6,695 

101-253-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 875 901 928 955 983 

101-253-719.001 Dental Insurance 756 778 801 825 849 

101-253-721.010 He·alth Care Waiver 12,886 13,272 13,670 14,080 14,502 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 263,581 271,484 279,626 288,010 296,647 

SUPPLIES 

101-253-727.000 Office Supplies 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

101-253-728.000 Postage 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

101-253-728.001 Postage - Large Mailing 16,000 16,320 16,646 16,978 17,317 

101-253-729.001 Printed Forms 8,500 8,670 8,843 9,019 9,199 

101-253-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

SUPPLIES 30,000 30,600 31,210 31,831 32,465 

Page 14 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-253-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 300 309 318 327 336 

101-253-812.000 Services - Armored Car Services 11,000 11,330 11,669 12,019 12,379 

101-253-818.000 Other Professional Services 500 515 530 545 561 

101-253-818.008 Bank Service Charges 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-253-818.080 PROF. SERV - BS&A 7,840 7,980 8,120 8,260 8,400 

101-253-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

101-253-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 423 435 448 461 474 

101-253-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,097 1,129 1,162 1,196 1,231 

101-253-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 15,178 15,633 16,102 16,585 17,083 

101-253-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 200 206 112 218 224 

101-253-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 300 309 318 327 336 

101-253-957.002 Training Expense 4,400 4,532 4,667 4,807 4,951 

101-253-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 100 103 106 ·. 1-09 112 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 49,338 50,721 52,138 53,594 55,088 

Totals for dept 253 -Treasurer 342,919 352,805 362,974 373,435 384,200 

Dept 255 - MEDICAL MARIHUANA APPLICATIONS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-255-804.000 Legal Services 10,500 10,815 11,139 11,473 11,817 

101-255-804.018 Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 50,000 

101-255-816.006 PROF. SERV. -MED MARIHUANA APPLICATIOI 8,395 

101-255-816.007 PROF. SERV. -FINANCIAL ADVISOR TO CC 120,000 

101-255-816.008 PROF. SERV. -HEARING OFFICER 30,000 -----
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 218,895 10,815 11,139 11,473 11,817 

Totals for dept 255 - MEDICAL MARIHUANA APPLICATIONS 218,895 10,815 11,139 11,473 11,817 

Dept 257 - Assessor 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-257-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

PERSONNEL S.ERVICES -3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

SUPPLIES 

101-257-728.000 Postage 11,000 11,220 11,444 11,672 11,905 

SUPPLIES 11,000 11,220 11,444 11,672 11,905 

Page 15 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-257-818.015 Assessor Svce- Oakland Cnty 413,270 417,000 421,000 433,908 433,908 
101-257-957.002 Training Expense 75 77 79 81 83 
101-257-957.003 Employee Meals - Commission Food 500 515 530 545 561 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 413,845 417,592 421,609 434,534 434,552 

Totals for dept 257 -Assessor 427,845 431,902 436,235 449,483 449,832 

Dept 265 - Building Maintenance 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-265-702.000 Salaries & Wages 97,675 100,605 103,623 106,731 109,932 
101-265-702.002 Temporary Employee Wages 

101-265-702.004 Overtime Wages 20,755 21,377 22,018 22,678 23,358 
101-265-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 600 618 636 655 674 
101-265-715.000 F.1.C.A. - City Contribution 9,990 10,289 10,597 10,914 11,241 
101-265-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 23,050 23,741 24,453 25,186 25,941 
101-265-717.000 Life Insurance 1,382 1,423 1,465 1,508 1,553 
101-265-718.S00 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1,957 2,015 2,075 2,137 2,201 
101-265-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 6,804 7,008 7,218 7,434 7,657 
101-265-719.001 Dental Insurance 525 540 556 572 589 
101-265-721.010 Health Care Waiver 20,179 20,784 21,407 22,049 22,710 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 182,917 188,400 194,048 199,864 205,856 

SUPPLIES 

101-265-727.000 Office Supplies 106 108 110 112 114 

101-265-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 
101-265-746.001 Personal Protective Wear 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 
101-265-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 2,781 2,836 2,892 2,949 3,007 
101-265-749.002 Tools & Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 
101-265-776.001 Janitorial Supplies 1,545 1,575 1,606 1,638 1,670 
101-265-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 8,000 8,160 8,323 8,489 8,658 
101-265-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

SUPPLIES 24,832 25,327 25,831 26,344 26,867 

Page 16 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ------
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-265-810.000 Services - Inspection Fees 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-265-818.000 Other Professional Services 2,060 2,121 2,184 2,249 2,316 

101-265-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 9,000 9,270 9,548 9,834 10,129 

101-265-818.037 Contractual Janitorial Services 55,000 56,650 58,349 60,099 61,901 

101-265-818.049 Prof Tech Licensee Fee Reimbur 93 95 97 99 101 

101-265-818.236 PROF. SERVICE - TREE SERVICES 2,575 2,652 2,731 2,812 2,896 
101-265-818.245. PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 25,750 26,522 27,317 28,136 28,980 

101-265-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 

101-265-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 38 39 40 41 42 

101-265-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 366 376 387 398 409 

101-265-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 26,938 27,746 28,579 29,436 30,319 

101-265-921.000 Utilities Electricity 41,200 42,436 43,709 45,020 46,370 

101-265-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 27,145 27,959 28,797 29,660 30,549 

101-265-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 23,006 23,696 24,406 25,138 25,892 

101-265-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 25,750 26,522 27,317 28,136 28,980 

101-265-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-265-931.003 Services - Building Equip Ma int 18,000 18,540 19,096 19,668 20,2S8 

101-265-932.008 Services - Maintenance-Fire Exting 1,800 1,854 1,909 1,966 2,024 

101-265-932.010 Services - Maintenance-All Other Eq 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 

101-265-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 1,!.?_~--
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 272,751 280,928 289,347 298,017 306,948 

Totals for dept 265 - Building Maintenance 480,500 494,655 509,226 524,225 539,671 

Dept 266 -ATTORNEY 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-266~804.000 Legal Services 27,000 27,810 28,644 29,503 30,388 

101-266-804.018 Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 200,000 355,350 366,010 376,990 388,300 

101-266-818.000 Other Professional Services 15,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 

101-266-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 5 5 5 5 5 

101-266-959.003 Lawsuits 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 942,005 1,098,615 1,110,572 1,122,888 435,574 

Totals for dept 266 - ATTORNEY 942,005 1,098,615 1,110,572 1,122,888 435,574 

Page 17 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GLNUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 270 - Personnel Services 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-270-702.000 Salaries & Wages 109,047 112,318 115,687 119,157 122,731 
101-270-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 8,900 9,167 9,442 9,725 10,016 
101-270-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 6,685 6,885 7,091 7,303 7,522 
101-270-717.000 Life Insurance 1,379 1,420 1,462 1,505 1,550 
101-270-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 4,434 4,567 4,704 4,845 4,990 
101-270-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 375 386 397 408 420 
101-270-719.001 Dental Insurance 991 1,020 1,050 1,081 1,113 
101-270-721.010 Health Care Waiver 7,293 7,511 7,736 7,968 8,207 
101-270-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 144,104 148,424 152,873 157,455 162,175 

SUPPLIES 

101-270-727.000 Office Supplies 500 510 520 530 540 

101-270-728.000 Postage 500 510 520 530 540 
101-270-730.000 Publications & Maps 500 510 520 530 540 

101-270-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,000 2,040 2,080 2,121 2,16~------------
SUPPLIES 3,500 3,570 3,640 3,711 3,783 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-270-818.000 Other Professional Services 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-270-818.080 PROF. SERV - BS&A 4,290 4,418 4,500 4,610 4,720 

101-270-835.001 Services - Physicals 6,000 6,180 6,365 6,555 6,751 

101-270-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 192 197 202 208 214 

101-270-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 731 752 774 797 820 

101-270-861.004 Services - Travel-Mileage 2,000 2,060 2,121 2,184 2,249 

101-270-902.001 Recruitment Advertising 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-270-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 10,119 10,423 10,735 11,057 11,389 

101-270-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 100 103 106 109 112 

101-270-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 100 103 106 109 112 

101-270-957.002 Training Expense 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-270-957.004 Employment & Promotion Test 500 515 530 545 561 

101-270-959.000 Miscell,rneous Expenses 750 772 795 818 842 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 39,782 40,973 42,146 43,381 44,648 

Totals for dept 270 - Personnel Services 187,386 192,967 198,659 204,547 210,606 

Page 18 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 301- POLICE/SHERIFF 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-301-702.000 Salaries & Wages 53,061 54,652 56,291 57,979 59,718 

101-301-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 19,192 19,767 20,360 20,970 21,599 

101-301-702.104 MAINTENANCE- OVERTIME 9,777 10,070 10,372 10,683 11,003 

101-301-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 6,608 6,806 7,010 7,220 7,436 

101-301-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 1,454 1,497 1,541 1,587 1,634 

101-301-717.000 Life Insurance 943 971 1,000 1,030 1,060 

101-301-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 2,058 2,119 2,182 2,247 2,314 

101-301-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,639 1,688 1,738 1,790 1,843 

101-301-719.001 Dental Insurance 269 277 285 293 301 

101-301-721.010 Health Care Waiver 5,593 5,76Q 5,932 6,109 6,292 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 100,594 103,607 106,711 109,908 113,200 

SUPPLIES 

101-301-776.001 Janitorial Supplies 100 102 104 106 108 

101-301-776.002 · Building Maintenance Supplies 2,300 2,346 2,392 2,439 2,487 

101-301-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 300 306 312 318 324 -
SUPPLIES 2,700 2,754 2,808 •2,863 2,919 

Page 19 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ----
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-301-802.001 Registration-Underground Fuel T;rnk 500 515 530 545 561 
101-301-818.000 Other Professional Services 4,200 4,326 4,455 4,588 4,725 
101-301-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 650 669 689 709 730 
101-301-818.037 Contractual Janitorial Services 38,275 39,423 40,605 41,823 43,077 
101-301-818.068 Prof. Serv-Oakland Co. Sheriff 11,617,805 11,955,831 12,434,064 12,931,427 13,448,684 
101-301-818.069 Prof. Serv-Oakland Co. Sheriff OT 864,000 889,920 923,520 960,461 998,879 
101-301-818.245 PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 17,000 17,510 18,035 18,576 19,133 
101-301-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 2,160 2,224 2,290 2,358 2,428 
101-301-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 

101-301-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 22,722 23,404 24,106 24,829 25,574 
101-301-921.000 Utilities Electricity 50,882 52,408 53,980 55,599 57,266 
101-301-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 14,090 14,512 14,947 15,395 15,856 
101-301-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 13,791 14,204 14,630 15,068 15,520 
101-301-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 
101-301-931.003 Services - Building Equip Maint 6,000 6,180 6,365 6,555 6,751 
101-301-932.008 Services - Maintenance-Fire Exting 800 824 848 873 899 
101-301-932.010 Services - Maintenance-All Other Eq 500 515 530 545 561 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 12,663,375 13,032,765 13,550,203 14,090,278 14,651,898 

Totals for dept 301- POLICE/SHERIFF 12,766,669 13,139,126 13,659,722 14,203,049 14,768,017 

Dept 309 - CROSSING GUARDS 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-309-702.019 Wages School Crossing Guards 6,323 6,512 6,707 6,908 7,115 

101-309-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 484 498 512 527 542 

101-309-719.000 Workers Cortipensation Insurance 550 566 582 599 616 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 7,357 7,576 7,801 8,034 8,273 

Totals for dept 309 - CROSSING GUARDS 7,357 7,576 7,801 8,034 8,273 

Dept 325 - COMMUNICATIONS/DISPATCH 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-325-818.068 Prof. Serv-Oakland Co. Sheriff 206,971 213;180 221,707 230,575 239,798 -----
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 206,971 213,180 221,707 230,575 239,798 

----------R 
Totals for dept 325 - COMMUNICATIONS/DISPATCH 206,971 213,180 221,707 230,575 239,798 

Page 20 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR Cl1Y OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 336 - FIRE DEPARTMENT 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-336-818.000 Other Professional Services 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-336-818.075 PROF. SERV-WATERFORD FIRE DEPT 7,693,142 8,077,799 8,481,689 8,905,774 9,351,062 

101-336-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 9,244 9,521 9,807 10,101 10,404 

101-336-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 65,000 66,950 68,958 71,026 73,156 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 7,772,386 8,159,420 8,565,758 8,992,364 9,440,248 

Totals for dept 336 - FIRE DEPARTMENT 7,772,386 8,159,420 8,565,758 8,992,364 9,440,248 

Dept 445 - DRAINS - PUBLIC BENEFIT 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-445-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 5,400 5,562 5,728 5,899 6,075 

101-445-938.000 Drain Maintenance Oakland Cnty 300,000 309,000 318,270 327,818 337,652 

101-445-938.010 CLINTON RIVER SPILLWAY ASSESSMENT 6,000 6,180 6,365 6,555 6,751 

101-445-955.100 MDEQ PERMIT FEES 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 316,400 325,892 335,667 345,735 356,104 

Totals for dept 445 - DRAINS - PUBLIC BENEFIT 316,400 325,892 335,667 345,735 356,104 

Dept 447 - Engineering 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-447-702.000 Salaries & Wages 120,896 124,522 128,257 132,104 136,067 

101-447-702.004 Overtime Wages 6,013 6,193 6,378 6,569 6,766 

101-447-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 600 618 636 655 674 

101-447-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 10,427 10,739 ll,061 ll,392 ll,733 

101-447-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 17,302 17,821 18,355 18,905 19,472 

101-447-717.000 Life Insurance 1,459 1,616 1,664 1,713 1,764 

101-447-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1,757 1,809 1,863 1,918 1,975 

101-447-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 4,821 4,526 4,661 4,800 4,944 

101-447-719.001 Dental Insurance 998 905 932 959 987 

101-447-721.010 Health Care Waiver 7,293 7,5ll 7,736 7,968 8,207 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 171,566 176,260 181,543 186,983 192,589 

Page 21 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ---------
SUPPLIES 

101-447-727.000 Office Supplies 1,030 1,050 1,071 1,092 1,113 

101-447-728'.000 Postage 200 204 208 212 216 

101-447-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,000 2,040 2,080 2,121 2,163 

101-447-746.001 Personal Protective Wear 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 

101-447-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

101-447-749.002 Tools & Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

SUPPLIES 12,430 12,678 12,930 13,186 13,447 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-447-806.000 Engineering Services 250,000 257,500 265,225 273,181 281,376 

101-447-806.001 STORMWATER SERVICES 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

101-447-806.002 ASSET MANAGEMENT 100,000 132,612 136,590 140,687 144,907 

101-447-806.004 PLAN REVIEW 35,000 36,050 37,131 38,244 39,391 

101-447-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 22,500 23,175 23,870 24,586 25,323 

101-447-818.049 Prof Tech Licensee Fee Reimbur 90 92 94 96 98 

101-447-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 77 79 81 83 85 

101-447-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,097 1,129 1,162 1,196 1,231 

101-447-861.004 Services - Travel-Mileage 150 154 158 162 166 

101-447-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 11,046. 11,377 11,719 12,070 12,432 

101-447-955.100 MDEQ PERMIT FEES 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 5,794 

101-447-957.002 Training Expense 6,000 6,180 6,365 6,555 6,751 --------
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 434,110 476,742 491,040 505,763 520,929 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

101-447-977.008 Special Equipment 5,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 5,000 

Totals for dept 447 - Engineering 623,106 665,680 685,513 705,932 726,965 

Dept 448 - Street Lighting 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-448-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 2,400 2,472 2,546 2,622 2,700 

101-448-924.001 Utilities street lighting 817,412 841,934 867,192 893,207 920,003 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 819,812 844,406 86~,738 895,829 922,703· 

Totals for dept 448 - Street Lighting 819,812 844,406 869,738 895,829 922,703 

Page 22 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-458-702.000 Salaries & Wages 263,529 271,434 279,577 287,964 296,602 

101-458-702.004 Overtime Wages 9,117 9,390 9,671 9,961 10,259 
101-458-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 600 618 636 655 674 

101-458-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 22,431 23,103 23,796 24,509 25,244 

101-458-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 13,748 14,160 14,584 15,021 15,471 

101-458-717.000 Life Insurance 3,036 3,465 3,568 3,675 3,785 

101-458-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 10,602 10,920 11,247 11,584 11,931 

101-458-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 6,219 5,089 5,241 5,398 5,559 

101-458-719.001 Dental Insurance 1,406 1,080 1,112 1,145 1,179 

101-458-719.007 WORKERS COMP ALLOCATION 4,446 4,579 4,716 4,857 5,002 

101-458-721.010 Health Care Waiver 22,854 23,539 24,245 24,972 25,721 

101-458-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 360,988 370,467 381,575 393,018 404,802 

SUPPLIES 

101-458-727.000 Office Supplies 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

101-458-728.000 Postage 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

101-458-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 91,500 93,330 95,196 97,099 99,040 

101-458-746.001 Personal Protective Wear 6,000 6,120 6,242 6,366 6,493 

101-458-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 4,000 4,080 4,161 4,244 4,328 

101-458-749.005 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 25,000 25,500 26,010 26,530 27,060 

SUPPLIES 129,000 131,580 134,209 136,890 139,624 

Page 23 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-458-818.000 Other Professional Services 19,300 19,879 20,475 21,089 21,722 
101-458-818.005 Equipment Towing Charges 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 
101-458-818.080 PROF. SERV - BS&A 1,470 1,510 1,550 1,590 1,630 
101-458-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 654 673 693 713 734 

101-458-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 2,193 2,258 2,325 2,394 2,465 
101-458-861.000 Travel Expenses 

101-458-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 69,269 71,347 73,487 75,692 77,963 
101-458-921.000 Utilities Electricity 2,214 2,280 2,348 2,418 2,490 

101-458-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 2,310 2,379 2,450 2,523 2,598 

101-458-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 4,696 4,836 4,981 5,130 5,283 

101-458-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 17,387 

101-458-932.004 Services - Maintenance-Vehicles 90,000 92,700 95,481 98,345 101,295 

101-458-941.000 Services - Building & Land Rental 91,844 94,599 97,436 100,359 103,369 

101-458-942.000 Services~ Equipment Rentl Non-City 

101-458-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 

101-458-957.002 Training Expense 8,000 8,~J0 8,487 8,741 9,003 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 308,900 318,159 327,694 337,513 347,626 

Totals for dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 798,888 820,206 843,478 867,421 892,052 

Dept 674 - Tele-van Services 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-674-818.000 Other Professional Services 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

Totals for dept 674 - Tele-van Services 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

Page 24 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 690 - REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-690-702.000 Salaries & Wages 189,293 275,999 284,278 292,806 301,590 

101-690-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 15,039 21,898 22,554 23,230 23,926 

101-690-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 45,272 44,7S8 46,100 47,483 48,907 

101-690-717.000 Life Insurance 2,486 3,471 3,575 3,682 3,792 

101-690-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 11,858 18,468 19,022 19,592 20,179 

101-690-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 327 1,081 1,113 1,146 1,180 

101-690-719.001 Dental Insurance 2,233 1,918 1,975 2,034 2,095 

101-690-719.007 WORKERS COMP ALLOCATION 12,139 12,503 12,878 13,264 13,661 

101-690-721.010 Health Care Waiver 7,293 10,266 10,573 10,890 11,216 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 285,940 390,362 402,068 414,127 426,546 

SUPPLIES 

101-690-727.000 Office Supplies 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

101-690-728.000 Postage 500 510 520 530 540 

SUPPLIES 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,590 1,621 

Page 25 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-690-804.016 ~EGAL SERVICES-IRON MOUNTAIN 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 
101-690-816.003 Services - Demolition 106,000 109,180 112,455 115,828 119,302 
101-690-816.009 PROFESSIONAL SERV. - CENSUS 25,000 
101-690-816.010 BLIGHT COURT 90,000 
101-690-818.000 Other Professional Services 20,000 92,700 95,481 98,345 101,295 
101-690-818.001 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-WADE TRIM 

101-690-818.060 Prof. Serv-Wade Trim 30,000 30,900 31,827 32,781 33,764 
101-690-818.3i2 NUISANCE ABATEMENT-COURT ORDERED 40,000 41,200 42,436 43,709 45,020 
101-690-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 154 158 162 166 170 
101-690-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,828 1,882 1,938 1,996 2,055 
101-690-861.000 Travel Expenses 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 
101-690-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 500 515 530 545 561 
101-690-902.000 Advertising 5,000 32,754 33,736 34,748 35,790 

101-690-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 22,262 22,930 23,618 24,326 25,056 
101-690-942.000 Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 50 51 52 53 54 
101-690-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 500 515 530 545 561 

101-690-956.239 CONTRIBUTION TO TIFA 2 253,682 248,862 220,806 203,181 185,485 

101-690-956.240 CONTRIBUTION TO TIFA 3 490,946 451,293 748,148 748,641 346,481 

101-690-957.002 Training Expense 3,000, 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,37_~--
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 1,092,922 1,040,150 1,319,143 1,312,509 903,467 

Totals for dept 690 - REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 1,380,362 1,432,042 1,722,771 1,728,226 1,331,634 

Page 26 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 721- PLANNING 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-721-702.000 Salaries & Wages 194,480 200,314 206,323 212,512 218,887 
101-721-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 15,082 15,324 15,783 16,256 16,743 
101-721-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 20,666 40,064 41,265 42,502 43,777 
101-721-717.000 Life Insurance 2,648 2,532 2,607 2,685 2,765 
101-721-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 11,471 13,580 13,987 14,406 14,838 
101-721-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 603 695 715 736 758 

101-721-719.001 Dental Insurance 452 779 802 826 850 
101-721-721.010 Health Care Waiver 2,674 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 248,076 273,288 281,482 289,923 298,618 

SUPPLIES 

101-721-727.000 Office Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

101-721-728.000 Postage 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

101-721-729.001 Printed Forms 515 525 535 545 555 

101-721-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

101-721-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

101-721-740.000 Operating Supplies 

SUPPLIES 14,515 14,805 15,100 15,400 15,706 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-721-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

101-721-818.000 Other Professional Services 33,290 34,288 35,316 36,375 37,466 

101-721-818.001 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-WADE TRIM 

101-721-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 77 79 81 83 85 

101-721-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 731 752 774 797 820 

101-721-861.000 Travel Expenses 500 515 530 545 561 

101-721-902.005 Public Notices 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 5,794 

101-721-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 15,178 15,633 16,102 16,585 17,083 

101-721-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 515 530 545 561 577 

101-721-957.002 Training Expense 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 5,7~-~--
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 61,591 63,435 65,334 67,289 69,303 

Totals for dept 721- PLANNING 324,182 351,528 361,916 372,612 383,627 

Page 27 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ---------
Dept 733 - CODE ENFORCEMENT 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-733-702.000 Salaries & Wages 234,000 241,020 248,250 255,697 263,367 

101-733-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 

101-733-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 19,649 20,238 20,845 21,470 22,114 

101-733-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 1,813 1,867 1,923 1,980 2,039 

101-733-717.000 Life Insurance 2,959 3,047 3,138 3,232 3,328 

101-733-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 10,296 10,604 10,922 11,249 11,586 

101-733-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 10,600 10,918 11,245 11,582 11,929 

101-733-719.001 Dental Insurance 1,270 1,308 1,347 1,387 1,428 

101-733-721.010 Health Care Waiver 22,854 23,539 24,245 24,972 25,721 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 303,441 312,541 321,9i5 331,569 341,512 

SUPPLIES 

101-733-727.000 Office Supplies 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

101-733-728.000 Postage 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

101-733-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

101-733-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

SUPPLIES 6,000 6,120 6,241 6,365 6,490 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-733-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

101-733-818.000 Other Professional Services 

101-733-818.005 Equipment Towing Charges 500 515 530 545 561 

101-733-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

101-733-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 154 158 162 166 170 

101-733-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,462 1,505 1,550 1,596 1,643 

101-733-861.000 Travel Expenses 750 772 795 818 842 

101-733-902.005 Public Notices 

101-733-914.000 Insurance Property Co.verage 27,513 28,338 29,189 30,064 30,966 

101-733-932:004 Services - Maintenance-Vehicles 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 

101-733-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 500 515 530 545 561 

101-733-957.002 Training Expense 3,600 3,708 3,819 3,933 4,050 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 41,979 43,236 44,530 45,859 47,229 

Totals for dept 733 - CODE ENFORCEMENT 351,420 361,897 372,686 383,793 395,231 

Page 28 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 756 - RECREATION FACILITY 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

101-756-971.001 Land Acquisition of Real Property 3,150,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,150,000 

Totals for dept 756 - RECREATION FACILITY 3,150,000 

Dept 774- CITY EVENTS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-774-745.002 CITY EVENTS - DREAM CRUISE 57,000 58,710 60,471 62,285 64,153 

101-774-745.003 CITY EVENTS 10,000 23,175 23,870 24,586 25,323 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 67,000 81,88S 84,341 86,871 89,476 

Totals for dept 774 - CITY EVENTS 67,000 81,885 84,341 86,871 89,476 

Dept 818 - PARKS GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-818-702.000 Salaries & Wages 20,035 20,636 21,2S5 21,892 22,548 

101-818-702.004 Overtime Wages 5,037 5,188 5,343 5,503 5,668 

101-818-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 600 618 636 655 674 

101-818-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 2,167 2,232 2,298 2,366 2,436 

101-818-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 1,768 1,821 1,875 1,931 1,988 

101-818-717.000 Life I nsu ranee 294 302 311 320 329 

101-818-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 290 298 306 315 324 

101-818-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,661 1,710 1,761 1,813 1,867 

101-818-719.001 Dental Insurance 108 111 114 117 120 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 31,960 32,916 33,899 34,912 35,954 

Page 29 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
SUPPLIES 

101-818-745.012 Recreation Supplies - Parks 10,000 10,200 10,404 10,612 10,824 
101-818-746.001 Personal Protective Wear 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 
lO;J.-818-749.001 Motor fuel, Oil & Lubricants 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 
101-818-749.002 Tools & Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 
101-818-749.005 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 2,000 2,040 2,080 2,121 2,163 
101-818-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 
101-818-779.001 Sand & Gravel 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 
101-818-780.001 Forestry Supplies 500 510 520 530 540 
101-818-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 

SUPPLIES 32,700 33,354 34,019 34,697 35,388 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

101-818-808.000 NEIGHBORHOOD PROJECTS 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 
101-818-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 
101-818-818.000 Other Professional Services 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 
101-818-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 
101-818-818.236 PROF. SERVICE - TREE SERVICES 125,000 128,750 132,612 136,590 140,687 
101-818-822.000 Services-Collected Waste Disposal 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 
101-818-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 3,594 3,702 3,813 3,927 4,045 
101-818-921.000 Utilities Electricity 3,650 3,759 3,871 3,987 4,106 
101-818-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 10,036 10,337 10,647 10,966 11,294 
101-818-931.000 Services - Buildings and Grounds 2,500 2,575 2,652 2,731 2,812 
101-818-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 2,500 2,575 2,652 2,731 2,812 
101-818-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 8,000 8,240 8,487 8,741 9,003 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 408,280 420,528 433,141 446,130 459,509 

-------
Totals for dept 818 - PARKS GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 472,940 486,798 501,059 515,739 530,851 

Page 30 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 861 - Retiree Fringes 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

101-861-718.002 P&F Pension - City Contribution 1,835,294 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 
101-861-718.007 GERS VEBA - City Contribution 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 --------

PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,835,294 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 

Totals for dept 861- Retiree Fringes 1,835,294 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 

Dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 

101-966-999.202 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 202 

101-966-999.203 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 203 

101-966-999.208 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 208 

101-966-999.209 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 209 693,053 352,978 363,188 373,695 384,508 

101-966-999.212 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 212 

101-966-999.226 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 226 

101-966-999.231 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 231 

101-966-999.276 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 276 1,834,759 1,885,304 1,948,544 2,013,817 2,081,177 

101-966-999.585 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 585 564 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,373 

101-966-999.659 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 659 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (O.UT 2,528,376 3,574,654 3,648,104 3,723,884 3,802,058 

Totals for dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 2,528,376 3,574,654 3,648,104 3,723,884 3,802,058 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 39,644,992 40,261,853 41,822,483 43,150,635 43,434,130 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 101 (2,471,332) (2,175,126) (2,745,154) (3,217,297) (2,878,088) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 16,831,781 14,360,449 12,185,323 9,440,169 6,222,872 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 14,360,449 12,185,323 9,440,169 6,222,872 3,344,784 

Page 31 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET --

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

202-000-636.485 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES -TRAFFIC SIGNALS 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

STATE GRANTS 

202-000-539.000 State grants 200,000 

202-000-556.000 OTHER STATE GRANTS 

202-000-577.00.0 State gas & weight 5,392,400 5,500,248 5,610,252 5,722,457 5,836,906 

STATE GRANTS 5,592,400 5,500,248 5,610,252 5,722,457 5,836,906 

OTHER REVENUE 

202-000-686.000 REIMBURSEMENTS 

OTHER REVENUE 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

202-000-665.001 Investments Income 26,680 27,213 27,757 28,312 28,878 

202-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS --
INTEREST AND RENTS 26,680 27,213 27,757 28,312 28,878 

Totals for dept 000 - 5,619,080 5,527,461 5,638,009 5,750,769 5,865,784 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

202-966-699:101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

202-966-699.203 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 203 600,000 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 600,000 

Totals for dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 600,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 6,219,080 5,527,461 5,638,009 5,750,769 5,865,784 

Page 32 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR Cl1Y OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ---
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 443'- NONMOTORIZED 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

202-443-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 200,000 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 200,000 

Totals for dept 443 - NONMOTORIZED 200,000 

Dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

202-458-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 213,157 219,552 226,138 232,922 239,910 

202-458-967 .010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 96,030 98,911 101,878 104,935 108,083 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 309,187 318,463 328,016 337,857 347,993 

Totals for dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 309,187 318,463 328,016 337,857 347,993 

Dept 463 - Rountine Maintenance Roads 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

202-463-702.000 Salaries & Wages 97,864 100,799 103,822 106,936 110,144 

202-463-702.002 Temporary Employee Wages 

202-463-702.004 Overtime Wages 16,749 17,251 17,768 18,301 18,850 

202-463-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 9,710 10,001 10,301 10,610 10,928 

202-463-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 13,623 14,031 14,451 14,884 15,330 

202-463-717 .000 Life Insurance 1,367 1,408 1,450 1,493 1,537 

202-463-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 2,395 2,466 2,539 2,615 2,693 

202-463-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 6,857 7,062 7,273 7,491 7,715 

202-463-719.001 Dental Insurance 514 529 544 560 576 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 149,079 153,547 158,148 162,890 167,773 

Page 33 of 88 



06/25/2019 EiUDGE'r REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

SUPPLIES 

202-463-746.001 Personal Protective Wear 

202-463-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 

202-463-749.002 Tools & Supplies 

202-463-777.005 STREET LIGHT PARTS & SUPPLIES 90,000 91,800 93,636 95,508 97,418 

202-463-779.005 Surface Maint. - Temporary Asphalt 70,000 71,400 72,828 74,284 75,769 

202-463-779.006 Surface Ma int. - Permanent Asphalt 25,000 25,500 26,010 26,530 27,060 

202-463-779.007 Surface Maint. - Permanent Concrete 

202-463-779.008 Pavement Markings 231,750 75,000 245,934 75,000 

202-463-779.009 Other Road Maintenance Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

SUPPLIES 421,750 268,800 197,676 447,562 280,659 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

202-463-806.000 Engineering Services 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 

202-463-806.001 STORMWATER SERVICES 270,000 278,100 286,443 295,036 303,887 

202-463-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

202-463-818.000 Other Professional Services 50,000 . 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

202-463-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 35,000 36,050 37,131 38,244 39,391 

202-463-818.049 Prof Tech Licensee Fee Reimbur 2,500 2,575 2,652 2,731 2,812 

202-463-818.230 PROF. SERV - STREETLIGHT REPAIR 260,000 267,800 275,834 284,109 292,632 

202-463-818.236 PROF. SERVICE - TREE SERVICES 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

202-463-818.257 PROF SERV - GUARDRAILS 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,854 22,509 

202-463-818.260 OTHER PROF. SERV. - STREET PATCHING 200,000 206,000 212,180 218,545 225,101 

202-463-822.000 Services-Collected Waste Disposal 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

202-463-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 

202-463-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 15,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 

202-463-942.000 Services - Equipment Ren~I Non-City 45,000 46,350 47,740 49,172 50,647 

202-463-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 80,000 82,400 84,872 87,418 90,040 

202-463-957.002 Training Expense 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 1,290,500 1,329,215 1,369,088 1,410,155 1,452,453 

Page 34 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

202-463-974.051 DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING BLVD WIDENING 3,500,000 

202-463-974.052 SAGINAW STREET IMPROVEMENT 

202-463-974.053 OPDYKE ROAD 

202-463-97 4.055 TO BE DETERMINED ROAD 350,000 

202-463-97 4.066 HILL STREET 

202-463-974.070 JOSLYN 

202-463-974.071 UNIVERSITY DRIVE 30,000 

202-463-974.072 CENTERPOINTE 888,000 

202-463-974.073 BALDWIN 3,162,428 263,200 

202-463-980.000 UNIVERSITY DRIVE: MLK TOE. CITY LIMIT 3,100,000 

202-463-982.000 SOUTH BLVD : WOODWARD TO MLK 

202-463-983.000 ORCHARD LAKE ROAD: VOORHEIS TO WOODWARD 1,191,343 

202-463-987.000 PERRY 30,000 1,250,000 

202-463-988.000 MILL 30,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,540,000 2,138,000 3,162,428 1,454,543 3,500,000 

Totals for dept 463 - Rountine Maintenance Roads 5,401,329 3,889,562 4,887,340 3,475,150 5,400,885 

Page 35 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 478 - Winter Maintenance 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

202-4 78-702.000 Salaries & Wages 99,795 102,788 105,871 109,047 112,318 
202-478-702.004 Overtime Wages 84,857 87,402 90,024 92,724 95,505 
202-4 78-715 .000 F .I .C.A. - City Contribution 12,634 13,013 13,403 13,805 14,219 
202-478-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 18,380 18,931 19,498 20,082 20,684 
202-478-717.000 Life Insurance 1,790 1,843 1,898 1,954 2,012 
202-478-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 3,470 3,574 3,681 3,791 3,904 
202-478-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 8,871 9,137 9,411 9,693 9,983 
202-478-719.001 Dental Insurance 654 673 693 713 734 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 230,451 237,361 244,479 251,809 259,359 

SUPPLIES 

202-478-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 

202-478-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 150,000 153,000 156,060 159,181 162,364 

202-478-779.009 Other Road Maintenance Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,41_~--
SUPPLIES 155,000 158,100 161,262 164,487 167,776 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

202-478-818.245 PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 

202-478-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 16~~~?:.~--
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

Totals for dept 478 - Winter Maintenance 535,451 549,961 564,876 580,205 .595,961 

Dept 485 - TRAFFIC CONTROL 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

202-485-702.000 Salaries & Wages 31,272 32,210 33,176 34,171 35,196 

202-485-702.004 Overtime Wages 2,207 2,273 2,341 2,411 2,483 

202-485-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 2,829 2,913 3,000 3,090 3,182 

202-485-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 11,778 12,131 12,494 12,868 13,254 

202-485-717.000 Life Insurance 406 418 430 442 455 

202-485-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1,503 1,548 1,594 1,641 1,690 

202-485-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,642 1,691 1,741 1,793 1,846 

202-485-719.001 Dental Insurance 273 281 289 297 305 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 51,910 53,465 55,065 56,713 58,411 

Page 36 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ---------
SUPPLIES 

202-485-777 .000 TRAFFIC CONTROL MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 

SUPPLIES 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

202-485-818.000 Other Professional Services 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

202-485-818.220 PROF. SERV-CN RAILWAY 

202-485-818.235 PROF. SERV - STREET SIGNS CONTRACTOR 

202-485-924.003 Utilities traffic sign a Is 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

Totals for dept 485 - TRAFFIC CONTROL 201,910 207,965 214,200 220,622 227,237 

----------
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 6,647,877 4,965,951 5,994,432 4,613,834 6,572,076 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 202 {428,797) 561,510 {356,423) 1,136,935 {706,292) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,194,588 765,791 1,327,301 970,878 · 2,107,813 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 765,791 1,327,301 970,878 2,107,813 1,401,521 

Page 37 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 203 - Local Streets 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

ST A TE GRANTS 

203-000-577.000 State gas & weight 1,644,000 1,676,880 1,710,417 1,744,625 1,779,517 

STATE GRANTS 1,644,000 1,676,880 1,710,417 1,744,625 1,779,517 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

203-000-665.00_1 Investments Income 27,941 28,499 29,068 29,649 30,241 

203-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 27,941 28,499 29,068 29,649 30,241 

---
Totals for dept 000 - 1,671,941 1,705,379 1,739,485 1,774,274 1,809,758 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

203-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,671,941 1,705,379 1,739,485 1,774,274 1,809,758 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 443 - NON MOTORIZED 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

203-443-974.009 Sidewalks 150,000 75,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 150,000 75,000 

Totals for dept 443 - NONMOTORIZED 150,000 75,000 

Page 38 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

203-458-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 94,574 97,411 100,333 103,343 106,443 
203-458-967 .010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 34,343 35,373 36,434 37,528 38~~?-~--

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 128,917 132,784 136,767 140,871 145,096 

Totals for dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 128,917 132,784 136,767 140,871 145,096 

Dept 463 - Rountine Maintenance Roads 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

203-463-702.000 Salaries & Wages 102,470 105,544 108,710 111,971 115,330 

203-463-702.002 Temporary Employee Wages 

203-463-702.004 Overtime Wages 22,625 23,303 24,002 24,722 25,463 

203-463-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 10,358 10,668 10,988 11,317 11,656 

203-463-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 16,822 17,326 17,845 18,380 18,931 

203-463-717.000 Life Insurance 1,478 1,522 1,567 1,614 1,662 

203-463-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 2,814 2,898 2,984 3,073 3,165 

203-463-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 7,089 7,301 7,520 7,745 7,977 

203-463-719.001 Dental Insurance 575 592 609 627 645 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 164,231 169,154 174,225 179,449 184,829 

SUPPLIES 

203-463-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 5,500 5,610 5,722 5,836 5,952 

203-463-749.002 Tools & Supplies 15,000 15,300 15,606 15,918 16,236 

203-463-777 .005 STREIT LIGHT PARTS & SUPPLIES 10,000 10,200 10,404 10,612 10,824 

203-463-779.005 Surface Maint. -Temporary Asphalt 50,000 51,000 52,020 53,060 54,121 

203-463-779.006 Surface Maint. - Permanent Asphalt 20,000 20,400 20,808 21,224 21,648 

203-463-779.007 Surface Maint. - Permanent Concrete 

203-463-779.008 Pavement Markings 25,000 25,500 26,010 26,530 27,060 

SUPPLIES 125,500 128,010 130,570 133,180 135,841 

Page 39 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

203-463-806.000 Engineering Services 75,000 77,250 79,567 81,954 84,412 

203-463-806.001 STORMWATER SERVICES 400,000 412,000 424,360 437,090 100,203 

203-463-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 

203-463-818.000 Other Professional Services 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,854 22,509 

203-463-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 15,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 

203-463-818.230 PROF. SERV - STREETLIGHT REPAIR 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

203-463-818.235 PROF. SERV - STREET SIGNS CONTRACTOR 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

203-463-818.236 PROF. SERVICE - TREE SERVICES 175,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 

203-463-818.257 PROF SERV - GUARDRAILS 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

203-463-818.260 OTHER PROF. SERV. - STREET PATCHING 225,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 100,000 

203-463-822 .000 Services-Collected Waste Disposal 25,000 25,750 26,522 27,317 28,136 

203-463-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 30,000 30,900 31,827 32,781 33,764 

203-463-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 70,000 72,100 74,263 76,490 78,784 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 1,205,000 1,163,900 1,198,815 1,234,773 768,572 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

203-463-97 4.055 TO BE DETERMINED ROAD 100,000 150,000 500,000 500,000 300,000 

203-463-974.069 KETTERING 

203-463-984.000 EARLMOOR: WOODWARD TO BASSETT 1,464,000 

203-463-986.000 IRWIN : SANFORD TO MLK 

203-463-989.000 HIGHWOOD BLVD. 

203-463-990.000 FERRY 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 100,000 1,614,000 500,000 500,000 3oo;ooa 

Totals for dept 463 - Rountine Maintenance Roads 1,594,-731 3,075,064 2,003,610 2,047,402 1,389,242 

Page 40 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET -------
Dept 478 - Winter Maintenance 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

203-4 78-702.000 Salaries & Wages 80,648 83,067 85,559 88,125 90,768 
203-478-702.004 Overtime Wages 23,600 24,308 25,037 25,788 26,561 
203-478-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 8,944 9,212 9,488 9,772 10,065 
203-478-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 6,612 6,810 7,014 7,224 7,440 
203-478-717.000 Life Insurance 1,279 1,317 1,356 1,396 1,437 
203-478-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1,444 1,487 1,531 1,576 1,623 
203-478-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 6,219 6,405 6,597 6,794 6,997 
203-478-719.001 Dental Insurance 376 387 398 409 421 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 129,122 132,993 136,980 141,084 145,312 

SUPPLIES 

203-478-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 15,000 15,300 15,606 15,918 16,236 
203-478-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 60,000 61,800 63,654 65,563 67,53!_. 

SUPPLIES 75,000 77,100 79,260 81,481 83,767 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

203-478-818.245 PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

203-478-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,272 112,550 

Totals for dept 478 - Winter Maintenance 304,122 313,093 322,330 331,837 341,629 

Page 41 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET -----
Dept 485 -TRAFFIC CONTROL 

SUPPLIES 

203-485-777 .002 Traffic Signs 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

SUPPLIES 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

203-485-818.235 PROF. SERV - STREET SIGNS CONTRACTOR 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 50,000 51,500 53,045 54,636 56,275 

Totals for dept 485 - TRAFFIC CONTROL 55,000 56,600 58,247 59,942 61,687 

Dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 

203-966-999.202 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 202 600,000 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 600,000 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 600,000 

--
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,832,770 3,652,541 2,520,954 2,580,052 1,937,654 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 203 (1,160,829) (1,947,162) (781,469} (805,778} (127,896} 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,620,715 3,459,886 1,512,724 731,255 (74,5231_ 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,459,886 1,512,724 731,255 (74,523) (202,419) 

Page 42 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR Cl1Y OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022.-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 208 - YOUTH RECREATION MILLAGE 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

208-000-403.000 Current Property taxes 981,061 1,010,493 1,040,808 1,072,032 1,104,193 
208-000-403.002 Property Tax Chargebacks (13,000) (13,390) (13,792) (14,205) (14,632) 

PROPERTY TAXES 968,061 997,103 1,027,016 1,057,827 1,089,561 

OTHER REVENUE 

208-000-651.006 CITY EVENTS 

208-000-671.208 WILLIAMS INT EDUCATIONAL FUND 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 

208-000-675.00_1 CONTRIBUTION - MISC DONATIONS -
OTHER REVENUE 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 

Totals for dept 000 - 1,118,061 1,147,103 1,177,016 1,207,827 1,239,561 

Dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

208-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

-
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,118,061 1,147,103 1,177,016 1,207,827 1,239,561 

Page 43 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 756 - RECREATION FACILITY 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

208-756-702.000 Salaries & Wages 94,640 161,335 166,175 171,160 176,295 
208-756-702.004 Overtime Wages 210 216 223 229 236 
208-756-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 2,579 2,656 2,736 2,818 2,903 
208-756-702.104 MAINTENANCE - OVERTIME 2,809 2,893 2,980 3,069 3,162 
208-756-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 7,587 12,700 13,081 13,473 13,878 
208-756-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 14,212 47,818 49,252 50,730 52,252 
208-756-717 .000 Life Insurance 768 2,087 2,149 2,214 2,280 

208-756-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 3,920 9,945 10,243 10,550 10,867 
208-756-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 6,155 9,018 9,288 9,567 9,854 

208c756-719.001 Dental Insurance 273 979 1,008 1,038 1,069 
PERSONNEL SERVICES ' 133,153 249,647 257,135 264,848 272,796 

SUPPLIES 

208-756-728.000 Postage 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

208-756-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

208-756-7 45.000 Recreation Supplies 30,000 30,600 31,212 31,836· 32,473 

208-756-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 

208-756-776.001 Janitorial Supplies 5,000 5,100 S,202 5,306 5,412 
208-756-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

208-756-776.003 Bldg. Equipment Maint. Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

208-756-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 7,000 7,210 7,426 7,649 7,878 

208-756-779.008 Pavement Markings 10,000 10,000 10,000 
SUPPLIES 72,000 63,310 74,648 66,015 77,411 

Page 44 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

208-756-818.000 Other Professional Services 55,000 56,650 58,350 60,100 61,903 
208-756-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 5,000 5,150 5,305 5,464 5,628 
208-756-818.037 Contractual Janitorial Services 23,375 
208-756-818.245 PROF. SERV.-SNOW REMOVAL 12,000 12,360 12,730 13,112 13,506 
208-756-818.260 OTHER PROF. SERV. - STREIT PATCHING 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,092 1,125 
208-756-820.008 Services -Security Alarm Systems 2,400 2,472 2,546 2,623 2,701 
208-756-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 154 159 163 168 173 
208-756-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,097 1,130 1,164 1,199 1,235 
208-756-883.005 WILLIAMS INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION FUN 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 
208-756-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 62,817 64,702 66,643 68,642 70,701 
208-756-921.000 Utilities Electricity 12,932 13,320 13,720 14,131 14,555 
208-756-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 14,420 14,853 15,298 15,757 16,230 
208-756-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 20,069 20,671 21,291 21,930 22,588 

208-756-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 15,000 15,450 15,914 16,391 16,883 

208-756-931.003 Services - Building Equip Maint 15,000 15,450 15,914 16,391 16,883 

208-756-932.008 Services - Maintenance-Fire Exting 500 515 530 546 563 

208-756-941.000 Services - Building & Land Rental 

208-756-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,639 1,688 

208-756-943.000 Services - Equip Rentl City-Owned 1;500 1,545 1,591 1,639 1,688 

208-756-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,255 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 403,764 387,302 394,419 401,751 409,305 

Totals for dept 756 - RECREATION FACILITY 608,917 700,259 726,202 732,614 759,512 

Dept 774- CITY EVENTS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

208-77 4-7 45 .003 CITY EVENTS 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 774 - CITY EVENTS 

Page 45 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 775 - YOUTH SPORTS 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

208-775-702.000 Salaries & Wages 53,410 18,427 18,980 19,549 20,135 
208-775-702.004 Overtime Wages 1,193 1,229 1,266 1,304 1,343 
208-775-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 17,792 15,527 15,993 16,473 16,967 
208-775-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 8,807 7,200 7,416 7,638 7,867 
208-775-717.000 Life Insurance 107 230 237 244 251 
208-775-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1,159 1,194 1,229 1,266 

208-775-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 10,627 11,227 11,564 11,911 12,268 

208-775-719.001 Dental Insurance 53 55 56 58 60 

208-775-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 179,170 184,545 190,081 195,784 201,657 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 271,159 239,599 246,787 254,190 261,814 

SUPPLIES 

208-775-727 .000 Office Supplies 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,273 1,299 

208-775-7 41.000 Awards & Trophies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

208-775-743.000 Uniforms 10,000 10,200 10,404 10,612 10,824 

208-775-745.000 Recreation Supplies 25,000 25,500 26,010 26,530 27,061 

208-775-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,627 

SUPPLIES 46,200 47,174 48,168 49,184 50,223 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

208-775-941.000 Services - Building & Land Rental 

208-775-943.004 TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 5,000 5,150 5,305 5,464 5,628 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 5,000 5,150 5,305 5,464 5,628 

-----· 
Totals for dept 775 - YOUTH SPORTS 322,359 291,923 300,260 308,838 317,665 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 931,276 992,182 1,026,462 1,041,452 1,077,177 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 208 186,785 154,921 150,554 166,375 162,384 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 186,512 373,297 528,218 678,772 84~L!~? __ 
ENDING FUND BALANCE 373,297 528,218 678,772 845,147 1,007,531 

Page 46 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 209 - Cemetery Fund 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

OTHER REVENUE 

209-000-673.000 Sale of Fixed Assets 

OTHER REVENUE 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

209-000-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 693,053 352,978 363,188 373,695 384,508 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 693,053 352,978 363,188 373,695 384,508 

Totals for dept 000 - 693,053 352,978 363,188 373,695 384,508 

Dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

209-273-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 693,053 352,978 363,188 373,695 384,508 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

209-273-702.000 Salaries & Wages 603 621 639 658 677 

209-273-702.004 Overtime Wages 872 898 924 951 979 

209-273-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 88 90 92 94 96 

209-273-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 56 57 58 59 60 

209-273-717.000 Life Insurance 11 11 11 11 11 

209-273-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 29 29 29 29 29 

209-273-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 56 57 58 59 60 

209-273-719.001 Dental Insurance 1 1 1 1 1 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,716 1,764 1,812 1,862 1,913 

Page 47 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

SUPPLIES 

209-273-749.005 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 15,000 15,300 15,606 15,918 16,236 

209-273-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 2,000 2,040 2,080 2,121 2,163 

209-273-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies 6,000 6,120 6,242 6,366 6,493 

SUPPLIES 23,000 23,460 23,928 24,405 24,892 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

209-2 73-807 .000 Services - Membership Dues 

209-273-818.000 Other Professional Services 25,000 25,750 26,522 27,317 28,136 

209-273-818.003 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - TECHNISERVE 

209-273-818.005 EquipmentTowing Charges 500 515 530 545 561 

209-273-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 90,000 92,700 95,481 98,345 101,295 

209-273-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 

209-273-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 77 79 81 83 85 

209-273-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 366 376 387 398 409 

209-273-884.001 PREPAID GRAVE REIMBURSEMENTS 

209-273-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 1,266 1,304 1,343 1,383 1,425 

209-273-921.000 Utilities Electricity 8,291 8,539 8,795 9,058 9,329 

209-273-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 2,550 2,626 2,704 2,785 2,868 

209-273-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 150,000 

209-273-932.004 Services - Maintenance-Vehicles 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,854 22,509 

209-273-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

209-273-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 _ 1,123_. 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 309,050 163,819 168,730 173,786 178,994 

Totals for dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 333,766 189,043 194,470 200,053 205,799 

Page 48 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 276 - Cemetery Oak Hill 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

209-276-702.000 Salaries & Wages 1,188 1,223 1,259 1,296 1,334 
209-276-702.004 Overtime Wages 4,435 4,568 4,705 4,846 4,991 

209-276-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 145 149 153 157 161 

209-276-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 96 98 · 100 103 106 

209-276-717.000 Life Insurance 19 19 19 19 19 

209-276-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 29 29 29 29 29 

209-276-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 98 100 103 106 109 

209-276-719.001 Dental Insurance 2 2 2 2 2 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 6,012 6,188 6,370 6,558 6,751 

SUPPLIES 

209-276-749.002 Tools & Supplies 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 

209-276-749.005 Equipment Maintenance Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

209-276-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

209-276-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies 4,000 4,080 4,161 4,244 4,328 

SUPPLIES 12,500 12,750 13,004 13,263 13,527 

Page 49 of 88 



06/25/2019 · BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ----
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

209-276-818.000 Other Professional Services 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

209-276-818.003 PROFESSIONAL.SERVICES - TECHNISERVE 

209-276-818.005 Equipment Towing Charges 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

209-276-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 90,000 92,700 95,481 98,345 101,295 

209-276-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 

209-276-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

209-276-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 

209-276-884.001 PREPAID GRAVE REIMBURSEMENTS 

209-276-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 1,266 1,304 1,343 1,383 1,425 

209-276-921.000 Utilities Electricity 4,111 4,234 4,361 4,491 4,625 

209-276-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 7,637 7,866 8,101 8,344 8,594 

209-276-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 1,761 1,813 1,867 1,923 1,980 

209-276-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 200,000 

209-276-932.004 Services - Maintenance-Vehicles - 15,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 

209-276-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,254 

209-276-943.000 Services - Equip Rentl City-Owned 
-- - -· ----

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 340,775 144,997 149,344 153,821 158,431 

Totals for dept 276 - Cemetery Oak Hill 359,287 163,935 168,718 173,642 178,709 

-------
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 693,053 352,978 363,188 373,695 384,508 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 209 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 18,327 18,327 18,327 _ 18,327 18,~3_? __ 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 18,327 18,327 18,327 18,327 18,327 

Page 50 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20, MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION . BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 212 - Senior Activities Millage 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

212-000-403.073 PROPERTY TAX CHARGEBACKS - PETERSON (3,600) (3,819) (3,933) (4,050) (4,171) 

212-000-403.074 PROPERTY TAX CHARGEBACKS - BOWEN (3,600)· (3,819) (3,933) (4,050) (4,171) 

212-000-403.703 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES - PETERSON 163,510 173,467 178,671 184,031 189,551 

212-000-403.704 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX.ES - BOWEN 163,510 173,467 178,671 184,031 189,551 

212-000-441.000 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE T 9,541 10,121 10,424 10,736 11,05~--
PROPERTY TAXES 329,361 349,417 359,900 370,698 381,818 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

212-000-665.001 Investments Income 6,366 6,622 6,754 6,889 7,026 

212-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

212-000-669.703 RENTALS - PETERSON CENTER 4,500 4,681 4,774 4,869 4,966 

212-000-669.704 RENTALS - BOWEN CENTER 10,000 10,404 10,612 10,824 11,040 

INTEREST AND RENTS 20,866 21,707 22,140 22,582 23,032 

Totals for dept 000 - 350,227 371,124 382,040 393,280 404,850 

Dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

212-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 350,227 371,124 382,040 393,280 404,850 

Page 51 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 703 - CHOO OPERATIING 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

212-703-702.104 MAINTENANCE- OVERTIME 

212-703-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

Totals for dept 703 - CHOO OPERATIING 

Dept 813 - Ruth Peterson Senior Citizen Center 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

212-813-702.000 Salaries & Wages 72,035 76,421 78,713 81,074 83,506 

212-813-702.004 Overtime Wages 9,884 10,485 10,799 11,122 11,455 

212-813-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 14,371 15,246 15,703 16,174 16,659 

212-813-702.104 MAINTENANCE-OVERTIME 1,485 1,574 1,621 1,669 1,719 

212-813-705.002 Temporary/Part-time Clerical/Tech 908 963 991 1,020 1,050 

212-813-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 7,547 8,006 8,246 8,493 8,747 

212-813-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 9,592 10,175 10,480 10,794 11,117 

212-813-717.000 Life Insurance 1,106 1,173 1,208 1,244 1,281 

212-813-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 4,330 4,592 4,729 4,870 5,016 

212-813-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,396 1,480 1,524 1,569 1,616 

212-813-719.001 Dental Insurance 154 162 166 170 175 

212-813-721.010 Health Care Waiver 2,675 2,837 2,922 3,009 3,099 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 125,483 133,114 137,102 141,208 145,440 

SUPPLIES 

212-813-727.000 Office Supplies 

212-813-745.000 Recreation Supplies 

212-813-776.001 Janitorial Supplies 2,000 2,080 2,121 2,163 2,206 

212-813-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 1,800 1,872 1,909 1,947 1,985 

212-813-776.003 Bldg. Equipment Maint. Supplies 1,500 1,560 1,591 1,622 1,654 

212-813-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 1,500 1,560 1,591 1,622 1,654 

SUPPLIES 6,800 7,072 7,212 7,354 7,499 

Page 52 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

212-813-818.000 Other Professional Services 7,000 7,426 7,648 7,877 8,113 

212-813-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 600 · 636 655 674 694 

212-813-818.037 Contractual Janitorial Services 15,000 15,913 16,390 16,881 17,387 

212-813-818.245 PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 6,000 6,365 6,555 6,751 6,953 

212-813-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 

212-813-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 1,468 1,557 1,603 1,651 1,700 

212-813-851.003 SERVICES - OPTEMAN CHARGES 

212-813-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,468 1,557 1,603 1,651 1,700 

212-813-864.000 Truck & Bus Rental 

212-813-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 12,435 13,192 13,587 13,994 14,413 

212-813-921.000 Utilities Electricity 7,925 8,406 8,658 8,917 9,184 

212-813-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 3,729 3,955 4,073 4,195 4,320 

212-813-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 5,859 6,215 6,401 6,593 6,790 

212-813-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 6,000 6,365 6,555 6,751 6,953 

212-813-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 2,500 2,652 2,731 2,812 2,896 

212-813-931.003 Services - Building Equip Maint 3,000 3,182 3,277 3,375 3,476 

212-813-932.008 Services - Maintenance-Fire Exting 250 264 271 279 287 

212-813-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 100 106 109 112 115 

212-813-943.000 SERVICES - EQUIP RENTL CITY-OWNED 

212-813-962.022 101 Adm in Allocation-To Other Funds 24,930 26,447 27,240 28,057 28,898 

212-813-967.010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES . 4,481 4,753 4,895 5,041 5,192 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 102,745 108,991 112,251 115,611 119,071 

Totals for dept 813 - Ruth Peterson Senior Citizen Center 235,028 249,177 256,565 264,173 272,010 

Page 53 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ------
Dept 814 - Bowen Senior Citizen Center 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

212-814-702.000 Salaries & Wages 79,607 84,454 86,987 89,596 92,283 
212-814-702.004 Overtime Wages 4,317 4,579 4,716 4,857 5,002 
212-814-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 14,371 15,246 15,703 16,174 16,659 
212-814-702.104 MAINTENANCE- OVERTIME 4,985 5,288 5,446 5,609 5,777 

212-814-705.002 Temporary/Part-time Clerical/Tech 545 577 594 611 629 

212-814-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 7,981 8,466 8,719 8,980 9,249 

212-814-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 5,908 6,267 6,455 6,648 6,847 

212-814-717.000 Life Insurance 719 762 784 807 831 

212-814-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 2,496 2,647 2,726 2,807 2,891 

212-814-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 2,025 2,147 2,211 2,277 2,345 

212-814-719.001 Dental Insurance 96 100 103 106 109 

212-814-721.010 Health Care Waiver 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 123,050 130,533 134,444 138,472 142,622 

SUPPLIES 

212-814-727.000 Office Supplies 

212-814-745.000 Recreation Supplies 

212-814-776.001 Janitorial Supplies 5,000 5,202 5,306 5,412 5,520 

212-814-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 2,500 2,601 2,653 2,706 2,760 

212-814-776.003 Bldg. Equipment Maint. Supplies 2,000 2,080 2,121 2,163 2,206 

212-814-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 2,500 2,601 2,653 2,706 2,760 

212-814-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies 1,000 1,040 1,060 1,081 1,102 

SUPPLIES 13,000 13,524 13,793 14,068 14,348 

Page 54 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

212-814-806.000 Engineering Services 20,000 21,218 21,854 22,509 23,184 
212-814-818.000 Other Professional Services 3,000 3,182 3,277 3,375 3,476 
212-814-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 1,600 1,697 1,747 1,799 1,852 
212-814-818.037 Contractual Janitorial Services 22,000 23,339 24,039 24,760 25,502 
212-814-818.245 PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 10,000 10,609 10,927 11,254 11,591 
212-814-820.008 Services - Security Alarm Systems 

212-814-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 1,468 1,557 1,603 1,651 1,700 
212-814-851.003 SERVICES - OPTEMAN CHARGES 

212-814-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,468 1,557 1,603 1,651 1,700 

212-814-864.000 Truck & Bus Rental 

212-814-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 

212-814-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 12,359 13,110 13,503 13,908 14,325 

212-814-921.000 Utilities Electricity 10,172 10,791 11,114 11,447 11,790 

212-814-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 2,776 2,944 3,032 3,122 3,215 

212-814-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 5,783 6,134 6,318 6,507 6,702 

212-814-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 6,000 6,365 6,555 6,751 6,953 

212-814-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 5,000 5,304 5,463 5,626 5,794 

212-814-931.003 Services - Building Equip Ma int 7,000 7,426 7,648 7,877 8,113 

212-814-932.008 Services - Maintenance-Fire Exting 500 530 545 561 577 

212-814-942.000 Services - Equipment Rent! Non-City 

212-814-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 

212-814-943.000 Services - Equip Rent! City-Owned 500 530 545 561 577 

212-814-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 24,311 25,791 26,564 27,360 28,180 

212-814-967.010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 6,161 6,535 6,731 6,932 7,139 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 140,098 148,619 153,068 157,651 162,370 

-------------
Totals for dept 814 - Bowen Senior Citizen Center 276,148 292,676 301,305 310,191 319,340 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 511,176 541,853 557,870 574,364 591,350 

NIT OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 212 (160,949) (170,729) (175,830) (181,084) (186,500) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 941,630 780,681 609,952 434,122 253,038 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 780,681 609,952 434,122 253,038 66,538 

Page 55 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 226 - Sanitaton Fund 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

226-000-403 .000 Current Property taxes 1,843,236 1,898,533 1,955,488 2,014,152 2,074,576 

226-000-403.002 Property Tax Ghargebacks {65,000) .(66,950) (68,958) (71,026) (73,156) 

226-000-441.000 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE T 53,777 55,390 57,051 58,762 60,524 

PROPERTY TAXES 1,832,013 1,886,973 1,943,581 2,001,888 2,061,944 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

226-000-626.050 SANITATION USER FEES 685,566 690,576 724,747 760,209 797,010 

226-000-630.002 Litter Clean-Up 

226-000-630.004 Comrcial & Residntial User Fee-In 1,300,000 1,326,000 1,352,520 1,379,570 1,407,16_! __ 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,985,566 2,016,576 2,077,267 2,139,779 2,204,171 

OTHER REVENUE 

226-000-686.000 REIMBURSEMENTS 625,000 

OTHER REVENUE 625,000 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

226-000-665.001 Investments Income 33,608 34,280 34,965 35,664 36,377 

226-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 33,608 34,280 34,965 35,664 36,377 

Totals for dept 000 - 4,476,187 3,937,829 4,055,813 4,177,331 4,302,492 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

226-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

---- ----
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 4,476,187 3,937,829 4,055,813 4,177,331 4,302,492 

Page 56 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 528 - Sanitation Collection 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

226-528-702.000 Salaries & Wages 88,298 90,946 93,674 96,484 99,378 
226-528-702.004 Overtime Wages 4,583 4,720 4,861 5,006 5,156 
226-528-707.003 CELL PHONE STIPEND 600 618 636 655 674 

226-528-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 7,034 7,245 7,462 7,685 7,915 
226-528-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 154 158 162 166 170 
226-528-717 .000 Life Insurance 30 30 30 30 30 

226-528-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 47 48 49 so 51 

226-528~719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 6,196 6,381 6,572 6,769 6,972 

226-528-719.001 Dental Insurance 3 3 3 3 3 
PERSONNEL SERVICES 106,945 110,149 113,449 116,848 120,349 

SUPPLIES 

226-528-727.000 Office Supplies 200 204 208 212 216 

226-528-728.000 Postage 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

226-528-728.001 Postage - Large Mailing 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

226-528-729.001 Printed Forms 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 

226-528-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,000 2,040 2,080 2,121 2,163 

226-528-7 46.001 Personal Protective Wear 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 

226-528-749.001 Motor Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 6,000 6,120 6,242 6,366 6,493 

226-528-780.005 Grounds Maintenance Supplies -----------
SUPPLIES 13,600 13,872 14,146 14,425 14,710 

Page 57 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

226-528-806.000 Ehgineering Services 250,000 100,000 103,000 106,090 109,273 
226-528-816.000 Services - Contracted Construction 500,000 

226-528-818.000 Other Professional Services 70,000 72,100 74,263 76,490 78,784 
226-528-818.008 Bank Service Charges 

226-528-818.009 SANITATION SERVICES -ADVANCED 2,795,453 2,879,316 2,965,695 3,054,665 3,146,304 

226-528-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 115 118 121 124 127 
226-528-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV /INTERNET 731 752 774 797 820 

226-528-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 9,618 9,906 10,203 10,509 10,824 
226-528-922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 238,005 245,145 252,499 260,073 267,875 

226-528-931.002 Services - Ground Maintenance 6,800 7,004 7,214 7,430 7,652 

226-528-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 200 206 212 218 224 

226-528-943.000 Services - Equip Rentl City-Owned 17,000 17,510 18,035 18,576 19,133 

226-528-955.200 LANDFILL CLOSURE-MDEQ EXP 150,000 154,500 159,135 163,909 168,826 

226-528-957.002 Training Expense 500 515 530 545 561 

226-528-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 202,808 208,892 215,158 221,612 228,260 

226-528-967.010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 114,412 117,844 121,379 125,020 128,770 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 4,355,642 3,813,808 3,928,218 4,046,058 4,167,433 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

226-528-977.002 VEHICLES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Totals for dept 528 - Sanitation Collection 4,476,187 3,937,829 4,055,813 4,177,331 4,302,492 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 4,476,187 3,937,829 4,055,813 4,177,331 4,302,492 

NIT OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 226 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 5,410,730 5,410,730 5,410,730 5,410,730 5,410,730 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 5,410,730 5,410,730 5,410,730 5,410,730 5,410,730 

Page 58 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 231- CABLE FUND 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

231-000-641.003 AT&T PEG Fees 39,250 40,035 40,835 41,651 42,484 
231-000-641.004 Comcast PEG Fees 114,000 116,280 118,605 120,977 123,396 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES_, 153,250 156,315 159,440 162,628 165,880 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

231-000-665.001 Investments Income 8,620 8,792 8,967 9,146 9,328 
231-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 8,620 8,792 8,967 9,146 9,328 

Totals for dept 000 - 161,870 165,107 168,407 171,774 175,208 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

231-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 161,870 165,107 168,407 171,774 175,208 

Page 59 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 291 - CABLE 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

231-291-702.000 Salaries & Wages 69,889 102,885 105,971 109,150 112,424 

231-291-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 5,347 7,871 8,107 8,350 8,600 

231-291-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 18,232 37,558 38,684 39,844 41,039 

231-291-717.000 Life Insurance 884 1,300 1,339 1,379 1,420 

231-291-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 4,704 4,845 4,990 5,139 5,293 

231-291-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 800 1,184 1,219 1,255 1,292 

231-291-719.001 Dental Insurance 409 875 901 928 955 --------
PERSONNEL SERVICES 100,265 156,518 161,211 166,045 171,023 

SUPPLIES 

231-291-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 500 510 520 530 540 

231-291-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 5,000 · 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

231-291-735.000 Video Equipment Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

231-291-740.000 Operating Supplies 10,000 10,200 10,404 10,612 10,824 

SUPPLIES 20,500 20,910 21,328 21,754 22,188 

Page 60 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

231-291-818.000 Other Professional Services 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 
231-291-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 77 79 81 83 85 
231-291-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 1,097 1,129 1,162 1,196 1,231 
231-291-901.000 Printing and Bindery Service 100 103 106 109 112 
231-291-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 5,059 5,210 5,366 5,526 5,691 
231-291-926.000 UTILITIES CABLE 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 
231-291-931.113 CABLE/VIDEO EQUIP REPAIRS 500 515 530 545 561 
231-291-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 16,470 16,964 17,472 17,996 18,535 __ 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 29,803 30,695 31,612 32,556 33,528 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

231-291-977.011 Computer Equipment 66,132 
231-291-977.014 Video Equipment 16,573 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 82,705 

Totals for dept 291- CABLE 233,273 208,123 214,151 220,355 226,739 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 233,273 208,123 214,151 220,355 226,739 

NIT OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 231 (71,403) (43,016) (45,744) (48,581) (51,531) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,197,516 1,126,113 1,083,097 1,037,353 988,772 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 1,126,113 1,083,097 1,037,353 988,772 937,241 

Page 61 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET -----
Fund 239 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY #2 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

239-000-441.000 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE1 74,637 76,876 79,182 81,557 84,003 
PROPERTY TAXES 74,637 76,876 79,182 81,557 84,003 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

239-000-636.002 TIFA SERVICE FEE 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

CONTRIBUTION FROM LOCAL UNITS 

239-000-674.101 CONTRIBUTION FROM 101 253,682 248,862 220,806 203,181 185,485 

CONTRIBUTION FROM LOCAL UNITS 253,682 248,862 220,806 203,181 185,485 

--
Totals for dept 000 - 378,319 375,738 349,988 334,738 319,488 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 378,319 375,738 349,988 334,738 319,488 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 925 - Debt Service 

DEBT SERVICE 

239-925-992.082 DEBT SERV.- 07C TIFA 2 BONDS-99 MARRIOT 305,000 315,000 305,000 305,000 305,000 

239-925-992.101 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE - GENERAL FUND 253,682 248,862 220,806 203,181 185,485 

239-925-995.001 Interest Expense Bonds 73,319 60,738 44,988 29,738 14,488 

DEBT SERVICE 632,001 624,600 570,794 537,919 504,973 

-------
Totals for dept 925 - Debt Service 632,001 624,600 570,794 537,919 504,973 

------
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 632,001 624,600 570,794 537,919 504,973 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 239 (253,682) (248,862) (220,806) (203,181) (185,485) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (2,673,059) (2,926,741) (3,175,603) {3,396,409) (3,599,590) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE (2,926,741) (3,175,603) (3,396,409) (3,599,590) (3,785,075) 

Page 62 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 240 - TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY #3 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

240-000-403.001 Current Property taxes increment 1,347,525 1,387,950 1,429,588 1,472,475 1,516,649 

240-000-403.002 Property Tax Chargebacks (1,000) (1,030) (1,060) (1,091) (1,123) 

240-000-441.000 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE 1 122,573 126,250 130,037 133,938 137,956 --- --
PROPERTY TAXES 1,469,098 1,513,170 1,558,565 1,605,322 1,653,482 

CONTRIBUTION FROM LOCAL UNITS 

240-000-674.101 CONTRIBUTION FROM 101 490,946 451,293 748,148 748,641 346,481 

CONTRIBUTION FROM LOCAL UNITS 490,946 451,293 748,148 748,641 346,481 

Totals for dept 000 - 1,960,044 1,964,463 2,306,713 2,353,963 1,999,963 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,960,044 1,964,463 2,306,713 2,353,963 1,999,963 

Page 63 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET -------
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 730 -Tifa Area# 3 Administration 

DEBT SERVICE 

240-730-992.101 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE - GENERAL FUND 490,946 451,293 748,148 748,641 346,481 
DEBT SERVICE 490,946 451,293 748,148 748,641 346,481 

-----------
Totals for dept 730 - Tifa Area# 3 Administration 490,946 451,293 748,148 748,641 346,481 

Dept 925 - Debt Service 

DEBT SERVICE 

240-925-992.083 DEBT SERV.- 07C TIFA 3 BONDS-2002 BONDS 1,105,000 1,155,000 1,555,000 1,680,000 1,410,000 

240-925-995.001 Interest Expense Bonds 855,044 809,463 751,713 673,963 589,963 

DEBT SERVICE 1,960,044 1,964,463 2,306,713 2,353,963 1,999,963 

Totals for dept 925 - Debt Service 1,960,044 1,964,463 2,306,713 2,353,963 1,999,963 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,450,990 2,415,756 3,054,861 3,102,604 2,346,444 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 240 {490,946) {4Sl,293) {748,148) {748,641) {346,481) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE {1,849,758) {2,340,704) (2,791,997) (3,540,145) (4,288,786) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE {2,340,704) (2,791,997) (3,540,145) (4,288,786) (4,635,267) 

Page 64 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 243 - Brownfield Redeveloping Auth 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

243-000-403.001 Current Property taxes increment 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

243-000-403.002 Property Tax Chargebacks 

PROPERTY TAXES 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

Totals for dept 000 - 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 732 - BRA Administration 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

243-732-818.054 TAX INCREMENT PAYMENT-BROWNFIELD 4 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

Totals for dept 732 - BRA Administration 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 40,070 41,272 42,510 43,785 45,098 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 243 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 233,322 233,322 233,322 233,322 233,322 --------
ENDING FUND BALANCE 233,322 233,322 233,322 233,322 233,322 

Page 65 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET --------
Fund 249 - BUILDING INSPECTION FUND 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 

249-000-456.000 Multi registrations 80,000 82,400 84,872 87,418 90,040 
249-000-456.001 Single family 350,000 360,500 371,315 382,454 393,927 
249-000-468.003 Registration Builders 3,500 3,605 3,713 3,824 3,938 
249-000-468.004 Registration Plumbing 300 309 318 327 336 
249-000-468.005 Registration Reciprocal Heating 1,000 1,030 1,060 1,091 1,123 

249-000-468 .008 Registration Electrical License 3,000 3,090 3,182 3,277 3,375 
249-000-477.003 lnsp Building Permit 1,300,000 1,339,000 1,379,170 1,420,545 1,463,161 
249-000-4 77 .004 lnsp Plumbing Permit 90,000 92,700 95,481 98,345 101,295 
249-000-477.005 lnsp Heating Permit 120,000 123,600 127,308 131,127 135,060 
249-000-477.007 lnsp Signs Permit 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 
249-000-477.008 lnsp Electrical Permit 140,000 144,200 148,526 152,981 157,570 
249-000-477.010 lnsp Demolition Permit 25,000 25,750 26,522 27,317 28,136 

249-000-477.011 FIRE ALARM PERMIT 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,854 22,509 
LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,137,800 2,201,934 2,267,989 2,336,023 2,406,096 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

249-000-614.371 PLAN REVIEW FEE 75,000 76,500 78,030 79,590 81,181 

249-000-625.016 10% Late Penalty 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 76,500 78,030 79,590 81,181 82,803 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

249-000-665.001 Investments Income 2,500 2,550 .2,601 2,653 2,706 
249-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 

Totals for dept 000 - 2,216,800 2,282,514 2,350,180 2,419,857 2,491,605 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 2,216,800 2,282,514 2,350,180 2,419,857 2,491,605 

Page 66 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
-

APPROPRIATIONS 

. Dept 371- BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT 

SUPPLIES 

249-371-727.000 Office Supplies 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 
249-371-728.000 Postage 6,000 6,120 6,242 6,366 6,493 
249-371-729.001 Printed Forms 350 357 364 371 378 
249-371-730.000 Publications & Maps 500 510 520 530 540 
249-371-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 

249-371-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 
SUPPLIES 12,350 12,597 12,848 13,103 13,363 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

249-371-804.018 Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 4,635 4,774 4,917 5,064 , 5,215 
249-371-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 575 592 609 627 645 
249-371-813.000 Services - Hearing Officer 1,200 1,236 1,273 1,311 1,350 
249-371-813.010 SERVICES - BOARD OF APPEALS 3,500 3,605 3,713 3,824 3,938 
249-371-816.004 SERVICES - FOIA 500 515 530 545 561 
249-371-818.000 Other Professional Services 10,500 10,815 11,139 11,473 11,817 
249-371-818.001 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-WADE TRIM 1,675,110 1,708,620 1,742,796 1,777,656 1,813,213 
249-371-818.080 PROF. SERV - BS&A 21,620 22,268 22,936 23,624 24,332 
249-371-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 731 752 774 797 820 
249-371-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 5,118 5,271 5,429 5,591 5,758 
249-371-942.000 Services - Equipment Rentl Non-City 2,600 2,678 2,758 2,840 2,925 
249-371-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 1,500 1,545 1,591 1,638 1,687 

249-371-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 287,888 296,524 305,419 314,581 324,018 
249-371-967.010 DPW SUPPORT SERVICES 50,877 52,403 53,975 55,594 57,261 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 2,066,354 2,111,598 2,157,859 2,205,165 2,253,540 

Totals for dept 371- BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT 2,078,704 2,124,195 2,170,707 2,218,268 2,266,903 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,078,704 2,124,195 2,170,707 2,218,268 2,266,903 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 249 138,096 158,319 179,473 201,589 224,702 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 753,025 891,121 1,049,440 1,228,913 1,430,502 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 891,121 1,049,440 1,228,913 1,430,502 1,655,204 

Page 67 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

Fund 252 - CDBG FY2012 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 707 - Administration 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

252-707-818.000 Other Professional Services 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 707 - Administration 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 252 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

2019-20 

BUDGET 

Page 68 of 88 

2020-21 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2021-22 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2022-23 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

2023-24 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 265 - DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

FINES AND FORFEITS 

265-000-658.316 DRUG FORFEITURES - STATE LAW 42,000 43,260 44,557 45,893 47,269 
FINES AND FORFEITS 42,000 43,260 44,557 45,893 47,269 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

265-000-665.001 Investments Income 885 902 920 938 956 
INTEREST AND RENTS 885 902 920 938 956 

-------
Totals for dept 000 - 42,885 44,162 45,477 46,831 48,225 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 42,885 44,162 45,477 46,831 48,225 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 316 - State Forfeitures 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

265-316-818.069 Prof. Serv-Oakland Co. Sheriff OT 36,000 37,080 38,192 39,337 40,517 
265-316-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 15,240 16,329 16,818 17,322 17,841 

265-316-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 

265-316-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 2,243 2,310 2,379 2,450 2,524 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 53,483 55,719 57,389 59,109 60,882 

Totals for dept 316 - State Forfeitures 53,483 55,719 57,389 59,109 60,882 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 53,483 55,719 57,389 59,109 60,882 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 265 {10,598) {11,557) {11,912) {12,278) (12,657) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 222,717 212,119 200,562 188,650 176,372 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 212,119 200,562 188,650 176,372 163,715 

Page 69 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 276 - District Court 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

276-000-602.000 District Court-State Law Costs 157,300 160,446 163,6S4 166,927 170,265 
276-000-610.002 Marriage Fees 100 102 104 106 108 
276-000-610.004 Filing Fees - 65% 153,200 156,264 159,389 162,S76 16S,827 
276-000-610.007 Jury Duty- Reimbursement 1,200 1,224 1,248 1,272 1,297 
276-000-610.008 Garnishment - Civil 210,200 214,404 218,692 223,065 227,S26 

276-000-610.009 Probation Officer Fee S9,200 60,384 61,S91 62,822 64,078 

276-000-610.010 State License Clearance Fee 42,100 42,942 43,800 44,676 4S,S69 
276-000-610.011 DUil Evalvation Fee 20,000 20,400 20,808 21,224 21,648 

276-000-610.012 Traffic Warrant Fees 40,500 41,310 42,136 42,978 43,837 

276-000-610.018 Court Appointed Attorney Fees 8,400 8,S68 8,739 8,913 9,091 

276-000-610.020 Court Motion Fees 26,800 27,336 27,882 28,439 29,007 

276-000-617.000 Miscellaneous Fees 31,900 32,S38 33,188 33,851 34,S28 

276-000-636.000 Miscellaneous Services 8,300 8,466 8,635 8,807 8,983 

276-000-643.005 Sale of Forms 4,100 4,182 4,26S 4,350 4,437 

276-000-696.003 Victim Right Administration 10,400 10,608 10,820 11,036 11,256 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 773,700 789,174 804,9Sl 821,042 837,457 

STATE GRANTS 

276-000-540.002 State aid for judges wages 182,896 188,382 194,033 199,8S3 205,848 

STATE GRANTS 182,896 188,382 194,033 199,8S3 20S,848 

OTHER REVENUE 

276-000-694.009 Event Over and Short 

276-000-696.001 NSF Check Write Off 

OTHER REVENUE 

Page 70 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUOGET 
FINES AND FORFEITS 

276-000-656.001 Parking Violations 21,000 21,630 · 22,278 22,946 23,634 
276-000-656.002 Fines - Traffic Violations 887,400 914,022 941,442 969,685 998,775 
276-000-656.006 Traffic Violations Late Fee 83,100 85,593 88,160 90,804 93,528 
276-000-658.002 Forfeited Bonds 30,500 31,415 32,357 33,327 34,326 

FINES AND FORFEITS 1,022,000 1,052,660 1,084,237 1,116,762 1,150,263 

INTEREST AND RENTS 
276-000-666.001 Interest Earned- Cash Pool 1,800 1,836 1,872 1,909 1,947 

INTEREST AND RENTS 1,800 1,836 1,872 1,909 1,947 

Totals for dept 000 - 1,980,396 2,032,052 2,085,093 2,139,566 2,195,515 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TR~NSFERS IN 

276-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 1,834,759 1,885,304 1,948,544 2,013,817 2,081,177 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 1,834,759 1,885,304 1,948,544 2,013,817 2,081,177 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 1,834,759 1,885,304 1,948,544 2,013,817 2,081,177 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 3,815,155 3,917,356. 4,033,637 4,153,383 4,276,692 

Page 71 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 136 - District Court 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

276-136-702.000 Salaries & Wages 1,531,718 1,577,669 1,624,999 1,673,748 1,723,960 
276-136-702.004 Overtime Wages 29,036 29,907 30,804 31,728 32,679 
276-136-702.100 MAINTENANCE WAGES 1,782 1,835 1,890 1,946 2,004 
276-136-702.104 MAINTENANCE - OVERTIME 1,886 1,942 2,000 2,060 2,121 
276-136-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 121,776 125,429 129,191 133,066 137,057 
276-136-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 381,511 392,956 404,744 416,886 429,392 

276-136-717.000 Life Insurance 18,379 18,930 19,497 20,081 20,683 

276-136-718.006 Employer 401A Contribution 9,270 9,548 9,834 10,129 10,432 

276-136-718.500 MERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 52 53 54 55 56 
276-136-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 15,126 15,579 16,046 16,527 17,022 

276-136-719.001 Dental Insurance 2,676 2,756 2,838 2,923 3,010 

276-136-721.002 Longevity 14,432 14,864 15,309 15,768 16,241 

276-136-721.010 Health Care Waiver 25,772 26,545 27,341 28,161 29,005 

276-136-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,854 22,509 ----
PERSONNEL SERVICES 2,173,416 2,238,613 2,305,765 2,374,932 2,446,171 

SUPPLIES 

276-136-727.000 Office Supplies 30,000 30,600 31,212 31,836 32,472 

276-136-728.001 Postage - Large Mailing 29,000 29,580 30,171 30,774 31,389 

276-136-729.001 Printed Forms 26,000 26,520 27,050 27,591 28,142 

276-136-731.001 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

276-136-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 5,200 5,304 5,410 5,518 5,628 

276-136-740.000 Operating Supplies 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,060 1,081 

276-136-743.000 Uniforms 350 357 364 371 378 

276-136-776.001 Janitorial Supplies 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 

276-136-776.002 Building Maintenance Supplies 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 

276-136-779.004 SNOW REMOV SUPPLIES 350 357 364 371 378 -----
SUPPLIES 97,900 99,858 101,853 103,887 105,961 

Page 72 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 
276-136-804.000 Legal Services 45,000 46,350 47,740 49,172 50,647 
276-136-806.005 JURY DUTY SERVICES 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,854 22,509 
276-136-807.000 Services - Membership Dues 5,000 5,150 5,304 5,463 5,626 
276-136-818.000 Other Professional Services 225,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,238 
276-136-818.006 Contractual Mowing Services 1,200 1,236 1,273 1,311 1,350 
276-136-818.008 Bank Service Charges 14,000 14,420 14,852 15,297 15,755 
276-136-818.043 Services - Oakland Cty Police-Traf 200 206 212 218 224 
276-136-818.245 PROF. SERV - SNOW REMOVAL 30,000 30,900 31,827 32,781 33,764 
276-136-835.001 Services - Physicals 200 206 212 218 224 
276-136-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 2,538 2,614 2,692 2,772 2,855 
276-136-851.003 SERVICES - OPTEMAN CHARGES 
276-136-852.010 SERVICES - CABLE TV/INTERNET 32,622 33,600 34,608 35,646 36,715 

276-136-861.000 Travel Expen~es 1,200 1,236 1,273 1,311 1,350 

276-136-861.004 Services - Travel-Mileage 1,100 1,133 1,166 1,200 1,236 
276-136-861.006 Services -Travel-Registration 1,100 1,133 1,166 1,200 1,236 
276-136-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 201,095 207,128 213,342 219,742 226,334 

276-136-921.000 Utilities Electricity 34,675 35,715 36,786 37,889 39,025 
276-136--922.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 8,721 8,982 9,251 9,528 9,813 

276-136-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat 12,302 12,671 13,051 13,442 13,845 

276-136-931.001 Services - Building Maintenance 23,000 23,690 24,400 25,132 25,885 

276-136-932.003 Services - Maintenance-Office Mach 2,000 2,060 2,121 2,184 2,249 

276-136-932.008 Seryices - Maintenance-Fire Exting 500 515 530 545 561 

276-136-932.012 Services - Maintenance-Comptr Equip 2,~75 2,652 2,731 2,812 2,896 

276-136-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 1,550 1,596 1,643 1,692 1,742 

276-136-957.002 Training Expense 3,500 3,605 3,713 3,824 3,938 

276-136-957.003 Employee Meals - Commission Food 1,100 1,133 1,166 1,200 1,236 

276-136-959.000 Miscellaneous Expenses 500 515 530 545 561 

276°136-960.001 Books 5,500 5,665 5,834 6,009 6,189 

276-136-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 276,098 284,381 292,912 301,700 310,751 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 952,276 980,842 1,010,255 1,040,550 1,071,754 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
276-136-977.005 Furniture & Fixtures 15,000 15,450 15,913 16,390 16,881 

276-136-977 .011 Computer Equipment 25,000 25,750 26,522 27,317 28,136 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 40,000 41,200 42,435 43,707 45,017 

Page 73 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 

276-136-999.101 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 101 21,000 21,630 22,278 22,946 23,634 
276-136-999.277 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 277 17,988 18,347 18,713 19,087 19,468 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 38,988 39,977 40,991 42,033 43,102 

-
Totals for dept 136 - District Court 3,302,580 3,400,490 3,501,299 3,605,109 3,712,005 

Dept 151 - Court Probation 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

276-151-702.000 Salaries & Wages 331,422 341,364 351,604 362/152 373,016 
276-151-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 26,312 27,101 27,914 28,751 29,613 
276-151-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 123,245 115,888 119,364 122,944 126,632 
276-151-717.000 Life Insurance 4,191 4,316 4,445 4,578 4,715 
276-151-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 24,205 24,931 25,678 26,448 27,241 
276-151-719.001 Dental Insurance 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 509,375 513,609 529,005 544,873 561,217 

SUPPLIES 

276-151-731.003 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 
SUPPLIES 3,000 3,060 3,121 3,183 3,246 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

276-151-942.002 COPIER SUPPLES 200 206 212 218 224 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 200 206 212 218 224 

Totals for dept 151- Court Probation 512,575 516,866 532,338 548,274 564,687 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 3,815,155 3,917,356 4,033,637 4,153,383 4,276,692 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 276 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,093 2,093 2,093 2,093 2,093 
ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,093 2,093 2,093 2,093 2,093 

Page 74 of88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET -----· 

Fund 277 - MIDC GRANT FUND 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

STATE GRANTS 

277-000-637 .036 MIDC PROJECT REVENUE 494,715 503,942 519,226 534,971 551,193 
STATE GRANTS 494,715 . 503,942 519,226 534,971 551,193 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

277-000-699.276 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 276 17,988 18,347 18,713 19,087 19,468 
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 17,988 18,347 18,713 19,087 19,468 

Totals for dept 000 - 512,703 522,289 537,939 554,058 570,661 

-----------
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 512,703 522,289 537,939 554,058 570,661 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 137 - MIDC GRANT - DISTRICT COURT 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

277-137-702.000 .Salaries & Wages 111,767 115,120 118,573 122,130 125,793 

277-137-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 9,108 9,381 9,662 9,951 10,249 

277-137-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 3,425 3,527 3,632 3,740 3,852 

277-137-721.010 Health Care Waiver 7,293 7,511 7,736 7,968 8,207 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 131,593 135,539 139,603 143,789 148,101 

SUPPLIES 

277-137-727.000 Office Supplies 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

SUPPLIES 1,500 1,530 1,560 1,591 1,622 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

277-137-804.000 Legal Services 279,000 287,370 295,991 304,870 314,016 

277-137-818.000 Other Professional Services 365,675 97,850 100,785 103,808 106,922 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 644,675 385,220 396,776 408,678 420,938 

Page 75 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

. GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

277-137-976.000 Building Additions 92,100 
277-137-977.011 Computer Equipment 40,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 132,100 

Totals for dept 137 - MIDC GRANT - DISTRICT COURT 909,868 522,289 537,939 554,058 570,661 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 909,868 522,289 537,939 554,058 570,661 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 277 (397,165) 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 551,693 154,528 154,528 154,528 154,528 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 154,528 154,528 154,528 154,528 154,528 

Page 76 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 280 - PA 48 TELECOMMUNICATION ALLOCATION (ROW) 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

STATE GRANTS 

280-000-539.480 STATE GRANT- PUBLIC ACT 48 TELECOM 225,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 
STATE GRANTS 225,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

Totals for dept 000 - 225,000 231,750 238,702 · 245,863 253,239· 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 225,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 

280-966-999.101 TRANSFER OUT TO FUND 101 275,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

APPROPRIATION (OPERATING) TRANSFERS (OUT 275,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 275,000. 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 275,000 231,750 238,702 245,863 253,239 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 280 (50,000} 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 58,105 8,105 8,105 8,105 8,105 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 8,105 8,105 8,105 8,105 8,105 

Page 77 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 445 - Capital Improvements Fund 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

445-000-403.000 Current Property taxes 921,585 • 949,233 977,710 1,007,041 1,037,252 
445-000-403.002 Property Tax Chargeoacks (19,840) (20,435) (21,048) (21,680) (22,330) 
445-000-441.000 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE 1 26,887 27,694 28,524 29,380 30,262 

PROPERTY TAXES 928,632 956,492 985,186 1,014,741 1,045,184 

STATE GRANTS 

445-000-539.000 State grants 

STATE GRANTS 

OTHER REVENUE 

445-000-673.000 Sale of Fixed Assets 5,101 

445-000-686.000 . REIMBURSEMENTS 

OTHER REVENUE 5,101 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

I 445-000-665:001 Investments Income 26,722 27,256 27,802 28,358 28,925 

445-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 26,722 27,256 27,802 28,358 28,925 

Totals for dept 000 - 955,354 988,849 1,012,988 1,043,099 1,074,109 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 955,354 988,849 1,012,988 1,043,099 1,074,109 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 228 - Information Technology 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-228-977 .011 Computer Equipment 110,333 170,333 66,333 31,333 31,333 --
CAPITAL OUTLAY 110,333 170,333 66,333 31,333 31,333 

Totals for dept_228- I.nformation Technology 110,333 170,333 66,333 31,333 31;333 

Page 78 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

Dept 265 - Building Maintenance 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-265-97 4.021 

445-265-976.001 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

City Hall Lot Repairs 

Building Additions & Improvements 

Totals for dept 265 - Building Maintenance 

Dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-273-976.001 

CAPITAL OUT[..AY 

Building Additions & Improvements 

Totals for dept 273 - Cemetery Ottawa Park 

Dept 276 - Cemetery Oak Hill 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-276-976.001 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Building Additions & Improvements 

Totals for dept 276 - Cemetery Oak Hill 

Dept 301 - POLICE/SHERIFF 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-301-976.001 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Building Additions & Improvements 

Totals for dept 301- POLICE/SHERIFF 

Dept 336 - FIRE DEPARTMENT 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-336-976.001 Building Additions & Improvements 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Totals for dept 336 - FIRE DEPARTMENT 

2019-20 

BUDGET 

175,000 

1,325,000 

1,500,000 

1,500,000 

125,000 

125,000 

125,000 

Page 79 of 88 

2020-21 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

38,000 

38,000 

38,000 

2021-22 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

350,000 

350,000 

350,000 

2022-23 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

330,000 

330,000 

330,000 

2023-24 

MAYOR REC. 

BUDGET 

560,000 

560,000 

560,000 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Dept 448 - Street Lighting 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-448-974.056 STREIT LIGHT IMPROVEMENTS 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Totals for dept 448 - Street Lighting 

Dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-458-977.002 VEHICLES 190,000 530,000 500,000 470,000 470,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 190,000 530,000 500,000 470,000 470,000 

Totals for dept 458 - PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS 190,000 530,000 500,000 470,000 470,000 

Dept 733 - CODE ENFORCEMENT 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

445-733-977 .002 VEHICLES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Totals for dept 733 - CODE ENFORCEMENT 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,925,333 738,333 916,333 831,333 1,061,333 

NIT OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 445 (969,979) 250,516 96,655 211,766 12,776 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,305,466 1,335,487 1,586,003 1,682,658 1,894,424 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 1,335,487 1,586,003 1,682,658 1,894,424 1,907,200 

Page 80 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 585 - Parking Enterprise Fund 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

PROPERTY TAXES 

585-000-403.002 Property Tax Chargebacks (1,000} 
PROPERTY TAXES (1,000} 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

585-000-654.015 Parking - Phoenix Center 1,179,394 1,214,775 1,251,218 1,288,754 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,179,394 1,214,775 1,251,218 1,288,754 

STATE GRANTS 

585-000-539.000 State grants . 163,020 

STATE GRANTS 163,020 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

585-000-665.001 Investments Income 32,335 32,981 33,640 34,312 34,998 

585-000-665.100 UNREALIZED MARKET ADJUSTMENTS 

INTEREST AND RENTS 32,335 32,981 33,640 34,312 34,998 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

585-000-695.001 Bond Proceeds 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Totals for dept 000 - 194,355 1,212,375 1,248,415 1,285,530 1,323,752 

Dept 566 - Parking City 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

585-566-699.101 . TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 564 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,373 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 564 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,373 

Totals for dept 566 - Parking City 564 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,373 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 194,919 2,548,747 2,584,787 2,621,902 2,660,125 

Page 81 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 564- Phoenix Center Parking 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

585-564-804.000 Legal Services 

585-564-804.018 Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 

585-564-921.000 Utilities Electricity 54,062 1 55,683 57,353 59,073 60,845 

585-564-922'.000 Utilities Water & Sewer 1,589 · 1,636 1,685 1,735 1,787 

585-564-923.000 Utilities Gas Heat · 185 190 195 200 206 

585-564-931.001 Services - Building Mqintenance 192,000 197,760 203,692 209,802 216,096 

585-564-962.022 101 Admin Allocation-To Other Funds 13,785 14,198 14,623 15,061 15,512 

585-564-968.000 Depreciation 849,686 875,176 901,431 928,473 956,327 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 1,111,307 1,144,643 1,178,979 1,214,344 1,250,773 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

585-564-97 4.035 Phoenix Center Projects 600,000 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 600,000 

Totals for dept 564 - Phoenix Center Parking 1,711,307 1,144,643 1,178,979 1,214,344 1,250,773 

Page 82 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
Dept 566 - Parking City 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

585-566-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 17,884 18,420 18,972 19,541 20,127 
585-566-968.000 Depreciation 46,876 48,282 49,730 51,221 52,757 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 64,760 66,702 68,702 70,762 72,884 

Totals for dept.566 - Parking City 64,760 66,702 68,702 70,762 72,884 

Dept 925 - Debt Service 

DEBT SERVICE 

585-9250991.000 Bond Principal 523,496 549,998 577,842 607,095 

585-925-995.001 Interest Expense Bonds 797,876 771,374 743,530 714,278 

585-925-999.000 Paying Agent Fees 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

DEBT SERVICE 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,373 

Totals for dept 925 - Debt Service 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,372 1,336,373 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,776,067 2,547,717 2,584,053 2,621,478 2,660,030 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 585 (1,581,148) 1,030 734 424 95 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 12,877,720 11,296,572 11,297,602 11,298,336 11,298,760 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 11,296,572 11,297,602 11,298,336 11,298,760 11,298,855 

Page 83 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 659 - Insurance Fund 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

659-000-680.001 MEDICAL-EMPLOYEE 164,880 169,904 174,998 180,245 185,650 
659-000-680.002 Medical-Retiree 214,749 
659-000-680.003 MEDICAL-EMPLOYER 804,993 829,528 854,399 880,017 906,406 
659-000-680.044 0 ptica 1/H earing-Active 17,221 17,737 18,269 18,817 19,382 
659-000-680.100 MEDICAL - GERS 1,223,503 

659-000-680.200 MEDICAL - PFRS 3,469,873 
659-000-681.001 Life-Active 69,751 71,885 74,028 76,235 78,506 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 5,964,970 1,089,054 1,121,694 1,155,314 1,189,944 

OTHER REVENUE 

659-000-683.001 Denta I-Active 20,849 21,470 22,102 22,754 23,423 
659-000-684.045 General. and Property Insurance 675,603 696,633 717,530 739,052 761,222 

OTHER REVENUE 696,452 718,103 739,632 761,806 784,645 

Totals for dept 000 - 6,661,422 1,807,157 1,861,326 1,917,120 1,974,589 

Dept 966 -Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

659-966-699.101 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND 101 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

Totals for dept 966 - Transfers To/ From Other Funds 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 6,661,422 1,807,157 1,861,326 1,917,120 1,974,589 

Page 84 of 88 . 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 194 - Risk Management 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

659-194-702.000 Salaries & Wages 

659-194-715.000 F.I.C.A. - City Contribution 

659-194-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 

659-194-717.000 Life Insurance 

659-194-719.000 Workers Compensation Insurance 

659-194-719.001 Dental Insurance 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

659-194-851.000 SERVICES - COMMUNICATIONS-TELEPHONE 

659-194-852.010 SERVICES- CABLE TV/INTERNET 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

Totals for dept 194 - Risk Management 

Dept 851 - Insurance and Bonds 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

659-851-914.000 Insurance Property Coverage 675,603 696,633 717,530 739,052 761,222 

659-851-915.000 Insurance-City Claim Expense 100,000 

659-851-915.001 Insurance-Other Liability Claims 100,000 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 875,603 · 696,633 717,530 739,052 761,222 

Totals for dept 851 - Insurance and Bonds . 875,603 696,633 717,530 739,052 761,222 

Dept 854 - Employee Medical Insurance 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

659-854-716.000 MEDICAL INSURANCE 969,873 999,432 1,029,397 1,060,262. 1,092,056 
659-854-716.011 Optical & Hearing Insurance 17,221 17,737 18,269 18,817 19,382 
659-854-717 .000 Life Insurance 69,751 71,885 74,028 76,235 78,506 
659-854-719.001 Dental Insurance 20,849 21,470 22,102 22,754 23,423 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,077,694 1,110,524 1,143,796 1,178,068 1,213,367 

Page 85 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

659-854-804.013 Legal Services-Miller Canfield 85,000 
659-854-804.018 Legal Services-Giarmarco Mullins 50,000 
659-854-818.000 Other Professional Services 

659-854-818.082 PROF SERV. - MEADOWBROOK 48,403 
OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 183,403 

Totals for dept 854 - Employee Medical Insurance 1,261,097 1,110,524 1,143,796 1,178,068 1,213,367 

Dept 861 - Retiree Fringes 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

659-861-716.001 Medical Insurance - Retiree 4,908,125 
659-861-718.007 GERS VEBA - City Contribution 4,250,000 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 9,158,125 

Totals for dept 861- Retiree Fringes 9,158,125 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 11,294,825 1,807,157 1,861,326 1,917,120 1,974,589 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 659 {4,633,403) 
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 5,579,925 946,522 946,522 946,522 946,5~L 
ENDING FUND BALANCE 946,522 946,522 946,522 946,522 946,522 

Page 86 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

Fund 677 - Self Insurance Workers Compensation 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 

Dept 000 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

677-000-682.001 WC CITY EMPLOYEE PREMIUM FR.OM FUND5 143,715 148,117 152,545 157,107 161,805 

677-000-682.002 SELF INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT - ALL OTI 189,101 194,773 200,616 206,633 212,831 

677-000-682.003 SELF INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENTS - WRC 5,436 5,599 5,767 5,940 6,1::_~--
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 338,252 · 348,489 358,928 369,680 380,754 

INTEREST AND RENTS 

677-000-665.001 Investments Income 16,397 16,725 17,059 17,400 17,748 

INTEREST AND RENTS 16,397 16,725 17,059 17,400 17,748 

Totals for dept 000 - 354,649 365,214 375,987 387,080 398,502 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 354,649 365,214 375,987 387,080 398,502 

Page 87 of 88 



06/25/2019 BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF PONTIAC 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

2019-20 MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. MAYOR REC. 
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 
APPROPRIATIONS 

Dept 851- Insurance and Bonds 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

677-851-722.005 WORKERS' COMP - PREMIUMS -143,715 148,117 152,545 157,017 161,805 

677-851-722.308 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS - POLICE 133,379 137,380 141,502 145,746 150,119 

677-851-722.448 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS - DPW 43,583 44,890 46,236 47,623 49,051 

677-851-722.591 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS - WRC 5,436 5,599 5,767 5,940 6,118 

677-851-722.954 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS - GENERAL 12,139 12,503 12,878 13,264 13,661 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 338,252 · 348,489 358,928 369,590 380,754 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 

677-851-915.050 IBNR DEPOSIT LIABILITY ADJUSTMENT 300,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

OTHER SERVICES AND CHARGES 300,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

Totals for dept 851- Insurance and Bonds 638,252 448,489 458,928 469,590 480,754 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 638,252 448,489 458,928 469,590 480,754 

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- FUND 677 {283,603) {83,275) {82,941) {82,510) {82,252) 

BEGINNING FUND. BALANCE 904,960 621,357 538,082 455,141 372,63_; __ 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 621,357 538,082 455,141 372,631 290,379 

Page 88 of 88 



Fp~'~,~bs:e-d City of Pontiac Fees for FY 2019/2020 
/r,!c, jf'!J -,_J1, Li'~?, .'c'I" 

Gener\::il/Administrati'oR I 
City Clerk 

I i,__' • -~ ' : /-, ~• ,J j ; l,--1 i"J r, L .; 

-UH\ 
Notary Service: 

City Residence 
Non-city residence 

Code of Ordinances: 
Per book 

$5.00 
$10.00 

Per Page 
Per page 

Per supplement service copy of voter files 
Copy of Voter files: 

Per disk email option available 
Per name (list) 
Per name (list) Xerox copies 
Per page 

$35.00 
$0.02 
$0.04 
$1.00 

Human Resources 

Copies of files 

Income Tax 

$0.13 Per page 

NSF $35.00 Per item 

Planning Department 

General 

Land division 
Land platting 
Lot split 
Lot combination (1st lot combined) 

Each additional lot combined 
Regulated Use Waiver (1st acre of less) 

Each additional acre or fraction thereof 
Right of Way/Alley Vacation 
Special Planning Commission meeting 
Comprehensive Plan - Book w/Map 

Map only (color) 
Zoning Ordinance Book w/ Map 

Map only (colored map w/cd) 

Planning Commission 

$250.00 
$75.00 

$600.00 
$900.00 
$750.00 
$100.00 

$SO.DO 
$1,000.00 

$100.00 
$1,500.00 
$2,000.00 

$50.00 
$5.00 

$35.00 
$5.00 

Multiple family dwelling preliminary site plan review 
Each additional acre or fraction thereof 

$500.00 
$25.00 

$990.00 
$100.00 

(Max fee $10,000.00} 

Multiple family dwelling final site plan review 
Each additional unit 

Non-residential preliminary site plan review - $500.00 
Each additional acre or fraction thereof $25.00 

Non-residential final site plan review $990.00 
Each additional 1,000 Sq. Ft. $100.00 

(Max fee $10,000.00) 

Parking lot or change of use (1 acre or less) $600.00 
Each additional acre or fraction thereof $SO.OD 

Planned unit development $1,000.00 

BUDGET BOOK CHANGES 

Planning Department (Continued) 

Administrative Review Fees 

Zoning compliance permit 
Parking lot change of use (1 acre or less) 

Each additional acre or fraction thereof 
Special i!xception permit (1 acre or less) 

Each additional acre or fraction thereof 
Zoning map amendment (1 acre or less) 

Each additional acre or fraction thereof 
Waiver from Woodlands Ordinance 
Sign review 
Wireless communication facility admin review 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

$150.00 
$500.00 

$SO.DO 
$1,000.00 

$100.00 
$1,350.00 

$100.00 
$750.00 
$150.00 

$1,000.00 

Residential (1 & 2 family) $300.00 
For each additional variance on the same petition $100.00 

Multiple family and non-residential variance $950.00 
For each additional variance on the same petition $100.00 

Use variance (1 acre or less) $1,000.00 
Each additional acre or fraction thereof $100.00 

Signage variance $750.00 

Historic District Commission 

Commission review 
Special meeting 

Building Permits 

$200.00 
$2,000.00 

Building $75.00 Minimum fee 
Estimated Cost of Construction: 

$200.00 to $1,000.00 $75.00 
$1,001.00 to $500,000.00 $75.00 

Plus $20.00 per $1,000.00 of cost or 
fraction thereof over $1,001.00 

$500,001.00 to $1,500,000.00 $10,055.00 
Plus $15.00 per $1,000.00 of cost or 

fraction thereof over $500,001.00 

If more than $1,500,000.00 $25,040.00 
Plus $10.00 per $1,000.00 of cost or fraction 

thereof over $1,500,001.00 with no upper limit 

Special Inspections: 
Inspections, for determinir:ig code compliance $SO.OD 
Re-inspection of work not ready and re-inspection 

of a violation that has not been complied with 
by the expiration notice $SO.DO 

Overtime Inspections -
Fee for inspection outside or regular business hours shall 

be at 1.5_ times the hourly rate of the personnel 
involved, with minimum charge to three hours 

(Changed Fee Schedule) 



Proposed City of Pontiac Fees for FY 2019/2020 (Continued) 

Building Permits (Continued) 

Administration $200.00 

The inspection fee for work initiated 

before permit has been issued 

Plan review: 

$0 to $1,000,000 0.0015 of valuation 

minus $100.00 minimum 

$1,000,000 to $5,000,000 $1,500.00 plus .0005 of 

evaluation over $500,000 

$5,000,000 to $ and up $3,500.00 plus .0004 of 

evaluation over $5,000,000 

Plan review of electrical, mechanical and plumbing is 25% of 
the building plan review fee for each discipline. 

Minimum plan review fee $175.00 

Application Fee 

Special Building Fees: 

Permit Extension Fee 

Contractor Registration 

Certificate of Occupancy 

NSF 

Demolition Permit 

First 1000 sq. ft. 
Each additional 500 sq. ft. 

NSF 

Property Maintenance 

Property Maintenance Inspection 

NSF 

Per Inspector 
Re-Inspection 

NSF 

Special Hearing 

NSF 

Team Inspection 

Hearing Officer 

Board of Appeals 

Special Hearing 

NSF 

BUDGET BOOK CHANGES 

$35.00 

$SO.OD 
$35.00 

$200.00 

$35.00 

$250.00 

$50.00 

$35.00 

$200.00 

$35.00 

$SO.DO 
$50.00 

$35.00 

$900.00 

$35.00 

$900.00 

$35.00 

Filing Fee 

NSF 

Construction BOA 

Electrical Permits 

Application Fee 
New Home 

Substandard Property/Complete Renovation 

Minimum Fee 

_ Permanent Service for One Phase: 

100 Ampere or Less 

101 to 200 Ampere 

210 to 400 Ampere 
Over 400 Ampere 

Permanent Serive for Three Phase: 

100 Ampere or Less 

101 to 200 Ampere 
201 to 400 Ampere 

Over 400 Ampere 

Additional Service -

Each Additional Sub-Service 

Stand by Power & Generator (One Phase): 

100 Ampere or Less 

101 to 200 Ampere 

201 to 400 Ampere 

Over 400 Ampere 

Automatic Transfer Switch 

Manual Transfer Switch 

Stand by Power & Generator (Three Phase): 

100 Ampere or Less 

101 to 200 Ampere 

201 to 400 Ampere 

Over 400 Ampere 

Automatic Transfer Switch 

Manual Transfer Switch 

Stand by Power & Generator (Temporary): 

60 Ampere Switch 

100 Ampere Switch 

200 Ampere Switch 

400 Ampere Switch 

600 Ampere Switch 

800 Ampere Switch 

Electrical Furnances & Heating Units -

1- 10 Units in Addition to Circuit Fee 

Welders and Generators -

Each in Additions of Circuit Fee 

Feeders & Sub-Feeders -

Up to 50 Feet 

Each additional 50 feet or fraction thereof 

(Changed Fee Schedule) 

$500.00 

$35.00 

$35.00 

$205.00 

$205.00 

$75.00 

$37.00 

$40.00 

$47.00 
$SD.OD 

$42.00 

$47.00 

$52.00 

$55.00 

$30.00 

$37.00 

$40.00 

$47.00 

$50.00 

$35.00 

$30.00 

$42.00 

$47.00 

$52.00 
$55.00 

$40.00 

$35.00 

$20.00 

$21.00 

$22.00 

$23.00 

$24.00 

$25.00 

$25.00 

$25.00 

$25.00 

$25.00 



Proposed City of Pontiac Fees for FY 2019/2020 {Continued) 

Electrical Permits (Continued) 

Transformers: 

1 ~A Through 100 ~A 
101 KVA Through 200 ~A 
201 KVA Through 400 ~A 
Over400 KVA 

Motors: 

First 1/4 HP up to 10 HP (Up to 7450W) 
First 11 HP up to 20 HP (Up to 14920W) 
First 21 HP up to 30 HP (Up to 22380W) 
First 31 HP up to 40 HP (Up to 29840W) 
First 41 HP up to 50 HP {Up to 37300W) 
First 51 HP and Up 
Each Additional Unit 

Mobile Home Electrical Hook-Up -
Per Unit 

Sign Installation & Inspection Before Installation: 
One Sign 
Each Additional Sign at Same Location 

Fixtures (Smoke Detectors, Power Outlets, 
Light Fixtures): 

Installation of 1 to 10 Fixtures 

$32.00 
$37.00 

$40.00 
$47.00 

$25.00 
$26.00 
$27.00 
$28.00. 

$29.00 
$40.00 
$42.00 

$75.00 

$75.00 

$25.00 

Each Additional 10 Fixtures or Fraction Thereof 
Lighting Pole & Base Installation 

$20.00 

$15.00 
$25.00 

$20.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 
$75.00 

Battery Operated Light/Line Voltage - First 10 
Each Additional 10 Fixtures or Fraction Thereof 
Exit Light (Each) 
Each Circuit 

General Repair Permit 

Special Electrical Fees: 

Inspection To Determine Code Compliance . 
Re-Inspection Fee of work not ready, or for a 

violation not complied with by expiration 
date of Violation Notice 

Fee for Inspection out of Regular Hours at 

1.5 times Rate of inspector, with 3 hour 
minimum charge. {Per Hour) 

Permit Extention Fee 
Contractor Registration 

Work Done Without Permit Penalty 
NSF 

Application Fee 
New Home 

Mechanical Permits 

Substandard Property/Complete Renovation 
Minimum Fee 

Heating Equipment - New or Replacement: 

Over 40,000 to 100,000 BTU Per Hour: 

First 10 Units at Each Occupancy - Each Unit 

BUDGET BOOK CHANGES 

$SO.DO 

$SO.OD 

$SO.OD 

$SO.DO 
$35.00 

$200.00 

$35.00 

$35.00 
$205.00 

$205.00 
$75.00 

$40.00 

Mechanical Permits (Continued) 

Each Additional Unit Over 10 at 

Same Occupancy 

Over 200,000 to 400,000 BTU Per Hour -

Each Unit 

$30.00 

$47.00 

Water Heater, Chimney Liner, FirPplace, Fire Dampers $32.00 

Gas Piping System Permit: 
1 Gas Pressure & Piping Test 

Each System (Furnace, Water Heater, 
Dryer, Range, etc.) 

Space Heating/Cooling Distribution System Ductwork: 
Up to 100,000 BTU Fuel Input Per Hour 
Over 100,000 to 200,000 BTU Fuel Input Per Hour 
Over 200,000 to 400,000 BTU Fuel Input Per Hour 
Over 400,000 to 2,000,000 BTU Fuel Input 

Per Hour 
Over 2,000,000 to 5,000,000 BTU Fuel Input/hr 

Comfort Cooling Equipment & Systems: 

$64.00 

$32.00 

$32.00 
$50.00 
$60.00 

$75.00 
$80.00 

Up to 60,000 BTU (5 Tons) or less (Self Contained Units 
or Systems): 

First 10 Units at Same Location/Each Unit $SO.DO 
Additional Units Over 10 at Same 

Location/Each Unit 

60,000 BTU {S Tons) to 120,000 BTU 

(10 Tons)/Each Unit 
120,000 BTU {10 Tons) to 600,000 BTU 

{50 Tons)/Each Unit 
600,000 BTU (50 Tons) to 1,500,000 BTU 

(125 Tons)/Each Unit 
Alterations to Each System 

$32.00 

$57.00 

$67.00 

$100.00 
$30.00 

Commercial Clothes Dryer for Installation or Replacement: 
1st 5 Units Commercial Clothing Dryer $30.00 
Each Additional Commercial Clothes Dryer 

@ Same Location $21.00 

Liquefied Petroleum Gas System & Storage: 
Over 500 Gallons to 1,200 Gallons 
Over 1,200 Gallons 

Fire Suppression Systems: 
Inspection of Sprinkler Heads - First 10 
Each Additional Heads Over 10 

Commercial Hood System: 
Each New or Modified System 

$42.00 
$47.00 

$SO.DO 
$5.00 

$164.00 

Duct Systems - Installation, Alteration or Additions: 
Up to 1,000 Cubic Feet Per Minutes of Air $27.00 

Over 1,000 CFM to 2,000 CFM $32.00 
Over 2,000 CFM to 4,000 CFM $37.00 
Over 4,000 CFM to 20,000 CFM $42.00 

Over 20,000 CFM to 50,000 CFM $47.00 

(Changed Fee Schedule} 



Proposed City of Pontiac Fees for FY 2019/2020 (Continued) 

Mechanical Permits (Continued) 

Refrigeration System for Other Than Comfort Cooling -

Self Contained System/Compressor, Activated by 
Motors or Engines: 

UptoS HP 
5 HP to 10 HP 
10 HP to 50 HP 
50 HP to 1255 HP 

Installation Permit - Tank (Fuel Oil or Other): 
Above Ground, Not Exceeding 550 Gallons 
Below Ground, Not Exceeding 550 Gallons 
Over 550 Gallons to 5,000 Gallons 
Over 5,000 Gallons to 20,000 Gallons 
Over 20,000 Gallons to 50,000 Gallons 
Over 50,000 Gallons to 200,000 Gallons 
Over 200,000 Gallons 
Alterations to existing Burner or Furnance 
Air/Exhaust Vents 
Each Additional Vent 

Air Handling Equipment or Systems: 

$30.00 
$39.00 
$49.00 
$59.00 

$24.00 
$31.00 
$42.00 
$47.00 
$57.00 
$70.00 
$95.00 
$40.00 
$25.00 

$10.00 

Blower, fans and electronic air cleaner, new installation: 
Up to 4,000 CFM $25.00 
Over 4,000 CFM to 50,000 CFM $40.00 

Heat Recovery Unit/Radiator 

Mobile Home Mechanical Hook-Up: 
Per Unit 
Boiler 200,000 BTU 

Piping: 

Medical Gas, Process Piping, Hydronic Piping, 
Refrigeration Piping Each System 

Pressure Test for Each System 
Fuel gas, Process, Hydronic, Refrigeration, 

$10.00 

$75.00 
$100.00 

$32.00 

$32.00 

Commercial Air Conditioning $0.05 Processed 
Piping Per Foot 

Special Mechanical Fees: 
Inspection To Determine Code Compliance 
Re-Inspection Fee of work not ready, or for 

a violation not complied with by expiration 
date of Violation Notice 

Fee for Inspection out of Regular Hours at 1.5 

times Rate of inspector, with 3 hour 

$50.00 

$50.00 

minimum charge. 

Permit Extension Fee 
Work Done Without Permit Penalty 
Plan Review Fee 

$50.00 Per Hour 

$50.00 
$200.00 

$175.00 

Mechanical Contractor Registration 
Mechanical Board of Appeals 

NSF 

BUDGET BOOK CHANGES 

$15.00 
$900.00 

$35.00 

Application Fee 

New Home 

Plumbing Permits 

Substandard Property/Complete Renovation 
Minimum Fee 
Stacks (New Alteration) (Soil, Waste, Vent, 

Inside Connection) 

Sump & Interceptors, Dishwashers, Tubs, 
Catch Basins, Automatic Washers, Drinking 
Fountains, Floor Drains, Food Disposals, 
Grinders, Hose Connections, Humidifiers, 
Laundry Trays, Lavatories, Pumps Toilets, Sinks, 
Soda Fountain or Br, Urinals & Shower Traps (Each) 

Water Heater 
Backflow Preventer 
Medical Gas System 

Water Service: 
Water Svs/Dist 1/2" 

Water Svs/Dist 3/4" 
Water Svs/Dist 1" 
Water Svs/Dist 2" 
Water Svs/Dist 3 11 

Water Svs/Dist 4" 
Water Svs/Dist Over 4" 

Water Distribution: 
1st 100 Feet 
Each Additional Foot 

Building Sewer - Size: 
Building Sewer & Drain 4" 
Building Sewer & Drain 10" 

Building Sewer & Drain 12" 
Building Sewer & Drain 14" 
Building Sewer & Drain 16" 
Building Sewer & Drain 18" 

Storm Sewer: 
Storm & Sanitary 1st 200 Feet 

Storm & Sanitary Additional 100 Feet 

Building Sewer to Drain Connection - Building Drain -
Underground Building Drains/Storm not Over 611 

Storm Drain -
Manholes and Catch Basins 

Plumbing for Mobile Home Hook-Up -

Per Unit 
Special Plumbing Fees: 

Inspection To Determine Code Compliance 
Re-Inspection Fee of work not ready, or for a 

violation not complied with by expiration 

date of Violation Notice 

(Changed Fee Schedule) 

$35.00 
$205.00 
$205.00 

$75.00 

$17.00 

$16.00 

$20.00 

$5.00 
$45.00 

$40.00 
$40.00 
$45.00 
$50.00 
$60.00 
$70.00 
$80.00 

$80.00 
$0.10 

$45.00 

$50.00 
$ss.oo. 
$60.00 
$70.00 
$75.00 

$80.00 
$35.00 

$45.00 

$16.00 

$75.00 

$SO.OD 

$SO.OD 



Proposed City of. Pontiac Fees for FY 2019/2020 (Continued) 

Plumbing Permits (Continued) 

Fee for Inspection out of Regular Hours at 
1.5 times Rate of inspector, with 3 hour 
minimum charge. (Per Hour) 

Permit Extension Fee 
Contractor Registration 
Work Done Without Permit Penalty 

NSF 

Fire Permit Electrical 

Application Fee 

Minimum Fee 
Circuits for Fire System: 

Each Signaling Device 
Each Control Circuit 
Each Remote Sensor 

Each Main Control Station 
Each Speaker & Microphone 
Each Amplifier 
Each Main Control Center 
Each Door or Window Sensor 
Each Vibration Sensor 
Each Key Station or Remote Station 
Each Panic Button 
Each Automaatic Dialer 
Each Pressure Sensor 
Each Alarm (Horn, Bell, Etc.) 

Each Auxilary Power Supply 
Each Control Panel 
Each Pull Station 

Each Fire Head and/or Smoke Sensor 
Each Telephone Station 
Each Doorway Exit Unlocking System 
Each Data Gathering, Reporting, Sub Panel 
Each Fan, Elevator Interlocked to System 

Special Mechanical Fees: 

Inspection To Determine Code Compliance 
Re-Inspection Fee of work not ready, or 

for a violation not complied with by 
expiration date of Violation Notice 

Fee for Inspection out of Regular Hours at 

1.5 times Rate of inspector, with 3 hour 
minimum charge. (Per Hour) 

Permit Extention Fee 
Contractor Registration 

Work Done Without Permit Penalty 

NSF 

Sign Permit 

Application Fee ( Non-Refundable) 

NSF 

BUDGET BOOK CHANGES 

$SO.DO 

$SO.OD 
$15.00 

$200.00 

$35.00 

$35.00 
$75.00 

$11.00 
$15.00 
$11.00 
$17.00 
$11.00 
$11.00 

$15.00 
$11.00 
$11.00 

$9.00 
$11.00 
$10.00 
$11.00 
$11.00 
$10.00 
$15.00 
$11.00 
$11.00 

$11.00 
$9.00 

$15.00 
$14.00 

$SO.OD 

$SO.OD 

$SO.OD 
$SO.OD 
$35.00 

$200.00 

$35.00 

$150.00 

$35.00 

Business License 

Business Certificate Fee Schedule: 

New License (Requires Team Inspection) 
Renew License 
Special Event License 
Non-participating vendor fee 

Niche Business: 
Arcade and Vending Machines (Per Machine) 
Massage Parlor 
Newspaper Delivery Recepticle 
Sidewalk Cafe 
Taxicab (Per Bond plate) 
Taxicab Business 
TaxiCac Driver 

Public Assembly -
Amusement Gallery, Dance Hall, Theatre 

Transient Housing: 

$160.00 
$160.00 

$1,200.00 
$1,000.00 

$25.00 
$500.00 

$1.00 
$100.00 

$SO.OD 
$100.00 
$100.00 

$175.00 

Hotel/Motel (Per Room - Every Three Years) $25.00 
Transient Housing(Per Room - Every Three Years) $210.00 

Non-Profit Organizations -
Club, Service Organization, Hospitals 

Temporary Permit: 

Christmas Tree Sales 
Circus or Carnival (Per Week) 
Daily Business License (1 Day) 
Daily Business License (Each Additional Day) 

Fireworks display 
Sound (Public Address) (Per three Days) 

Sound (Vehicle) 
Transient Trader 
Going out of Business Sale 
Peaceful Assembly 
Sound Permit 

Businesses Requiring Bonds: 

$20.00 

$100.00 
$350.00 

$150.00 
$100.00 
$100.00 
$100.00 
$100.00 

$10.00 
$50.00 
$75.00 

$100.00 

Auctioneer $2,500.00 
Auctions (Two times the value of 

auction items) $1,000.00 -$5,000.00 

Christmas Tree Sales 
Circus or Carnival 
Dry Cleaners 

Frozen Confectioners (Ice Cream Truck) 
Junk Dealer 
Junk Gatherer 
Second Hand Dealer 
Newspaper Deliver Receptacle 
Sidewalk Cafe 

Rental Registration 

Rental Registration (Per Building) 

Rental Inspection (Per unit) 

(Changed Fee Schedule) 

$1,000.00 
$1,000.00 
$1,000.00 
$2,000.00 
$1,000.00 

$200.00 
$2,500.00 

$5,000.00 
$300.00 

$300.00 
$100.00 



Proposed City of Pontiac Fees for FY 2019/2020 (Continued) 

Rental Inspection for units 2 - 10, 12 - 20, 
22 - 30, etc. (Per unit) 

Rental Registration (Continued) 

Change of Rental Manager 
Re-inspection Fee 
Annual Tenant Verification Fee 

Rental Complaint When Certified Fee 

NSF 

Ordinance Enforcement 

Blight Court Administration Fee 
Grass Cutting Administration Fee 
Place Property Charges on Tax bill Fee 

Sanitation - R-0-W Abatements 
Senior Centers: 

$25.00 

$150.00 
$50.00 
$10.00 

;;75.00 

$35.00 

$200.00 
$100.00 

$50.00 

$58.70 

Deposits 
Rental Fees: 

$100.00 Refundable 

Repast Dinner Weekdays $32.00 
Repast Dinner Weekends - Minimum 

of 4 hours $25.00 

$100.00 
Weekdays - No minimum hours 

Weekends - Minimum of 4 hours 

Events 

Parks: 

Deposits 
Rental Fees 

Porta Johns 
Comfort Station 

$100.00 Refundable 
$35.00 Parks with pavillion 

$90.00 Per Event 
$50.00 Beaudette Park Only 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Board of Appeals: 

Application Fee 
Special Hearing 

Special Event Permit 

Non-refundable Administrative Review Fee 

Economic Development (Non-Refundable) 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

$500.00 

$500.00 

(PA 210 of 2005) $1,500.00 
Plant Rehabilitation & Industrial 

Development Act (PA 198 of 1974) $1,500.00 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) 

(PA 146 of 2000) $1,500.00 
Payment in Lieu of Tax (PILOT), State Housing 

Development Authority Act (PA 346 of 1966) $1,500.00 

Brownfield Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act 
(PA 381 of 1996) 

BUDGET BOOK CHANGES (Changed Fee Schedule) 

$1,500.00 



. - 'i 
•, I •• l,_ ! ', ! 1:1:1 

I ,, i.. -~ '···' 

;: 
11 I ')- JI /'I ? 1 i 

1_ LJ _ f I t_ \...: Mi 10: 22 
Mayor 

I t) ( j j t /\ l, Li GL[f~Vi 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Jane Bais-DlSessa (Deputy) 

Economic • nd Community 
Developm•nt Director 

Vacant 

Community Rel• tlons 
JamesJohnson,Jr. 

CSR 
ArleHeTaylor 

Public Safety 

Cable 
PhllllpBrown 

Police service are currently outsourced to 
Oakland County Sheriff . 

Fire protection is currently outsourced to 
Waterford Fire Regional Authority. 

Pl•nnlnr: 
vemon Gustafsson {Mer.) 
Donovan Smith {Planner) 

Code Enforctim• nt 
Brto1.owskl,Patrli:k(M1r,) 

CodeEoforscmtm:Offlstcs 
DesslrBurrou1hs 

Tamara Cooper 

FlorlnMlndru 

DanlelVer&un 

Executive Aides 

Tamura Veasy 
Dwayne Lyons 

Oakland County Als•ulnr: 
(Outsourced) 

Accountln1 

(Outsourced) 

Flnancl•IAn•lyst 
Ben Plassman 

Purch• slnc 
JesslcaMassev 

P1y1bles • nd Recelnbles 
Janet Peters 

Hum• n Resourcu 
l<learha Davidson (M1r.) 
Ester Jimenez (CSR/HR 

Assistant} 

Grant Writer 
Alexandria RIiey 

Treasury 
Sekar Bawa (Treasurer) 
Rosewnson(Deputy) 
Karen Whltley (CSR) 

Income Tax 

Public Works Director 
John Bellnt(Dlrector) 

DanRln1o(D•putyDlreetor) 

En1lna• rln1 
Vln~Jlmenez 

Vacant-Rl1htofWay 
Inspector 

Bulldlns: 
Larry Robinson 
Vietor Stevens 

Publlc Works/ Hl1hw1y 
Erle Brimm 

Allen Cooley Ill 
JenyHolland 
Lee Johnson 

AndrewLan1lols 
Robert Locher Jr 
Alfred Nettle 111 

RobertW.Shelton 
Robert J.Shtlton 

Accountln1 Anlst•nt 
Mindy Wesley 

CSR 
J•cquellne Tennille 

Larrv Kosofsky (Administrator) 
AssL to lncomce Tax Ad min. (Vacant) 

District Court, some part-time, and non-managerial positions are not listed. Please refer to the Personnel Listing. 

Citizens, City of Pontiac 

R•cr•• tlon 

Youth R•cra•tlon 

JnonCrute(M1r.) 
Robert Burch (Assist. Mar.) 

Senior Center 
II= 

l<enyada Bowman 

Debor.ah Flndley 

Blilb.elWl2n 
Linda Simpson 

Gladys Smith 

City Council 
7-member body 

Patrice Waterman- District 1 
Donald Woodward - District 2 

Mary Pietila - District 3 
Randolph Carter- District 4 

Glorla Mlller-DistrlctS 
Doris Burks - District 6 

Kermit Wllllams (President) - District 7 

City Clerk 
Garland Doyle (Interim) 

Deputy ctty Clerk 
Shena Grandison 

Asslst.totheCltyCl• rk 
vacant 

CSR 
Vacant 

Elections 
TBD 

U11JlatlveCoun1• I 
Monique Sharpe 

City Attorney 
OubldeFlrm 

U11Jl1tlveFhct1IAnelyst 
Vacant 



City of Pontiac PersonneLLjsti_ng 
.- - r - I ,':: /~ 

FY 2019-2020 · · ,_ ·-· c.c_ • - ~ ,_.c 

~,,.. - J. f' 
-~-~-~~~!>-~_r ____ L iJ l ~ ___ L H _ 2 5 ___ AH J_Q_; _2"'-?~ ___________________ !,_~~~~!-

101-101-702.000 

101-171-702.000 

101-191-702.000 

101-202-702.000 

101-206-702.000 

:.,, J ct>i;.ru;iL 0 : i { CLE H h 
Burks, Doris 

Carter, Randolph 

Miller, Gloria 

Pietila, Mary 

Sharpe, Monique 

Waterman, Patrice 

Williams, Kermit 

Woodward, Donald 

Legislative Fiscal Analyst 1 

Mayor 

Bais Disessa, Jane 

Lyons, Dwayne 

Veasy, Tamura 

Waterman, Deirdre 

Elections 

Jimenez, Vincente 

Assistant City Clerk 1 

Tax Administrator 

16,500.00 

16,500.00 

16,500.00 

16,500.00 

95,000.00 

16,500.00 

16,500.00 

16,500.00 
___________________ 65-'-,000.00 _ 

275,500.00 

112,950.24 
65,520.00 

65,520.00 
_______________ 1_13,000.00 _ 

356,990.24 

251.56 

----------------------- 55,000.00 _ 
55,251.56 

Kosofsky, Larry 68,140.80 
Assistant To Income Tax Admir ______________________ 45,000.09 __ 

Finance 

Massey, Jessica 

Newsome, Hughey 

Peters, Janet 

Plassman, Benjamin 

Riley, Alexandria 

113,140.80 

54,600.00 

50,000.00 

56,784.00 

75,000.00 

62,38~~~~--
298, 770.69 

101-215-702.000 Clerk 

101-253-702.000 

Doyle, Garland 

Grandison, Sheila 

Csr (Clerks Office) 1 

Treasury 

Bawa, Sekar 

Whitley, Karen 

Wilson, Rose 

Csr (Treasury ?t) 1 

90,000.00 

64,481.04 

----------------------- 35,360.00 _ 
189,841.04 

88,400.00 

36,400.00 

68,140.80 

----------------------- 16,286.40 
209,227.20 

Pl 



City of Pontiac Personnel Listing 

FY 2019-2020 

GL Number Amount ----------------------------------------- --------------------------------------
101-265-702. 000 

101-270-702.000 

101-301-702.000 

101-447-702.000 

101-458-702.000 

101-690-702.000 

101-721-702.000 

101-733-702.000 

101-818-702.000 

DPW/Facility Maintenance 

Robinson, Larry 

Stevens, Victor 
Maintenance Worker 1 

Human Resources 

Davidson, Kiearha 
Jimenez, Ester 

Public Safety 

Reis, Denise 

Engineering 

Balint, John 
Jimenez, Vincente 
Ringo, Dan 
Inspector - Engineering 1 

Public Works Operations 

Balint, John 
Cooley Iii, Allen 
Ringo, Dan 
Tennille, Jacquelyn 
Wesley, Annette 

35,669.82 
30,804.96 

----------------------- 31,200.66 _ 
97,675.44 

67,600.00 

----------------------- 41,446.91 _ 
109,046.91 

53,006.00 
53,006.00 

24,701.04 
46,589.09 

20,000.00 

----------------------- 29,606.00 _ 
120,896.13 

74,103.12 
32,579.82 
60,000.00 
52,838.49 

---------------- _ ------ 44,007.81 _ 
263,529.24 

Economic/Community Development 

Craft, Troy 17,889.66 
Johnson, Jr, James 52,000.00 
Taylor, Arielle 34,403.20 
Economic/ Community Develo _______________________ 85,000.00 _ 

Planning 

Cox, Miriam 
Gustafsson, Vernon 
Smith, Donovan 

Code Enforcement 

Brzozowski, Patrick 
Burroughs, Dessir 
Cooper, Tamara 
Mindru, Florin 
Vergun, Daniel 

Public Works/Parks 

Brimm, Eric 
Langlois, Andrew 

Nettle Iii, Alfred 
Robinson, Larry 
Shelton, Robert 

189,292.86 

35,360.00 

88,400.00 

____ 7~0,720.00 _ 
194,480.00 

67,600.00 
41,600.00 

41,600.00 
41,600.00 
41,600.00 

234,000.00 

7,902.06 
1,725.57 
7,902.06 

779.67 

----------------------1,725.57 _ 
20,034.93 

P2 



City of Pontiac Personnel Listing 
FY 2019-2020 

GL Number 

202-463-702.000 

202-478-702.000 

202-485-702.000 

203-463-702.000 

203-478-702.000 

Amount -----------------------------------------------------------
DPW Routine Maintenance 

Brimm, Eric 

Cooley Iii, Allen 

Holland, Jerry 

Langlois, Andrew 

Locher Jr, Robert 

Nettle Iii, Alfred 

Shelton, Robert 

Shelton, Robert 

Laborer Ii - Operations 1 

Laborer Ii - Operations 2 

DPW /Winter Maintenance 

Brimm, Eric 

Cooley Iii, Allen 

Holland, Jerry 

Langlois, Andrew 

Locher Jr, Robert 

Nettle Iii, Alfred 

Shelton, Robert 

Shelton, Robert 

Stevens, Victor 

Laborer Ii - Operations 1 

Laborer Ii - Operations 2 

DPW/Traffic Control 

Cooley Iii, Allen 

Inspector - Engineering 1 

Laborer Ii - Operations 1 
Laborer Ii - Operations 2 

11,006.45 

8,687.95 

10,570.56 

7,333.66 

10,570.56 

11;006.45 

7,333.66 

10,570.56 

10,391.84 

__ l_0,~3~}:_~~~--
97,863.53 

9,736.47 

8,687.95 

10,570.56 

9,059.23 

10,570.56 

9,736.47 

9,059.23 

10,570.56 

1,020.03 

10,391.84 

---- 10,391.84 _ 
99,794.74 

1,447.99 

9,040.00 

10,391.84 

----------------------- 10,391.84 _ 
31,271.67 

Dpw/Local Streets Routine Maintenance 

Brimm, Eric 9,595.36 

8,687.95 

10,570.56 

9,059.23 

10,570.56 

9,595.36 

9,059.23 

10,570.56 

Cooley Iii, Allen 

Holland, Jerry 

Langlois, Andrew 

Locher Jr, Robert 

Nettle Iii, Alfred 

Shelton, Robert 

Shelton, Robert 

Inspector - Engineering 1 

Laborer Ii - Operations 1 

Laborer Ii - Operations 2 

Dpw/Local Streets Winter Maintenance 

Brimm, Eric 

Cooley Iii, Allen 

Holland, Jerry 

Jimenez, Vincente 

Langlois, Andrew 

Locher Jr, Robert 

Nettle Iii, Alfred 

Shelton, Robert 

Shelton, Robert 

P3 

3,977.60 

10,391.84 

10,391.84 

102,470.09 

9,595.36 

8,687.95 

10,570.56 

1,358.43 

9,059.23 

10,570.56 

9,595.36 

9,059.23 

10,570.56 



City of Pontiac Personnel Listing 

FY 2019-2020 

GL Number Amount ---------------------------------
Stevens, Victor ________________ 1,_5~.:1:_~~? __ 

80,648.29 

P4 



City of Pontiac Personnel Listing 

FY 2019-2020 

GL Number Amount ---------------
208-756-702.000 Youth Administratiion 

Burch, Robert 37,440.00 

Crute, Jason 57,200.~~--
94,640.00 

208-775-702.000 Youth Sports Programs 

Craft, Troy 17,889.67 

Gray, Jonas 35,520.44 

53,410.11 

209-273-702.000 Dpw/ Ottawa Park Cemetary 

Robinson, Larry 194.92 

Stevens, Victor 408.01 

602.93 

209-276-702.000 Dpw/Oak Hill Cemetary 

Robinson, Larry 779.67 

Stevens, Victor 408.01 

1,187.68 

212-813-702.000 Peterson Center 

Findley, Deborah 24,011.52 

Simpson, Linda 24,011.52 

Smith, Gladys 24,011.52 _ 

72,034.56 

212-814-702.000 Bowen Center 

Bowman, Kenyada 13,029.12 

Findley, Deborah 13,506.48 

SIMPSON, LINDA 13,506.48 

Smith, Gladys 13,506.48 

SENIOR CENTER SUPPORT STAI 13,029.12 

SENIOR CENTER SUPPORT STAI 13,029.12 

79,606.80 

226-528-702.000 DPW /Sanitation 

Johnson, Lee 18,684.44 

Pt Equipment Operator 1 22,464.00 

pt Equipment Operator 2 22,464.00 

pt Litter Pick Up 1 12,342.84 

pt Litter Pick Up 2 12,3~I~~~--
88,298.12 

231-291-702.000 Cable 

Brown, Phillip 69,889.04 _ 

69,889.04 

PS 



City of Pontiac Personnel Listing 

FY 2019-2020 

GL Number ------------------------------------ --------------------
276-136-702.000 District Court 

276-151-702.000 

277-137-702.000 

Adams, Annette 

Awudu, Zinabu 

Berg, Holly 

Best, Amber 

Carr, Sydney 

Chamberlain, Bernardette 

Escobar, Maria 

Flye, Bryan 

Gardner, Ariel 

Garner, De Carla 

Gjelaj, Joseph 

Greer-Alvrez, Renee 

Gross, Ronda 

lvezaj, Maria 

Jefferson, Gwendolyn 

King, Lisa 

Martinez, Michael 

Neill, Wisetta 

Nelson, Monica 

Powell, Samantha 

Ragatz, Shelby 

Ratliff, Carmen 

Sarr, Awa 

Thomas, Preston 

Viazanko, Connie 

Volpe, Maura 

Walker, Cynthia 

Ward, Lynette 

Wilkerson, Alicia 

Court Clerk 1 

Court Clerk 2 

Court Clerk 3 

Court Full Time Clerical 11 

Court Office Manager 1 

Pt Traffic/ Criminal Clerk 1 

Court Probation· 

Bell, Archie 

Chandler, Chad 

Ewing, Anthony 

Huff, Rachel 

Polanco, Juan 

Zanin, David 

Court Officer 1 

Court MIDC 
Johnson, Ashley 

Midc Court Officer 1 

Midc Court Officer 2 

P6 

Amount 

48,530.96 

39,901.80 

41,497.87 

49,061.08 

12,721.80 

17,476.99 

41,497.87 

60,782.80 

41,497.87 

41,497.87 

16,804.80 

63,838.32 

47,554.00 

12,721.80 

51,051.52 

62,387.52 

47,554.00 

51,051.52 

34,935.68 

41,497.87 

41,497.87 

41,497.87 

56,243.20 

47,554.00 

51,051.52 

41,497.87 

47,554.00 

107,121.04 

51,051.52 

39,901.80 

39,901.80 

39,901.80 

33,512.40 

54,080.00 

15,487.20 

1.531,717.83 

46,358.64 

46,358.64 

46,358.64 

55,053.44 

46,358.64 

46,358.64 

44,575.62 

331,422.26 

57,707.06 

27,030.00 

27,030.00 

111,767.06 



Formal e ting 

-25-1 



June 25, 2019 Formal Meeting 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

100th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
June 25, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. by Councilwoman Mary Pietila. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks. 
Members Absent: Carter, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Mayor Waterman was absent. 
Clerk announced no quorum. 

Mayor arrived at 6:06 p.m. 

Fifteen (15) individuals address the body during public comment. 

Councilwoman Mary Pietila adjourned the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 

1 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



I 
p ial ting 

-29- 9 



June 29, 2019 Special Meeting 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

101 th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Saturday, 
June 29, 2019 at 1:01 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Members Absent: Carter and Miller. 
Mayor Waterman was absent. 
Deputy Mayor was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Councilman Randy Carter arrived at 1 :02 p.m. 

19-308 Excuse Councilwoman Gloria Miller for personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson 
Woodward and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Councilwoman Miller arrived at 1 :03 p.m. 

19-309 Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Received Communication from the Mayor regarding Vetoes of Line Items on Fiscal Year 2019-20 
Adopted Budget. 

19-310 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto 585 Parking Fund Appropriation Amendment 
585-000-695.001. (Fund 585-Parldng Enterprise Fund Other Financing Sources 585-000-695.001 
Bond Proceeds) Moved by Councilperson Woodard and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019, the City Council approved the City of Pontiac 2019-2020 General 
Appropriations Act Ordinance as an emergency; and, 

1 



June 29, 2019 Special Meeting 

WHEREAS, section 5.103 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) allows 
the Mayor to veto the budget and appropriation ordinance on an item-by-item basis; and, 
WHEREAS, section 3.112(f) of the Charter requires the City Clerk to present the ordinance to the Mayor; 
and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, the Clerk presented the ordinance to the Mayor; and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, as permitted by sections 3.l 12(f) and 5.103 of the Charter the Mayor 
issued an item-by-item basis veto of the emergency ordinance; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of 5 85 Parking Fund Appropriation Amendments and 101 General 
Fund Transfer Amendment 585-000-695.001, 585-564-974.035, 101.-966-999.585 and 585-566-699.101; 
and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(f), the City Council wishes to reconsider item Fund 585-
Parking Enterprise Fund Other Financing Sources 585-000-695.001 Bond Proceeds in the 2019-20 budget 
over the Mayor's veto. Five affirmative votes are required by Charter section 3.l 12(f). 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
item Fund 585- Parking Enterprise Fund Other Financing Sources 585-000-695.001 Bond Proceeds in the 
2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-311 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto 585 Parking Fund Appropriation Amendment 
585-564-974.035 (Fund 585-Parldng Enterprise Fund Appropriations Dept. 564-Phoenix Center 
Parldng Capital Outlay 585-564-974.035 Phoenix Center Projects) $600,000. Moved by 
Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019, the City Council adopted the City of Pontiac 2019-2020 General 
Appropriations Act Ordinance as an emergency; and, 
WHEREAS, section 5.103 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) allows 
the Mayor to veto the budget and appropriation ordinance on an item-by-item basis; and, 
WHEREAS, section 3.112(±) of the Charter requires the City Clerk to present the ordinance to the Mayor; 
and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, the Clerk presented the ordinance to the Mayor; and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, as permitted by sections 3.l 12(f) and 5.103 of the Charter the Mayor 
issued an item-by-item basis veto of the 2019-20 budget adopted by City Council; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of 5 85 Parking Fund Appropriation Amendments and 101 General 
Fund Transfer Amendment 585-000-695.001, 585-564-974.035, 101-966-999.585 and 585-566-699.101; 
and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(f), the City Council wishes to reconsider item Fund 585-
Parking Enterprise Fund Appropriations Dept. 564-Phoenix Center Parking Capital Outlay 585-564-
974.035 Phoenix Center Projects $600,000 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. Five 
affirmative votes are required by Charter section 3. l 12(f). 

2 



June 29, 2019 Special Meeting 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
item Fund 585-Parking Enterprise Fund Appropriations Dept. 564-Phoenix Center Parking Capital Outlay 
585-564-974.035 Phoenix Center Projects) $600,000 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-312 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto 101 General Fund Transfer Amendment 101-
966-999.585 (Dept. 966- Transfer to/From Other Funds Appropriation (Operating) Transfers (Out 
101-966-999.585 Transfer out of Fund 585) $564. Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019, the City Council adopted the City of Pontiac 2019-2020 General 
Appropriations Act Ordinance as an emergency; and, 
WHEREAS, section 5.103 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) allows 
the Mayor to veto the budget and appropriation ordinance on an item-by-item basis; and, 
WHEREAS, section 3.112(£) of the Charter requires the City Clerk to present the ordinance to the Mayor; 
and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, the Clerk presented the ordinance to the Mayor; and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, as permitted by sections 3.112(±) and 5.103 of the Charter the Mayor 
issued an item-by-item basis veto of the 2019-20 budget adopted by City Council; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of 5 85 Parking Fund Appropriation Amendments and 101 General 
Fund Transfer Amendment 585-000-695.001, 585-564-974.035, 101-966-999.585 and 585-566-699.101; 
and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(£), the City Council wishes to reconsider item Fund 585-
Parking Enterprise Fund Dept. 566- Parking City Operating Transfers In 585-566-699.101 Transfer in 
from Fund 101 $564 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. Five affirmative votes are required by 
Charter section 3.112(£). 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
item Fund 585-Parking Enterprise Fund Dept. 566- Parking City Operating Transfers in 585-566-699.101 
Transfer in from Fund 101 $564 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-313 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto of 585 Parking Fund Appropriation 
Amendment 585-566-699.101 (Fund 585-Parking Enterprise Fund Dept. 566-Parking City 
Operating Transfers in 585-566-699.101 Transfer in from Fund 101) $564. Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019, the City Council adopted the City of Pontiac 2019-2020 General 
Appropriations Act Ordinance as an emergency; and, 

3 



June 29, 2019 Special Meeting 

WHEREAS, section 5.103 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) allows 
the Mayor to veto the budget and appropriation ordinance on an item-by-item basis; and, 
WHEREAS, section 3. l 12(f) of the Charter requires the City Clerk to present the ordinance to the Mayor; 
and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, the Clerk presented the ordinance to the Mayor; and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, as permitted by sections 3.l 12(f) and 5.103 of the Charter the Mayor 
issued an item-by-item basis veto of the 2019-20 budget adopted by City Council; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of 585 Parking Fund Appropriation Amendments and 101 General 
Fund Transfer Amendment 585-000-695.001, 585-564-974.035, 101-966-999.585 and 585-566-699.101; 
and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(f), the City Council wishes to reconsider item Fund 585-
Parking Enterprise Fund Dept. 566 Parking City Operating Transfers in 585-566-699.101 Tin from Fund 
101 $564 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. Five affirmative votes are required by Charter 
section 3.l 12(f). 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
item Fund 585-Parking Enterprise Fund Dept. 566- Parking Operating Transfers in 585-566-699.101 
Transfer in from Fund 101 $564 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-314 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto of 208 Youth recreation Fund Appropriation 
Amendment 208-756-702.000 (Fund 208-Youth Recreation Millage Appropriations Dept. 756 
Recreation Facility Personnel Services 208-756-702.000 Salaries & Wages) $94,640. Moved by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Carter. 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019, the City Council adopted the City of Pontiac 2019-2020 General 
Appropriations Act Ordinance as an emergency; and, 
WHEREAS, section 5.103 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) allows 
the Mayor to veto the budget and appropriation ordinance on an item-by-item basis; and, 
WHEREAS, section 3.l 12(f) of the Charter requires the City Clerk to present the ordinance to the Mayor; 
and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, the Clerk presented the ordinance to the Mayor; and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, as permitted by sections 3.l 12(f) and 5.103 of the Charter the Mayor 
issued an item-by-item basis veto of the 2019-20 budget adopted by City Council; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of 208 Youth Recreation Fund Appropriation Amendment 208-756-
702.000; and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.l 12(f), the City Council wishes to reconsider item Fund 208-
Youth Recreation Millage Appropriations Dept. 756 Recreation Facility Personnel Services 208-756-
702.000 Salaries & Wages $94,640 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. Five affirmative votes 
are required by Charter section 3.112(f). 

4 



June 29, 2019 Special Meeting 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
item Fund 208-Youth Recreation Millage Appropriations Dept. 756 Recreation Facility Personnel 
Services 208-756-702.000 Salaries & Wages $94,640 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Williams and Woodward 
No: Waterman 
Resolution Passed. 

19-315 Resolution to Override Mayor's Veto of 101 General Fund Appropriation 
Amendment 101-206-702.000 (Dept. 206-Finance Administration Personnel Services 101-206-
702.000 Salaries & Wages) $298,771. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Miller. 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2019, the City Council adopted the City of Pontiac 2019-2020 General 
Appropriations Act Ordinance as an emergency; and, 
WHEREAS, section 5.103 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Charter) allows 
the Mayor to veto the budget and appropriation ordinance on an item-by-item basis; and, 
WHEREAS, section 3.112(:f) of the Charter requires the City Clerk to present the ordinance to the Mayor; 
and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, the Clerk presented the ordinance to the Mayor; and, 
WHEREAS, on June 26, 2019, as permitted by sections 3.112(£) and 5.103 of the Charter the Mayor 
issued an item-by-item basis veto of the 2019-20 budget adopted by City Council; and, 
WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a veto of 101 General Fund Appropriation Amendment 101-206-702.000; 
and, 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 3.112(£), the City Council wishes to reconsider item General 
Fund Appropriation Dept. 206-Finance Administration Personnel Services 101-206-702.000 Salaries & 
Wages $298,771 which specifically includes the Finance Director $50,000.00, Financial Analyst 
$75,000.00, Grant Writer $62,386.69, Accounts Payable and Receivable Manager $56,784.00 and 
Purchasing Agent $54,600.00 in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. Five affirmative votes are 
required by Charter section 3112(£). 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council that the Council hereby adopts 
item General Fund Appropriation Dept. 206-Finance Administration Personnel Services 101-206-702.000 
Salaries & Wages $298,771 which specifically includes the Finance Director $50,000.00, Financial 
Analyst $75,000.00, Grant Writer $62,386.69, Accounts Payable and Receivable Manager $56,784.00 
and Purchasing Agent $54,600.00in the 2019-20 budget over the Mayor's veto. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

Councilman Don Woodward was excuse at 1:23 p.m. 

Nine (9) individuals address the body during public comment. 

5 



June 29, 2019 Special Meeting 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 1 :53 p.m. 

6 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



7-2-19 



July 2, 2019 Study Session 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

102nd Session of the Tenth Council 

A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, July 
2, 2019 at 12:03 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Presentations 

Pontiac Water/Sewer Rates Fiscal Year 2020 
Presentation Presenters: Honorable Jim Nash, Oakland County Water Resource Commissioner (WRC), 
WRC Officials: Ben Lewis (Sewer), Amy Ploof (Water), and Raphael Chirolla (Rate Presentation) 

DPW Presentation 

Roll Call taken at 12:35 p.m. 

Members Present: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Members Absent: Carter, Miller and Pietila. 
Mayor Waterman was absent. 
Deputy Mayor was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-316 Excuse Councilperson Randy Carter, Gloria Miller and Mary Pietila for personal 
reasons. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-317 Motion to postpone item #12 for one week. (Resolution to consider appeal from A&S 
Kajy Enterprise, Inc., parcel #64-14-16-402-030 1124 Joslyn Ave.) Moved by Councilperson 
Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-318 Approval of the agenda with amendment. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

1 



July 2, 2019 Study Session 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-319 Approve special meeting minutes on the budget for June 6, 2019. Moved by 
Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Taylor-Burks 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-320 Approve special meeting minutes on the budget for June 7, 2019. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

" 
19-321 Approve special meeting minutes on the Phoenix Center for June 10, 2019. Moved 
by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Woodward, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-322 Approve formal meeting minutes on June 11, 2019. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-323 Approve special meeting minutes on the budget for June 13, 2019. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-324 Approve Public Hearing on the 2019-2020 Proposed Budget on June 13, 2019. 
Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 

2 



July 2, 2019 Study Session 

Motion Carried. 

19-325 Approve study session meeting minutes on June 18, 2019. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Received Community Development Subcommittee Report - June 20, 2019 

Four (4) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

19-326 
Woodward. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-327 Resolution to approve the Revocation of the Reverter Clause for 2 & 4 N. Saginaw, 
Pontiac, MI. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council holds the authority to revoke a reverter clause from a deed 
relating to a previous City land sale; 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that the property owner was required to build an Italian 
restaurant facility (Rose Larco's) on the first floor; Build an open-space concept furniture showroom and 
corporate offices (Urban Architecture) on the second floor; Build two open-space concept residential lofts 
on the third floor; 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that these requirements have been met by the property owner; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pontiac that the reverter 
clause for 2 & 4 N. Saginaw be revoked. 

19-328 
Woodward. 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Woodward, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

3 



July 2, 2019 Study Session 

19-329 Resolution to approve the Planning Commission's recommendation to approve the 
Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 19-01) request for 819 Golf Drive, also known as PIN 64-19-05-
102-009, to amend the current site zoning from R-1 Family Dwelling District to R-3 Multiple 
Family Dwelling District. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor
Burks. 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for 19 Liberty Street, 
identified as PIN 64-19-05-102-009 from 819 LLC c/o DA Real Estate and the applicant's petition is for 
the rezoning of the aforementioned parcel; and 
Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 
Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance; and 
Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it relates to 
Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public Hearing, 
and Planning Commission recommendation; and 
Whereas, on June 25, 2019, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 819 
Golf Drive, approving the change from the current R-1 Family Dwelling District to R-3 Multiple Family 
Dwelling District; and 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 19-01) request for 819 Golf Drive, 
also known as PIN 64-19-05-102-009, to amend the current site zoning from R-1 One Family Dwelling 
District to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. 

19-330 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

19-331 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to submit and execute the "KaBOOM! Play 
Everywhere Challenge" grant agreement in the amount of $56,500.00 for the Good Fun & Sound 
Abounds Downtown Project. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks. 

4 



July 2, 2019 Study Session 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has been given preliminary notice of award of a donation grant from 
KaBOOM! In the amount of $56,500 for the Good Fun & Sound Abounds Downtown project, and 
Whereas, KaBOOM! Is a national non-profit organization dedicated to ensuring that all kids get a 
childhood filled with the balanced and active play needed to thrive, and 
Whereas, KaBOOM! Facilities projects through the Play Everywhere Challenge grant program to 
introduce elements of play in unconventional spaces, and 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac desires to accept and such grants which may be awarded to the City. 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council hereby authorize participation in the 
KaBOOM! Play Everywhere Challenge and on behalf of the City of Pontiac, authorizes Mayor Deirdre 
Waterman to provide this resolution indicating its approval to KaBOOM! and to submit and execute 
documents requested by KaBOOM! Relating to the Play Everywhere Challenge grant requirements. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-332 Table for one-week item #14, the resolution to set a Special Meeting to discuss the 
draft Community Benefits Ordinance. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-333 Table items #19-27 for one week. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 1: 16 p.m. 

5 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 





June 11, 2019 Formal Meeting Approved Minutes 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council authorize the Mayor to enter into 
a contract with, MWV Environmental Services, Inc. for Asbestos Services for Batches 14 ($75,985.00) 
and 15 ($57,409.00) at a cost not to exceed $133,394.00. 

19-252 
Miller. 

19-253 
Loop) 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: Carter 
Resolution Passed. 

Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None · 
Motion Carried. 

Add-on Resolution to discontinue the Road Diet on Perry Street. (1-75 Business 

Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac received a request from the Michigan Department of Transportation to 
perform a road diet on Perry Street (I-75 Business Loop), effectively taking the roadway from a current 
five-lane section to a three-lane section; and, 
Whereas, this change was created for the purpose of creating a safer environment for both motorists, 
bicyclists and pedestrians; and, 
Whereas, the change consisted of only pavement markings, which can be changed, back to a five-lane 
section after the trail period; and, 
Whereas, the Pontiac City Council passed a resolution authorizing the Michigan Department of 
Transportation to perform the road diet on Perry Street (I-75 Business Loop) for a six-month trial period 
(November 2018 to April 2019); and, 
Whereas, the trail period is over and the Pontiac City Council believes that it is in the best interest of the 
City, to end the road diet on Perry Street (-75 Business Loop). 
Now, therefore Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council hereby authorizes the Michigan Department 
of Transportation to discontinue the road diet on Perry Street (I-75 Business Loop), remove the pavement 
markings and return the roadway back to five-lane section. 

Discussion on Resolution for Road Diet on Perry Street 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, and Taylor-Burks 
No: Pietila 
Resolution Passed. 

19-254 Add-on resolution to establish a Hiring Freeze. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-
Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

4 



October 30, ?,O 18 

Whercns, !he Pontiac City Council believes Orn! it is in the bes! interns! of !he City, that properly owners 
who receive a direct bcncl11 from llw grnss cutlillg, lillor cleanup, demo aod 11uis1mce ordinance should 
pny for the benefit; 

· Now, therefore, bt:) it resolved, that lhc Pontiac City Council directs tlint the City Treasurer spread 
$63,529.09 of aged special assessment receivable 011 the 7.018 winter lax rolls. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williaim; and Woodward 
No: None 
Resolution l'nsscd. 

I g .. 410 Resolution to nnthol'izc the Michigan I)cpnrtmcut of tnmsr>m•iation to perform a 
road diet on Perry St1·cct (I-75 Hnsincss Loop) for a six (9) month perio<I starting November 20 rn to 
,July 2019. Motion to perform road diet fo1· a six (6) month period instead of nine (9) month pel'iod. 
Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has received a request from the Michigan Department ofTrnnsporlation 
lo perform a rnad diet on Perry Stt'eet (1"75 Business Loop), effectively taking the roadway from a current 
five"lane section to a three-lane section; and, 
WHEREAS, !he materials presented by MDOT show that there will be minimal delay caused to the 
motoring public, and} 
WHEREAS, this change will also create a safor environment for both motorists, bicyclists and 
pedestrians; and, 
WHEREAS, the change consists of only pavement markings, which can be changed, back to a five-•lnnc 
section after n trial period; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thnt the Pontiac City Council pass a resolution authorizing the 
Michigan Department ofTrnnsportation to perform a road diet on Perry Street (1"75 Business Loop) for a 
six-month trial period. (November 2018 to April 2019) 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor••Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
No: None 
Resolution Pnssed. 

18-411 Resolution to authorize the Mayol' to sign the Pontinc Stem! Agl'cemcut with 
Cran brook Institute of Scicuce for nn amount not to exceed $33,S00,00, Moved by Councilperson 
Miller and second by Councilperson Carter. 

Whereas, this partnership between the City of Pontiac and Cranbrook Institute will provide Pontiac youth 
with an environment of learning and creating whore excellence innovatim1, collaboration, inclusiveness, 
stewardship and service arc fostered; and 

Whereas, this partnership will allow Pontiac youth to access the best Crnnbrook Institute has to offer in 
terms of programing, experiences and collections. 

Now therefore, it is resolved that the Mayor be authorized to sign the Pontiac Stem! Agreement with 
Cran brook fnstitutc of Science fol' an amount not to exceed $33,500.00. 

4 



UTI 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety 

PLANNING DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 

TELEPHONE: (248) 758-2800 I FAX: (248) 758-2827 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDEN.T AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON - PLANNING MANAGER 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

SEP 19-03 REQUEST AN APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION 
A & S KAJY ENTERPRISE, INC. I 1124 JOSLYN AVENUE I JOSLYN BEVERAGE 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT FOR A SDD LIQUOR LICENSE 

JUNE 11, 2019 

At the April 3, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the Commission reviewed a Special Exception Permit 

request [SEP 19-03] for retail sale of packaged liquor at 1124 Joslyn Avenue and was denied. Following 

Section 6.303, [H. Appeals] of the Zoning Ordinance, the Applicant has the right to submit an appeal [see 

attached letter] to the Planning Manager within ten days of the Planning Commission decision 

requesting an appeal from City Council. Mr. Kajy and Mr. Abro will be present at the City Council 

meeting to seek an appeal of Planning Commission vote to deny a Special Exception Permit for a Special 

Designated Distributor [SDD] license [see correspondence from Mr. Gus Abra dated May 13, 2019]. 

Joslyn Beverage currently sells packaged beer and wine, which was approved by City Council on March 
18, 2010 [see attached meeting minutes]. Zoning Ordinance requirements of Section 2.515 determines 

if packaged alcoholic beverages are compliant. 
A. The sale of packaged alcoholic beverages is prohibited to be located less than 500 feet from the property 

of a place of worship, park, playground, daycare facility, pre-school, or K thru 12 school. 
B. Not more than two properties upon which the retail sale of packaged alcoholic beverages is permitted 

shall be located within one mile. 

Currently, St Paul Community Lutheran Church and Bible Fellowship Christian Church are located within 500 feet 
of the retail sale of packaged liquor and three convenience retail businesses [Joslyn Market, Trademark Liquor and 
King Liquor] sell packaged alcoholic beverages are within one mile of Joslyn Beverage. 

See following resolutions to either Approve or Deny an Appeal of Planning Commission decision to grant or not 
grant a Special Exception Permit for a Special Designated Distributor [SOD] license. 



Resolution to Approve Appeal [19-03) 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for a Special Exception Permit for parcel 64-14-16-402-

030, also known as 1124 Joslyn Avenue from the Applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc., and; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division as reviewed the applicant's Special Exception Permit request to sell 

packaged alcoholic beverages with a Special Designated Distributer [SOD] license, in .addition to the 

existing Special Designated Merchant (SOM] license for the sale of beer and wine sales, and; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division has reviewed the requirements set forth in Section 2.515 of the Zoning 

Ordinance and Section 10.188 of the Pontiac Municipal Code and the Planning Division determined that 
aforementioned request and proposed sale of packaged liquor does not comply with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning Ordinance, and; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Section 6.302 as it 

related to Special Exception Permit Review Procedures and Requirements, the request has undergone 
the required; technical review, Public Hearing, and Planning Commission decision, and; 

WHEREAS, on April 3, 2019 a Public Hearing was held, the Planning Commission voted to deny the 
request the sale of packaged liquor at 1124 Joslyn Avenue. 

WHEREAS, Following Section 6.303, [H. Appeals] of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant submitted a 
letter to the Planning Manager Gustafsson within ten days of the Planning Commission decision 
requesting an appeal from City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Pontiac to appeal Planning 

Commission decision to grant a Special Designated Distributor license at parcel 64-14-16-402-030, also 

known as 1124 Joslyn Avenue from the Applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc. 

Resolution Vote: 

YES: Approve the Appeal to GRANT a Special Exception Permit for a Special Designated Distributor 
[SDD] license, 

2 



Resolution to Deny Appeal [19-03] 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for a Special Exception Permit for parcel 64-14-16-402-
030, also known as 1124 Joslyn Avenue from the Applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc., and; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division as reviewed the applicant's Special Exception Permit request to sell 

packaged alcoholic beverages with a Special Designated Distributer [SDD] license, in addition to the 
existing Special Designated Merchant [SOM] license for the sale of beer and wine sales, and; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division has reviewed the requirements set forth in Section 2.515 of the Zoning 

Ordinance and Section 10.188 of the Pontiac Municipal Code and the Planning Division determined that 

aforementioned request and proposed sale of packaged liquor does not comply with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance, and; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Section 6.302 as it 
related to Special Exception Permit Review Procedures and Requirements, the request has undergone 

the required; technical review, Public Hearing, and Planning Commission decision, and; 

WHEREAS, on April 3, 2019 a Public Hearing was held, the Planning Commission voted to deny the 

request the sale of packaged liquor at 1124 Joslyn Avenue, 

WHEREAS, Following Section 6.303, [H. Appeals] of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant submitted a 

letter to the Planning Manager Gustafsson within ten days of the Planning Commi.ssion decision 
requesting an appeal from City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Pontiac concur with the Planning 

Commission decision and deny the appeal to grant a Special Designated Distributor license at parcel 64-
14-16-402-030, also known as 1124 Joslyn Avenue from the Applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc. 

Resolution Vote 
YES: Deny the appeal to NOT GRANT a Special Exception Permit for a Special Designated Distributor 
[SDD] license. 

3 



. . l --·--- .... 
•·, _ .. _. ·1 

., . 

; :,_: 

l 

.... ·-· t···- ------- - ..... -.. _. ..... ··----·-·--·-- ------------··-·-- --------- ··-,,-·--· -· 

1 
1--' ' ·- - -·--- --·· -· . f" 

l _ _L{ -8- 2..o I q --· .. _ .. _ _ _ _ . _ _ .. . _ -· .. . 

' ' 

i 
I ; 
f 

.,.,. ----··----------

_ ' j aJ j j L'4 Jos¾J»- _jl_c,;1 h 4t___l!Q-. L/ f JIJL.__/S (< prcJ_ "'J . _ -- . - -·-----
·-······-.. -----·---------r&.:•-d~-~~.tL-o.J: ___ _sj)j) ___ .L.1Pd..QS~:.j~_ktcJ~ ___ wuJ~·.~-~J~;-i~;;~.~--c~-i'·_--·-·_-·-__ 

• ·::~.·-~~· ---·------.. ~---$ . ··-- - --------.. ·---··-·-·----· ... · .. ·-----

. -~ ------ [ a,L?-1::!i'.ll'l<Lt, _to mm,551.m M e-l ~-/+p,d 1,.},011~-__ 

... '~---~.-.:c=-1~-fu C~-4J~-.. ~~)~-~~elen ajWCtStt~fet lC~--J~ ---£~' ---
.::: I :._··., __ ,. _________ ........ t·---·--·---------------~- -----··-•-------· ~-~ ·-, ....... --·--------··· 

.. :;.-· __________ ... --i+k_ fuths .. _oJ __ ±\R _cSkesMwA Lv:tr:LH£Yl~cnd. w ... _fn<-£ __ 
i_- / ; I 

---;,c---.............. "--·---1·-·--- ----- . . ··-··-----------..:. ______ ... _. __________ _ 

"i: - -I mv_1,tl,12_JJ ~er ;q:m,),_:Ldo _1',,,,U1-icJ Kj J-hiK __________ _ 

JS/ ------..] d-o·r;sJaiLn h --~ ompJ t-=--~---:=;Jh}k-~Jto ..... o ,~ 
I 

' ! .X@~··, --
1 (i) 

.... ,.,,.-,:·,c,_,._, ... , ____ ;··~ . . JOJl 1--{1.U • _________________ _ 
-tf:i·-----~:}#':J ..... ,_______ ---,- ----:------~--·--
_ ,~:t·' ______________ L_~ __ LJti1Alcl _11,~ ___ fv .. _fvtMlL ~ CoO'}IY\vtez .... fi£ fu~(' --

------------·---· -------

------·-~i:1& __ ±:Q.~ __ Jf._lE_t,u_t ~-__ :fb.t_MCL¼.icJl_s_o.v:u~_an_0_~ c._+it0J -----
' :::.'~·,·_,,-,_c,."-=..,_s _ ... •• ·: _._.., ,J.,,·-·,.,,·,-,.-, .. ·._-,-,c_:.-:, :-5, -• ..... ,--·.c·.,-.·_-_._. ___ ,-:.-.-.,-.-.-.c-.---.~---_:,1 f 1-:-,.·.- .•,-.-.:,,;-.-:,-:-:-.-:---.,-.--•:,--~.--•:,_ £ _:.-.-.-,,,_. -.-.·----.-----~-----... : :,.,,::::,;.:c., ._.. ,:-,:-":::.-:-:-:-:-,: :'.:-'.: .-.·.·'.-:•:-,:•:-c -· ·:::' 



AB RO •. L 1
\ \\; 

GusJ. Abro,Acromey 

248,723,4545 phone 
248.598,4049 fax 
gu.@abrolaw.com e-mail 

500 S. Old ,Yoodwarcl 
Second Floor, Suit.e 200 
Biimingham, Michigan 48009 

Council President, City Council, and Honorable Mayor 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342-5009 

RE: SEP 19-03 - Special Exception Permit Request 
Appilicant: ,/4 & S Kajy Enterprises, Inc. I A & B Joslyn, LLC 
Proposed Application: SDD Liquor License approval 

To the Council President, Members of the Pontiac City Council, Honorable Mayor: 

May 13, 2019 

Our law firm represents A & S Kajy Enterprises, Inc. ("Kajy"). Please allow this letter to 

serve as an appeal to you of an April 30, 2019 denial by the City of Pontiac, Department of 

Building Safety, Planning Division ("Planning Commission") for a Special Exception Permit. 

Said request pertains to Kajy's application to transfer a Specially Designated Distributor 

("SDD") liquor license from Madison Heights to the City of Pontiac, as follows: 

Kajy is located at 1124 Joslyn Road, Pontiac, MI 48340 (the "Location") and has 

operated at the Location as a family style grocery/market since 2010. When Kajy opened in 

2010 it had applied for and was granted by the State of Michigan, Department of Licensing and 

Regulatory Affairs, Liquor Control Commission (the "LCC") an Specially Designated Merchant 

("SDM") beer and wine license, which was a1so approved by the Planning Commission for use at 

the Location, allowing Kajy to sell beer and wine. 

Through the years, Kajy has been a very community-oriented business. It is very 

common for Kajy to support local churches, law enforcement, children's and other organizations, 



as well as athletic teams, financially, and in various other ways. It is fair to say that Kajy is a 

very-well respected and liked business establishment in the community. Kajy gives back to the 

community, its customers and many charities the benefit the City of Pontiac and the community 

at large. 

Recently, Kajy applied to the LCC to transfer a certain SDD liquor license it had 

purchased from a similar establishment located in Madison Heights to the Location. The SDD 

license would permit Kajy to sell packaged liquor at the store. 

The LCC reviewed the application, performed its due diligence, conducted a full 

investigation and ascertained thatKajy, as well as its sole-owner Mr. Alaa Kajy, were of proper 

character and standing to qualify for such transfer. The LCC found, however, that Kajy was 

'Nithin 500 feet of two churches in contravention ofMCL 436.1503(1) which would prohibit the 

transfer of the SDD license to the Location because the Location was within 500 feet of two 

churches. Noting MCL 436.1503(4), however, which grants the LCC authority to waive this rule 

if the churches in question do not object to 1he transfer. As such and without any objection :from 

the churches, on March 27, 2019 the LCC approved of the transfer (see attached Exhibit 16). 

The two churches in question, St. Paul Community Lutheran Church., by and through Pastor Jon 

Trinklein, and the Bible Fellowship Christian Church, by and through District Elder Charles E. 

Thompson, Pastor, not only did not object, but both affinnatively represented, in writing, their 

approval that Kajy be granted the SDD license. (Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2). 

Contemporaneous with its application to the LLC, Kajy, on or about January 29, 2019, 

voluntarily submitted an Application for Special Exception Permit with the City of Pontiac and 

paid the requisite $1,000 fee. As such, Kajy was seeking approval by the Planning Commission. 

_.//fro r.,rn•:firm 



Kajy requested their approval, and on April 7, 2019, a Planning Commission meeting was held 

wherein, among several other things, Kajy's request was considered. 

Contrary to the LCC approval, the Planning Commission denied the request. The denial 

was based on two paragraphs of Section 2.515 of Pontiac's Zoning Ordinance: (1) that an 

applicant not be within 500 feet of two churches, and, as noted above, St. Paul Community 

Lutheran Church and the Bible Fellowship Christian Church, are within 500 feet ofKajy, and (2) 

that no more than two stores selling packaged liquor are permitted within one mile; the Planning 

Commission argued that there exists three such stores within one mile: King's Liquor, 

Trademark Liquor, and Joslyn Market. 

For the following reasons, Kajy requests that the Planning Commission decision be 

reviewed and reversed, and that Kajy be allowed to transfer his SDD license to the Location. 

]. Tlte Churches and the community approve of the transfer. 

City of Pontiac, Zoning Ordinance 2.515(A), which became effective February 2, 2012, 

provides as follows: 

Section 2.515 Retail Sales (packaged alcoholic beverages) 
A. The property shall be located no less than 500 feet, except as provided 

below at paragraph "c", from any and aJl: churches or similar places of 
worship, parks, playgrounds, daycare facility, pre- &/or K-12 schools. 

MCL 436.1503 is similar providing as follows: 

The [LCC] commission shall deny ... a request to transfer location of an 
existing license if the contemplated location is within 500 feet of a church or a 
school building. 

Section 503(4) of the Liquor Control Code requires, however, an objection by the churches 

involved in order to hold a hearing as to whether the applicant is in violation of MCL 436.1503. 

Ui1v Law •[i1,1; 



Here, the LCC wrote a letter to both the Bible Fellowship Christian Church and the St 

Paul Community Lutheran Church advising them of Kajy's application and requesting whether 

either objected to the transfer. (Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 4). If no objection is filed, then the 

application proceeds. No objection was presented. 

wrote: 

On March 5, 2019, Pastor Charles E. Thompson of Bible Fellowship Christian Church 

"You are such a positive business owner in our community. We appreciate your 
willingness to allow organizations to post flyers on your news bulletin. The 
community kids and adults feel that you treat them like family. Your caring 
attitude towards the customers is greatly appreciated and your generosity towards 
our organization will always be remembered. 

Thank you for all you do in this community and for the City of Pontiac. We 
acknowledge that we do not have any problems with your products and services. 
We are praying for you and your family." 

Sincerely, 
[Signed] District Elder Charles E. Thompson 

(Exhibit 1 ). 

On March 6, 2019, Pastor Jon Trinklein, of St. Paul Community Lutheran Church, wrote 

as follows: 

"To Whom It May Concern, 

On behalf of St. Paul Lutheran Church, I Pastor Jon Trinklein, and St. Paul have 
no objection for [Kajy] to have their license renewed for the sale of alcoholic 
beverages." 

Sincerely, 
[Signed] Pastor Jon Trinklein 

(Exhibit 2). 

These two letters establish that the two effected churches, Bible Fellowship Christian 

Church and St. Paul Community Lutheran Church, not only do not object to the Planning 

;I 61J Law 1t'im1 



Commission approving the transfer of Kajy's SDD license to the Location, but that, also, they 

affirmatively approve of it, in great part due to the positive impact Kajy has had in the 

community. 

There having been no objections by either church, the LCC waived its prohibition against 

packaged liquor being sold within 500 feet of a church, and approved K.ajy's application (Exh. 

16). 

It must be noted that, not only did the two churches involved not object to, but rather 

supported Kay's application, also the many members of the community at the April 7 hearing. 

Several members of the community testified at the April 7 hearing in support ofKajy, as 

follows: 

Mike Cobis stated that he's known Mr. Kajy since he opened the business, that Mr. Kajy 

is a man of integrity, that he gives back to the community, donates to churches, helps people out 

when they are down on their luck, that he takes pride in his business, and that he holds customer 

appreciation days. (Exhibit 5, April 30, 2019 Transcript, p 75, lines 7-14). 

Belinda Douglas stated that Mr. Kajy is well accepted and respected in the neighborhood 

and community. (Exhibit 5, April 30, 2019 Transcript, p 75, lines 21-22). 

Robert Huttenhower stated that Kajy has been very well received, takes care of the 

neighborhood, upgraded the property and made it stand out so that it shines, that you couldn't 

ask for a better business owner and couldn't ask for a better friend, that Kajy would help out and 

give the shirt off his back to help, and that his request should be granted. (Exhibit 5, April 30, 

2019 Transcript, p 76, lines 1-9). 

Billy Viverette stated fuat Kajy brings good to the neighborhood, the kids love him, that 

if he can help in any way he does so, that he's a credit to the neighborhood,, and that Kajy's 



request should be granted. (Exhibit 5, April 30, 2019 Transcript, p 76, line 21 through p 77, line 

4). 

The sole person speaking against Kajy was an Council woman who argued a strict 

interpretation of the ordinance, but said nothing negative about Kajy. (Exhibit 5, April 30, 2019 

Transcript, p 76, lines 14-18). 

Further, K.ajy has obtained the signatures of hundreds of members of the community who 

are in support of Kajy with regard to his application. (Exhibit 6). 

The Planning Commission should follow the lead of the LCC, the churches involved, and 

the community in general, and waive its Zoning Ordinance 2.515 as it relates to the two churches 

involved. Kajy respectfully asks for your support. 

2. The Zoning Commissi.on 's one mile rule has not been violated. 

City of Pontiac, Zoning Ordinance 2.515(B), which became effective February 2, 2012, 

provides in pertinent part as follows: 

Section 2.515 Retail Sales (packaged alcoholic beverages) 

B. Not more than 2 properties upon which the retail sale of packaged 
alcoholic beverages is permitted shall be located within 1 miJe. 

At that time, as well as cunently, no method of measurement was proscribed. Further, 

this section, by not defining a system of measurement, and not providing the start and stopping 

point of the one mile ("located within 1 mile" of what?") can fairly be described as ambiguous. 

A method of dealing with a regulatory ambiguity is to look for guidance from legislation 

involving a similar subject matter. People v Bugaiski, 224 Mich App 241; 568 NW2d 391 

(1997). 

1 ,,1'/J £aw <firm 



At the time City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance 2.515(B) was passed, Michigan Liquor 

Control Regulation Rule 436.1133 was in effect. Rule 436.1133, which was very similar to the 

City of Pontiac Ordinance 2.515(b), provides as follows: 

An application for a new specially designated distributor license or for 
the transfer of location of an existing specially designated distributor license shall 
not be approved by the commission if there is an existing specially designated 
distributor license located within 2,640 feet of the proposed site, The method 
of measurement shall be as prescribed in section 503 of 1998 PA 58, MCL 
436.1503. 

MCL 43(5.1503, the statute for measurement purposes noted immediately above, provides 

the following, with the pertinent portion for measuring distances highlighted: 

(1) The commission shall deny a new application for a license to sell alcoholic 
beverages at retail or a request to transfer location of an existing license if the 
contemplated location is within 500 feet of a church or a school building. The 
distance between the church or school building and the contemplated location 
must be measured along the center line of the street or streets of address 
between 2 fixed points on the center line determined by projecting straight 
lines, at right angles to the center line, from the part of the church or school 
building nearest to the contemplated location and :from the part of the 
contemplated location nearest to the church or school building. 

The MLCC website is in accord. MLCC's own website provides a description as to how 

to measure pursuant to MCL 436.1503. (See attached Exhibit 7). In the application the Jv!LCC 

provides the "Method of Measurement Under MCL 436.1503", stating: 

1. Determine the shortest route bemreen two lines. 
2. Create a beginning and ending point by projecting two lines, at right 
angles to the center line, :from the part of the church or school building nearest to 
the contemplated location and :from the part of the church or school building. 
(This is the blue line in the image below. Note that you project your lines from 
the structure, not the parking lot). 
3. Measure the distance between the two points located in the center of the 
road (green line). If any turns are taken, measure to the center of the 
intersection, and then tum, continuing down the center line of the road you have 
turned onto. 

16ro £aw i1rt.1 



.... ·-·-·-···~·· -·--~.-----·-·-.. · -~ - ----1 

This was the existing system of measurement used by the State of Michigan and the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission at the time Zoning Ordinance 2.515(B) was written, and 

had been in existence and used for over 14 years. For example see Exhibit 8, In The Matter of 

the Request of Sal's Market, Inc., Michigan Liquor Control Case No. 751989 with a map on the 

last page showing drawings that comply with the above system of measurement; see Exhibit 9, 

Further, Michigan Liquor Control Commission Case No. 613791 regarding Rite Aid of 

Michigan, Inc., SDD survey and Investigation Report and the drawings attached thereto that 

comply with the above described system of measurement. 

The drafters of the Zoning Ordinance 2.515(B) would have stated an intent to 

deviate from this existing system if in fact they intended the ordinance to provide 

otherwise. They did not. Therefore, the system of measurement described above must be used 

when making measurements pursuant to Zoning Ordinance 2.51 S(B). 

Applying this measurement standard above, neither King's Liquor nor Trademark Liquor 

are within one mile ofKajy. 

Using Mapquest, King's Liquor is 1.04 miles away. (Exhibit 10). 

Using Google Maps, Kings Liquor is l, 10 miles away. (Exhibit 11 ). 

Using Mapquest, Trademark Liquor is 1.05 miles away. (Exhibit 12). 

Using Google Maps, Trademark Liquor is 1.10 miles away. (Exhibit 13). 

It is conceded herein that Joslyn Market is within one mile ofKajy. 

Under both Mapquest and Google Maps, computerized systems used worldwide and free 

from bias, both King's Liquor and Trademark Liquor are more than one mile from Kajy. Only 

Joslyn Market is within one mile of Kajy. Therefore, Section 2.515 of Pontiac's Zoning 

Ordinance prohibiting more than two SDD license holders within one mile of the applicant, 

! 



would not he violated if Kajy's request were approved, because only one other store, Joslyn 

Market, is within one mile of Kajy. 

3. Equal Protection Under the Law. 

The Constitution of Michigan of 1963, Article 1, provides as follows: 

"No person shall be denied the equal protection of the laws; '.' ."< • " 

Here, the Zoning Commission admits, in arguing that there are three establishments 

within one mile of Kajy, that, at some point in time, one the of.the subject stores had requested 

approval of the sale of packaged alcohol when there had already been two (2) stores who had 

already been approved and established selling packaged alcohol within the subject area. 

Allowing that third store was in breach of Section 2.515. Yet that third store was allowed the 

SDD license clearly in violation of the City's Zoning Ordinance 2.515. In other words, because 

Kajy had already been established and open for business, with the proper City and state 

approvals, at the time the Lav Liquor, Inc. (King's Liquor) and Joslyn Liquor, Inc. (Joslyn Food 

Market) applied for city approval and there already existed two other approved packaged alcohol 

retailers in place, both King's Liquor and Joslyn Food Market should have been denied the right 

to sell packaged alcohol. Had these subsequently approved locations (King's Liquor and Joslyn 

Food Market) not been allowed to sell packed alcohol, in violation of Section 2.515, then Kajy 

would have been approved and this matter would not be an issue whatsoever. That being the 

case, Kajy should be afforded equal protection under the law and its SOD license transfer request 

approved. 

Furthermore, Exhibit 14 evidences another situation where the City of Pontiac allowed an 

establishment an SDD license in violation of Section 2.515. On May 23, 2016, the Zoning 



Commission allowed an SDD variance in the application of Baldwin Express, Inc. which 

similarly exceeded the two store limit. (Exhibit 14). This approval is clearly a violation of 

Section 2.515. 

Kajy must be afforded the same equal application of the law as the two stores above, as 

well as many others throughout the City of Pontiac, by having its SDD license approved. 

4. The Planning Commissi.on erred in fi:nding that Kaiy is a gas station. 

The Planning Commission decision found that Kajy is a gas station establishment. 

(Exhibit 15). It is not a gas station, and does not sell gas. It is unknown how or why the 

Planning Commission found that Kajy is a gas station; no one at the hearing testified :in any 

manner using or implying the words "gas station" in relation to Kajy, and no words were stated 

or implied in any pertinent writing that Kajy was a gas station. Again, Kajy is a family-oriented 

grocery/market that sells perishable goods and many healthy and health conscious items to the 

local community. 

Upon information and belief, the conclusion that Kajy is a gas station improperly tainted 

the Planning Commission's determination to deny Kajy' s application. Kajy must be viewed as a 

family-oriented market/grocery store, and as a viable and important member of the community. 

CONCLUSION 

Let it be known that it is the mission of A & S Kajy Enterprises, Inc. and Alaa Kajy to 

serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life for all and 

by fostering a vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. 

;i6m .r;.1-w •J imi 



For the reasons set forth above> Applicant A & S Kajy Enterprises, Inc. respectfully 

respects that this Honorable Council reverse the decision of the Planning Commission and 

approve its request for a transfer its SDD license to 1124 Joslyn Road, Pontiac, MI 48340. 

GA/gja 
Enclosure 

Respectfully submitted, 

By: us ~·. A ro 2 · '6) 
500 S\ 01 Woodward 
Second\Flo r, Suite 200 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
(248) 723~~45 
gus@abrolaw.com 
Attorney for A & S Kajy Enterprises, Inc. 

/fii'v Li1w Pinn 





1106 JOSLYN AVENUE " PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48340 

248-239-0066 " FAX: 248-239-0055 

!l~{~lf!~kip --~~---
March 51 2019 

Dear: Al 

You are such a positive business owner In our community, We appreciate your willingness to 

allow organizations to post flyers on your news bulletin. The community kids and adufts feel 

that you treat them like family. ·vour caring attitude towards the customers ls greatly 

appreciated and your generosity towards our organization will always be remembered. 

Thank you for all you do in this community and for the City of Pontiac, We acknowledge that 

we do not have any problems with your prod'ucts and services. We are praying for you and 

you( family. 

Slncerely1 

District Elder Charles E. Thornpson 1 Pastor 



hi it 



St, Paul Community Lutheran Church 
1133 Joslyn Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48340 
(248) 758-~019 

March 6, 2019 

To Whom it May Concern, 

On behalf of St. Paul Community Lutheran :Church, f, Pastor Jon Trinklein, and St. Paul have no 
objection for Joslyn Beverage, 1124 Joslyn Road, Pontiac: Michigan to have their license 
renewed for the sale of alcoholic beverages . 

. Sincerely, · 

/.~ ( 

~-1~ ---------P-rrinklein 

Email: StPaulOffice1133@gmaiLcom We~slte: stpaulpontiac,corn 





RICK SNYDER 
GOVERNOR 

May 7, 2019 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
LANSING 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 
70153430000094720647 

Bible Fellowship Christian Church 
1106 Joslyn Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48340 

RE: RID 1902-02552 

Dear Pastor Thompson: 

SHELLY EDGERTON 
DIRECTOR 

This letter is to inform you that the Liquor Control Commission has determined that the following application for a 
retail liquor license is located within 500 feet of Bible Fellowship Christian Church: 

A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc., requests to transfer ownership of a Specially Designated Distritubtor License to be 
located at 1124 Joslyn Avenue, Pontiac, Oakland County. 

Section 503( 4) of the Liquor Control Code of 1998 states that if a church or school objects to the issuance of certain 
retail I icenses, the Commission shall hold a hearing before making a decision on whether to issue the license. 

Under the provisions of the Commission's Church .or School Hearing Rules, if you object to issuance or transfer of 
location of this license, you have 15 days from receipt of this letter to file the nttached resolution with the 
Lansing Office of the Commission, The resolution must be completed by the governing hollrd of the church or 
school, and .should contain the specific reasons for such objections. You must also include a copy of the meeting 
minutes where this resolution was adopted. If no resolution is received within the I 5-day period, the Commission 
will assume no objection exists and will proceed with its consideration of this license request. 

If there are no objections to the issuance of the license, you may disregard this letter. 

Should you object to the application, a copy of the resolution will be sent to the applicant and a hearing wUI be 
scheduled before the Commission, The hearing will be based upon your written objections. You will be notified at 
least 7 days in advance of the date of the hearing. An attorney may represent you at the hearing. 

If you have any further questions, contact the Licensing Administration Office at (517) 284-6290. 

,,Sincerely, 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
Licensing Division 

cc: A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc. 
Enclosures 

MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
ANDREW J. DELONEY, CHAIRMAN 

S25 W. Allegan St • P.O. BOX 30005 • LANSING, MJCHIGAN 48909 
www.rnichignn.gov/lcc • 866-813-0011 



1 it 



RICK SNYDER 
GOVERNOR 

May 7, 2019 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
LANSING 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 
70153430000094720630 

St. Paul Community Lutheran Church 
1133 Joslyn Avenue 
Pontiac, MI 48340 

RE: RID 1902-02552 

Dear Pastor Trinklein: 

SHELLY EDGERTON 
DIRECTOR 

This letter is to inform you that the Liquor Control Commission has determined that the following application for a 
retail liquor license is located within 500 feet of St. Paul Community Lutheran Church: 

A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc., requests to transfer ownership of a Specially Designated Distritubtor License to be 
located at J 124 Joslyn A venue, Pontiac, Oakland County. 

Section 503(4) of the Liquor Control Code of 1998 states that if a church or school objects to the issuance of certain 
retail licenses, the Commission shall hold a hearing before making a decision on whether to issue the license. 

Under the provisions of the Commission's Church or School Hearing Rules, if you object to issuance or transfer of 
location of this license, you have 15 days from receipt of this letter to file the attached resolution with the 
Lansing Office of the Commission. Tbe resolution must be completed by the governing board of the church or 
school, and should contain the specific reasons for such objections. You must also include a copy of the meeting 
minutes where this resolution was adopted. Ifno resolution is received within the 15-day period, the Commission 
will assume no objection exists and will proceed with its consideration of this license request. 

If there are no objections to the issuance of the license, you may disregard this letter. 

Should you object to the application, a copy of the resolution will be sent to the applicant and ? hearing will be 
scheduled before the Commission. The hearing will be based upon your written objections. You will .be notified at 
least 7 days in advance of the date of the hearing. An attorney may represent you at the hearing. 

If you have any further questions, contact the Licensing Administration Office at (517) 284-6290. 

Sincerely, 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
Licensing Division 

cc: A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc. 
Enclosures 

MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
ANDREW J. DELONEY, CHAIRMAN 

5Z5 W. Allegan St. • P.O. BOX 30005 • LANSING, MlCHlGAN 48909 
www.michigan_gov/lcc • 866-813-001 l 

I 
I_ 
I'.· 

ll 
I: 
,:: 



hi it 



1 

2 ·, 
·' ,. 

3 

-4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

75 

He indicated if they have a doubt 

about the demographics, he'd ask to table this 

matter and allow them to provide the prop9r survey 

for.) 

VICE CHAIR FEGLEY: (Opened public 

comments,) 

FROM THt AUDIENCE: (Mike Cobis (ph) 

(inaudible) 3rd Avenue approached and stated he's 

known Mr. Kajy since he opened the business. He 

stated he's a man of integrity, he does give back to 

the community, donates to churches, helps people out 

when they are down on their luck. He stated he 

takes pride in his business. He spoke about 

customer appreciation days. He stated he would urge 

and ask that the Council consider not only these 

boundaries but what the people would like just as 

they did on the medical marihuana licenses.) 

MS. BELINDA DOUGLAS: (Address, 2700 

Shiromons Road. She stated she lived in the 

neighborhood where Mr. Kajy's store is for 20 plus 

years. She stated he's very well accepted and 

respected in the neighborhood and the community.) 

MR. ROBERT BUTTENHOWER: (Address, 570 

4th Avenue. Stated he's known Mr. Kajy and.his 

brother for over ten years since they opened the 



·,, 

.:· 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

76 

store_ Stated they have been very well-received and 

they take care of the neighborhood. He indicated 

they have upgraded the property and just made it 

stand o~t so that it shinesi that you couldn't dSk 

for a b.et ter businessowner and couldn't ask for a 

better friend. Stated the guy will help you out and 

give you the shitt off his back. He stated he 

thinks it would be a mistake to hold him down and 

they should grant the request.) 

MS. MARY PIETILA; (Stated address was 

195 West Kenuett Road, Pontiac, Michigan. She 

statecl she was an 11-year council person. She 

stated she was here in 2010, and they worked very 

hard. They have ordinances in place and want the 

ordinances executed, She stated if they have two 

parties coming together in front of you in one night 

asking for the same thing, and will not give it to 

one, they have to deny both.) 

MR. BILLY VIVERETTE: (Address, 776 

Second Avenue, resides in the same area that the 

store is in, He stated that Al brings a lot of good 

to the neighborhood. He stated all of the kids in 

the area love him, and if he can help you in any 

way, he will. ~estated he has in a lot of cases 

helped him. He stated he's a credit to the 



1 

ii 
2 

ii 
3 

'i 4 
·i :~ 
•I 5 
![ 

·I 
6 

l 7 

'i 

~ 8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

neighborhood. He states he doesn't drink so can't 

say anything about the alcohol thing, he's just 

saying that he thinks that he should be granted the 

license,) 

MR. KAJY: ( Stated he' s be.en on 

location sin.ce 2-009 and hasn't sold to any minor:s 

alcohol or tobacco for any reason. He stated he'd 

appreciate them granting the license.) 

MR. ABRO: (Addressed what Council 

77 

member Pietila mentioned regarding conformity with 

the ordinance. He stated, however, every situation 

i:;; unique. , He explained this is not a gas stat ion 

or a fuel petroleum establishm~nt, that it is a 

party store that's trying to survive. Be stated Mr. 

Kajy is a pillar in the community. Be stated Liquor 

Control has eliminated the half-mile rule. He 

stated this investment is significant and these 

licenses are going upwards of $300,000.) 

VICE CHAIR FEGLEY: (Closed public 

comments. l 

MR, GU S'.l'AFSSON: (Asked Donovan to 

clarify the 1,000-foot in regards to the other 

establishments in regards to the green dot versus 

the star to the south.) 

MR. SMITH: (Stated the graphic to the 



! 
1. 

,: 

J 



ign d Petition to be 
provided at the h aring. 



,. 
I 

!~-

,. 

! 



5/13/2019 Church & School 

HO~'.E h:tC"rUGAN UQO'O:t UCilNSES UGUORLA'.VNEWS LEARN Tlill LA';1 CONTACT AN ATIOf.NEY 

The Genetnl Rule: MCL 436.1503 

"A new application for a license to sell alcoholic beverages at retrul, or a request to transfer location of an existing license, 

shall be denied if the contemplated location ls within 500 feet of a church or a school building.• 

There are two primary situations in which this rule does not awly: 

F'u-st, the Chun:h and School Rule does not apply to SDM licenses that are 

not held in conjunction with an on-premise license. Therefore, if an 

applicant seeks only an SDM license, the Church and School Rule will not 

apply, 

Second, this ru1c also docs not apply to location transfers if the license was 

already within 500 feet of a church ot a school building, and will be 

transferred farther away from that church or school bw1ding. For example, 

you can transfer a Class C that is 50 ft from a church to a new loca.tion that 

is 100 ft from the churcl1. 

For licenses issued before March 1, 1949, see MCL 436.1503(3). 

111e photo below (click to expand) demonstrates the method of measuring 

the distance betwren a location and a church/school. We typically use an 

(mline measuring tool as a starting point when estimating distances. 

The steps are: 

1. Determine the shortest route between the two. 

2. Create a beginnmg and ending point by pl'Ojecting straight lines, at 

right angles to the center line, from the part oftbe church or school 

building nearest to the contemplated location and from the part of 

the contemplated location nearest to the chw'Ch or school building. 

(This is the blue line in the image below. Note that you project 

your lines from the structure, not the parking lot.) 

3. Measure the distance between the two points located in the center 

of the toad (green line). If any turns are taken, measure to the 

center of the intersection, and then turn, continuing down the 

center line of the road you have turned onto. 

½Note: MLCC Staff will measure using their own tools regardles.s of your 

findings. Measuring ahead of time is simply a good method to prepare 

yourself. 

https://www.michiganliquoriaw.comlchurches·schools-and-\iquor.html 

Churclt >nd scl!ool heuiingo ean be e,q,ed"1 
tu slow down tho :application pruces~. 

All is not lost when a location is within 500ft of a church or school. 

The Commission, in its discretion, may waive the Church and 

School Rule under several circumstances. 

Upon determination that a church or school is within 500ft of the 

proposed licensed location, the Commission ~~II contact the 

church/ school. The ehurch or school then has JS days to formally 

object to issuance or transfer of the lfoeruJe. If the chureh or school 

faifa to file a formal objection, the Commission may Issue/transfer 

the license. When possible, we recommend that attomeys make 

cont:Act with the leadership at the chureh or school prior to their 

receipt of communication from the commission. This allovrs the 

attorney to explain why the licensed loeation will not harm 

adversely affect their operation and it may help avoid a church or 

school hearing altogether. 

In the event that the church/school does object, the Commission 

will schedule a Church or School Hearing (see Rules 436.1951 -

.1963). The Commission must grant a waiver after this hearing if 
the applicant can demonstrate by competent, material, and 

substantial evidence that a waiver of the Church and School Rule 

would not adversely affect the ope.ration of the church or school. 

112 



5/13/2019 Church & School 

Home - Michigan liquor Licenses -Alcohol/Hospitality Industry News - Liquor Law News & Updates - Research Michigan Liquor Law- Contact a Liquor Lawyer 

FAQs -About Michigan's Liquor Control System - Retail Liquor Licenses - Obtaining a Liquor License -The Application/Transfer Process - MLCC Violations 

The Michigan Liquor Law Blog - The 1/2 Mile Rule - Chur~hes & Schools - Fuel Pumps & Liquor - Smoking llan- Proposed Statutory Changes - Ml.CC Forms 

Don't see what you are looking for? Search our sites. 

:'.:,mtd,ng 

Want email updates on Michigan Liquor Law? Sign up today! 

.email address 
j~u~:s~~~~; -. . 

(c) 2012, Stariha & Brower, PLC 

Micltisnn Liq.uot lmv dot tom,. R site de\'oled to 1J..llc1ec:rlanding Miclilg.nn Liquor L 1W5. We llnsWer question,; .ibont Mit.hig.an liitnor lkens:~, the Midrlgan Llqi.10r--crurtrol COmmission, Hqnor license applh.-atiorn, und murJ. 

https:/,'\w.iw.michiganliquoriaw.com/churcl1es-schools.and-liquor.html 2/2 





1 

06/24/2014 23~45 3135€,27902 FOOD MAX -~·:.'.- -

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 

In the matter of the request of 
$AL'$ MA~l<ET, INC, 
8240 Merriman 
Westland, Mich lg an 48185 

Wayne County 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Requ~st ID No, 751989 

~-~---------~~) 

At ½he June 11, 2014 Meeting of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission in 

Lansing, Michigan. 

PRESENT: Andrew J. Deloney, Chairman 
Teri L. Quimby, Commissioner 
Dennis Olshove, Commissioner 

LICEt_4S1NG APPRQVAL ORDl;B 

PAGE 07/09 

Sal's Merket, Inc. ("applicant") has filed an application for transfer ownership of 

escrowed 2013 Speciatly Designated Distributor end Speci~11y Designated Merchant 

licenses with Sunday Sales Permit (P.M.), from Alamm1;1rl1 Inc.; transfer location 

(governmental unit) under MCL 436,1531(18) frorn 12344-12350-12352 Woodrow 

Wilson, Detroit, Wayne County, to the above noted location; and request for new 

Sunday Sale$ Permit (A.M.), This request fer transfer has been received as the result 

of a Purchsse Agreement signed by the parties on March 3, 2014. 

Under Article IV, Section 40, of the Constitution of Michigan (1963), the 

Commission shall exercise complete control of the alcoholic beverage traffic within this 



tl&/24/2014 23:45 3135627902 

Request ID No. 751989 
Page2 

FDOD MAX PAGE 02/09 

state, Including the retail $ales thereof1 subject to statutory limitations. Further, the 

Commission shall hav~ the sole right, power, and duty to control the alcoholic beverage 

traffic and traffic in other alcohollc riquor within this state, Including the manufacture, 

importation, possession, transportation and sale the~eof under MCL 436.1201(2). 

The applicant is authorized to do business in Michigan, as required under MCL 

436.1535 for licensure. Under MCL 436.1537, the. licensee may sell the authorized 

alcoholic liquor products fur consumption off the premises only. 

The Commi5$ioti finds that It has considered the provisions as required in 

administrative rule R 436.1105 ln the consideration of this request. 

Adminrstratlve rule R 436.1133 provides that an application for the transfer 

location of an existing Specially Designated Distributor license shall riot be approved by 

the Commission if there Is an existing Specially Designated Distributor license located 

within 2,640 feet of th~ applicant's proposed site, unle$s a waiver •f this rule is granted 

by the Commisslon under subsections (a) - (e) of this. rule. 

The Commission finds that there ls one (1) existing Specially De&ign::;ited 

Distributor license located within 2,640 feet of the applicant's proposGd location and that 

the exi$tlng Specially Designated Distributor license location and the existing Specially 

Designated Distributor license location are separated by a qualifying major thoroughfare 

of not less than 4 lanes of through traffic. 

After reviewing the file and di~rmsslon of the issues at the meeting, the 

Commission finds that ~he applicant qualifies for a waiver of administrative rule R 

436.1133 c1s permitted under {c}; th~t the appUeant ha$ met all the requirements; and 

that this request should be approved. 

THEREFORE, IT lS ORDERED th1:1t: 

A. The applicant's request for tranefer ownership of escrowed 2013 Specially 

Designated Distributor and Specially Designated Merchant licenses [s 

APPROVED subject to the followlng: 

ii 
11 



06/24/2014 23:45 3135627902 FOOD MAX PAGE 04/09 

,.' 

Request ID No. 751989 
Page 3 

1. The ficens~e shall pay all license fees by April 301h each year pursuant 

to ·adtnlnlstrative rµ!e R 436.1107, 

.2. The licensee. shall provide proof of financial responsU:,ility, under MCL 

.436.1803, 

·3, A final lt'lsp~ution to be conducted by the Enforcement Olvisfon to 

determine _that sufficient inventory has been installed to 
determine and verify the true nature of the business; and~ 

determine. that the licensed premises meets all the tequiremetlts 
. ' ,l . ' ' 

of the Mlchig.an Liquor Control C8de and Admink~trative Rules. 

4. Receipt of acceptable, executed Lease Agreement. 

5.. Receipt of documentary proof thet S1;.11's Mark~t. 1110. has received a 

loan in the amount of $88,000.00 from Amer Sandlha, 

6. Receipt of acceptablc11 executed form LCCri3010 (Report of 

Stockholders/Members/Partners). 

8. The applicant's request for transfer of the existing Sllnday Sales Permit 

:(P.M.) and new Sunday Sales Permit (AM.) is APPROVED subject-to the 

following: 

1. A reference to the time of day includes dayllght savings tlme-, when 

observed. 

2. This permlt is subject to revocation by operation of law or otherwise if 

the Commission receives notice from a county, o1ty, village, or 

townshlp that It prohibits the Mle of spirits, mixed spirit drink, or beer 

and wine during the time authorized by this permit. 

C. The applicant's request for ~ransfer locatlon (goMemmental unit) under MCL 

436.1531 (18) from 12344-12350~ 12352 Woodrow Wilson, Detroit, Wayne 

County, to the above noted location, is APPROVED. 

·o. _The licensee shall sell the authorized alcoholk: liquor products for 

conaumption off the premises only, under MCL 436.1537. 



'06/24/2014 23:45 3135627902 FOOD MAX PAGE 05/09 

Request ID No. 751989 
Page4 

SP1 

E. Under administr~uve·ruIe R 436. 1003, the licensee shall comply with all state 

and local building, plumbing, zoning, sanitation, i;'!nd health laws, rules and 

'ordiriances as det~mitled by the state and local law enforcement officials 

who have jurisdiction over the licensee. Approval of this license by the 

Michigan Uq(J6'r-Contrcil Commission does not waive any of these-

. requirements; The-licensee rnust obtain all other requlred state and local 
. . I 

licenses)' permits, and approvals before opening the buslnes:s for operation. 

F. The licensee's failure to comply with all laws and rules may re$Ult l_n the 

revocation of the approvals contained In this otder. 

MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 

Andrew J. Deloney, Chairman 

Terl L Quimby, Commissioner 

Dennis Olshove, Commissioner 

Date Mailed: JUN 19 2014 

[t 



. I '. I ' . 

. I : l 
l ·. . . 
.. . ;'. ,i 
J. i . . 
·j. ~ .. 

. . . t, 

1. :: 1· 
:-~ . . 





.v ( 
1\/llchigan Department Ucens/ng & Regulatory Art .. irs 

MlCHlGAN LIQUOR CON'fROL COMMISSION (MLCC) 
7150 Harris Drive, P.O. Box 30005 

Lansing, Michigan 4B909,.7505 

SOD SURVEY AND lNVES"rlGATlON REPORT 
. [Authorized by MCL 435.1217} 

Date: August3 1 2012 RID#: 613791 District Office: Southfield:rlb 

Name: <13g~:Aid_qf.Michigari1 Inc.,. Chain 

Business Address: 7887 Twenty Six Mile, Washington, Ml 480941 Washington Township, Macomb 
County 

Home Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: Other; 

D13A: 

contact: Michael J. Brown, Esq., (Carlin Edwards Brown PLlC), 6017 W. St. Joe Highway, Suite 
, 202, Lansing, Ml 48917 

Telephone: (517) 3214616 Fax: (517) 321-4642 Email: 

Attorney: Michael J, Brown. Esq., (Carlin Edwards Brown PLLC)1 6017 W .. St Joe Highway, 
Suite 202, Lansing, Ml 48917 

Telephone; (517) 321-4616 Fax: {517} 321-4642 Email: 

Type of Investigation: Request for New SOD License, in conjunction with existing 2012 SOM licensed 
business; New Sunday Sales Permit (pm). 

Population: 23,296 

Notes: 

Attached: 

Quota: 8 Number Issued: 7 

Other SbD Applicants In tl1e vJclnlty of the appli~nt: (Name and address lnclud/ng those in other governmental units) 

No other Applicants 

LC-89$(R•v, 343) 

)>ago 1 
LARA Is an equal oppo,tunity amployer/plogram. Auldnal)I aid$, sarvlc:t'l$ and other reasonable 
accommodalions an, ayallable upon request lo lndlvldualo with dfsabllftles. Michfgan Uquor Controf 
Commission 71!i0 [-lams Drive • P.O. Box 30005 • Laming, Mlchigah 48900-7505 www.mJchlgan,govl/cc 
• (517) 322-1346 Larislrni Office 

I 



S8r-ll:Ji t, 3/\ ~,i~Q r-,' ti/\ -t:----- - ---.... - -
·.··~ 

<d--

-;.:,.. - ___. ---....., 

• 

!.u 

~J'. 
E~ 
.9 \9-

>-. -~'.1 
&' H 

LU ["< ~ 
I ;;,, ~ I;; -r: .,._V\ ci. r, 

~ .9 3 IX1) r< 
':) A r-

~ VI " r--- d 0 ~ C\) ~ r') c<> :t V} (l 

! 
.J p.. 0 

W' '6" j 
3 l4 ho· 

p 0' f e \/ ? 
G ll1 <[' ll 

~ 
GJ. ~ \/1 

f1 0 ~: ~ -l. 

~· w r 
<t ([' '¢c rl 

,, \.J 
1¢: "l1' 

#. '~:' Crt 



.{ 
:., 

- -
--- - - ,· 

'"'-l l 
~ i p i ~ . .._; '\ 
,J ✓ 

~ $. .' 
" ~ p-.1. 
·~ ~ -;1 ~ 

~ 
·--., i <r: '4 ( :;:, 1. 

~ { \-l ·:., J )}. %' ":t "> r'l ~ 'I"\ 
~--. $ c-- { 

\I-. t.n 

• 

I 
! 

(µ 
.J -;z 

~f 
9~ 

',1 

A ;::. f'6 j ~. 
l w (' vi ,:' a t) 0 < II)-;, r-

t" ... ,, 
.:) oQ ) A,. j' fl) '.) ;; 

tr f'- "t; 

v\ " {J ,;: 
rt', 00 11, \/2 :i ,, 

\t ., 
p, ~- t,-.· W' 
p O' "2. ~-

II 
$ ~ il 

'11 !.U 

r° 0 f,>l 
j ~ 
~ ~ 

<t 
<t:' II ~ 

II V 
.::c + 
.!i.~ ~ 

:q 



I. 

... --•·-·--·· 

J 
t 

' .,., --------

~e:G. :en #; to/ 3 79 I 
7 8a7 ~v M~L.l!"" 

WA. SM'l::1-.i ti Tbt-.1 



I 

s-Brlb/1 h - -
ffl'"\ 

------ -

\K 

r 
q 
I"'\ 
qf' 
\I 

f1 
I 

,ct: 

at. ra '?!'JI ,-<Q r' ~ /\ - - 1(:-

- --

"" 
~ 
00 
3 

u 

0 

Q 

... 
. -:. 

~ 
..____, -

• -
• 

I 

~ 

........ 





5/13/2019 1124 Joslyn Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48340-2867 to 689 Martin Luther King Jr Blvd, Pontiac, Ml, 48342-1627 Directions - MapQuesi 

YOUR TRiP TO: 
689 Martin Luther King Jr Blvd, Pontiac, Ml, 48342-1627 

Est. fuel cost: $0.11 

Trip time based on traffic conditions a& of 9:01 AM 011 May 13, 

2019. Currant Traffic: Light 

t 

1. Start out going south on Joslyn Ave toward 3Rd Ave. 

Ther(oJ~)nl)e's/\ 

2. Turn left onto E Montcalm St. 

E Montcalm St is Just past Lowell St. 

ff you reach Oliver St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far. 

Then:OJ;,:inll~i 

3. E Montcalm St becomes Martin Luther King Jr Blvd. 

Then 0.04mll~s ' 

Print a full health report of your car with HUM 

vehicle diagnostics {800) 906-z501 

0.86 total miles 

1.01 total miles 

1.05 total miles 

@ 4. 689 Martin Luther King Jr Blvd, Pontiac, Ml 48342-1627, 689 MARTIN LUTHER 
1\"ft-;J!,I" 

. .,., KING JR BLVD is on the right. 

If you reach Balboa Pl you've gone a little too far. 

~ Save to My Maps 

Use of directions and maps Is subject to our Terms of Use. We don't guarantee accuracy, route conditions or usabUity. You l;!ssurne all rJsk of use. 

,SC 
I t '5 
, b 'f 

I. 05 

https://www .mapq uestcom/direciions/lls!/ 1 /us/ml/pontlac/48340-2867 /1124-Joslyn-ave-42.668904, -83 .28 0460/to/us/mi/pontlac/48342-1627 /68 9-martn. . . 1 /2 



5/13/2019 1124 Joslyn Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48340-2867 to 689 Martin Luther King Jr Blvd, Pontiac, Ml, 48342-1627 Directfons -MapQuest 

https://www.mapquest.com/directions/list/1 /usirnl/pontiac/48340-2867/1124-joslyn-ave-42.668904, ~3.280460/to/uslmi/pontiac/48342-1627 /689-mar!Jn... 2/2 





Ii 
Ii 
!•; 





5/13/2019 1124 Joslyn Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48340-2867 to 1220 N Perry St Direclions - MapQuest 

YOURTRiP TO: 
1220 N Perry St 

.2 MIN ! 1.0 l'\/11 a 
Est. fuel cost: $0.11 

Trip tim& based on traffic conditions as of 9:06 AM on May 13, 

,I019. Cl.lrrent Traftlc: Moderate 

Print a full health report of your car with 

vehicle diagnostics {Boo) 906-2501 

1. Start out going south on Joslyn Ave toward 3Rd Ave. 

Then,0.40:rnTtes 

2. Turn left onto E Madison Ave. 

E Madison Ave is Just past E Mansfield Ave. 

If you reiich Lebaron Ave you've gone a little too far. 

Then 0.~* rriiles 

3. Turn sharp right onto N Perry St/1-75 Bus Loop S. 

N Perry St is 0. 1 miles past Arlene Ave. 

ff you are on Madison Ave and reach Stirling St you've gone a little too far. 

Then 0.01 mlies 

4. 1220 N Perry St, Pontiac, Ml 48340-3134, 1220 N PERRY ST is on the left. 

If you reach Robinwood St you've gone a little too far. 

!11!, Save to My Maps 

0.40 total miles 

1.03 total mfles 

1.04 total miles 

Use of dtrec:tions tmd maps is .subjecl to our Terms of Use. We don't guarantee accuracyr rou1e conditions or usability. You assume all risk of uso. 

\. o4 

h ttps: //www.mapquest.com/dl rections/llst/1 f usfmi/pontlac/48340-2867 /1124-Joslyn-ave-42.66S904, •S3.28D460/to/us/michigan/pontiac/48340-3134/1 22.. . 1 /2 



5/13/2019 1124 Joslyn Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48340.-2867 to 1220 N Perry St Directions - MapQuest 

,·. 

I ,: 
!·-

https:1/www .mapq uesl com/directions/llst/1/us/mi/pontia c/4 8340-2867/1124-joslyn--ave-42. 66 8904, -a 3.280460/to/us/michiganlpontiac/48340-3134/122... '2/2 









MLCC AIMS - Actlve/Esur<JW License Search 

(/) 

Alcohol Information Management System 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

Search Active/Escrowed Licens~es 
Licensee Details 

Licensee Name BALDWIN EXPRESS INC Coing Business As (OllA) BALDWIN EXPRESS 

Sustness ID 233625 local Governmental Unit PONT(AC CITY 

Status Ac:tive 

Address 1019 Baldwin AvePontiac, Ml 48340-2609 

[ Go llatk ) 

Insurance / Financial Responsibility 

Show~ entries 

Name Insurance Provider 

Liquor Liability Insurance M\GUARO INSURANCE COMPANY 

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries 

Subordinates 

Show~ entries 

(LGU) 

County OAKLAND 

Phone (Z48) 541-0200 

Effective Date 

(From) 

6/19/2018 

Relationship To llwiness Statlj,; 

USAMA PATTAH Stockholder 

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entr1e. 

Licenses 

To view details of a license, please dick the "9 button to expand the license details. 

Show ~ entries 

Expiration 
License II Group Type Subtype Status Issue Date Date Statute 

L-000231557 Retail· Of/ Specially Active 10/2312013 4/30/2020 
Premises Designated 

~ Mer~hant 
" ". . ' -------- ,,,- ----. ' 

L-000262639 Retail • Off Specially ) 
Premises Designated 

Distributor 

Regular Actlw 4/30/2020 

https;/fcuslomers.mlcc.mlohigan.gov/SoM_ActlveEscrowlicenseLlst# 

5/7/19, 4:01 PM 

Status 

Active 

Previous Ci.] Next 

Pr€Vious [i J Next 

Statute: Under 
Locatfon Transfer 
Traosfe,-ble Process 

y 

y 

Page 1 of 3 



MLCC AIMS - Active/Escrow Llcense Search 5/7119, 4,01 PM 

Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries Previous [; J Next 

Permits 

To view details of a permit or permission, please click the c;;, button to ex~nd the permit()( peJ'tnission details, 

Show ~ enbies 

Pimnit# 

+ 18·18%5 

+ 18-18966 

'fypa 

Sunday Sales (AM) 

Sunday Sales {PM) 

Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries 

Historical Sales Record 

Show~ entries 

Yeor Month 

2015 

2016 

2016 

2016 

2016 

2016 

2016 

2016 

2016 

2016 

01 

02 

03 

04 

05 

06 

07 

08 

09 

Showing 1 to 1 O of 40 entries 

Violations 

Show~ entries 

Violation# 

CV-00168846 

D~te Ylolat!on 
Occured 

11/13/2014 

Status 

ClO<ed 

Sp@cfflc Purpose 

Issued 

IIStled 

Issue Date 

5/ZJ/2016 

S/2l/2016 

Expiration 0,,1,. 

4/30/1020 

4/30/2020 

Previous 8 Next 

~~]l~~~ 
License Sales Amount 

L·000262639 $0.00 

l·00026Z639 $0,00 

L-000262639 $0.00 

L-000262639 $0.00 

L-00021>2639 so.oo 

L·000162639 S12,04U7 

L-000262639 $18,544.33 

L-000262639 s12,m.1s 

L-000262639 S42,705.n 

l-000262639 SlS,660.37 

Previous GJ 2 l 4 Next 

L:~P~.Jt ~~J[r.~~I 
Violation Description 

SAf.E TO MINOR, X·312(19): (INV, 
GOOLEWIX-312/CK LAWRENCE 
PATTON/NO ID) 

Eveot/Oeclsion 

2/25/2015 HEARING KELD LANSING CLEMENTE/HALL/DECLERCQ 
RULE 15(E) 
3/24/2015 (i)AS PENAt:rY, THE CO/\\AUSSIONER ORDERS THE 
LICENSEE TO PAY A FINE OF $500 FOR Tl-IE SINGLE CHARGE CITED 
ABOVE. 11-iE COMMISSIONER FURTTiER ORDERS A SUSPENSION OF 
TWENTY-FIVE (25) CONTINUOUS DA\'S IF THE TDTAl FINE OF $500 IS 
NOT PAID WITHIN FORTY-AVE (45) DAYS FROM THE DATE IBIS 
ORDER 15 MAlLED. WIS SUSPENSION, IF SERVED, SHALL RUN 
CONSECUTIVE~Y AND NOT CONCURRENTI.Y WITH ANY OTHER 
SUSPENSION ORDERED SY THE MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL 
CotMIISSIOH (MLCC) FOR THIS LICENSEE, WE COMMISSIONER ALSO 
FINDS THAT THE ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL HAS CONSULTEO 
WITH AND OBTAINED THE ACQUIESCENCE TO THE TERMS OF Tl-1£5 
NEGOTIATED SITTLEMEITT FROM INVEST1GATOR JANET GODLEW ON 
llEHALF OF THE.MLCC. 

https://customers.mfcc.mlchlgan.gov/SoM_Act)veEscrowUcenselist# Page 2 of 3 



MLCC AIMS., Active/Escrow License Search 

5/5/2016 Closed 

CY·00179649 Closed 

CV-00180864 Closed 

Showing 1 tn 4 of 4 entries 

Ml.goy (http://www.michjg.n..gQY). 

SOLD OR FURNISHED ALCOHOL TO 
UNNAMED MINOR X-335 (19): (LCC INV 
MAUL/CLERK DANIEL ARTILUS 
YICKARY/ID CHECKED) 

ll!llil.t (http:llwww.michigan.goy/lcc) 

Copyright 2019 State of Michigan 

https:/{customers.mlce,michig,>n.gov/SoM_Activ&EscrowLlcensellst# 

8/24/2016 HEARING HELD SOIJTHAELD 
ClEMErfTE/MCDOWELVGIBSON NEG SITTLEMENT 

5{7/19, 4,01 PM 

8/31/2016 AS A PENALTY, THE COMMISSJONER ORDERS A flNE Of 
$700 IN THIS MATTER, FURTHER, THE COMMISSIONER ORDERS THAT 
A SUSPENSION Of THIRTY•FlVE (35) CONTINUOUS DI\YS SHALL BE 
IMPOSED, WITH THIS SUSPENSION TO RUN CONSECUTIVaY AND 
NOT CONCURRENTLY WITH ANY OTHER SUSPENSION ORDERED nY 
THE COM\\ISSION, IF THE FINE IS NOT PAID WITHIN FOITTY·FIVE (45) 
DAYS FROM lHE MAILING DATE OF THIS ORDER, 801-2 NEGOTIATED 
SITTLEMENT 

t0/26I2016 PASSED CONTROL BUY OPERATION ON 9-1-16 (OAKLAND 
COUITTY SHERIFF) 

f /19/2017 PASSED CONTROL BUY OPERATION ON 12/n/16 
(OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF) 

Previous [] Next 

Policies (http: /[WW'xY. mkhjgan,gov lruili.ciw 

Page 3 of~ 





TO: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
D-ept:rtment of Building Safety 

PLANNING DIVISION 
4'1450 Woo.-hyard Ave I PONTIAC. MICHIGAN 4~42-Sn-09 

TELEP.HONm (l48) 758-2800 I FAX: (248) 758-2827 

•-c~ 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSS(?N ~ 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS•DISESSA 

SEP 19-03 REQUEST FOR APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMlSSION DECISION 
A & S l<AJY ENTERPRISE, INC, I 1124 JOSLYN AVENUE 
SOD LIQUOR LICENSE SPECIAL EXCE!)TION PERMIT 

APRIL301 2019 

At the April 3, 2019 Planning Commlssion meeting, The Commission reviewed a Special Exception Permit 
request [SEP 19-03] for retail_ sale of packaged Hquor at 1124 Joslyn Avenue and was denied, Foltowlng 
Section 6.303) [H. Appeals] of the Zoning Ordinance, the Applicant has the rlght to submit an appeal [see 
attached letter] to the Planning Manager wlthln ten days of the Planning Commission decision 
requesting an appeal from Clty CouncfL /; /4 . J 4 . ) _ w~ , l'L t>rs 5~,.,~ 
The establishment ls a gas statio~ currelffly;ells packaged !Jeer and wine. Zoning Ordinance 
requirements of Section 2.515 determines if packaged alcoholic beverages are compliant. 

A, The sa!e of packaged alcoholic beverages ls prohibited to be located less than SOD feet from the property 
of a place of worship, park, playground, daycare facility, pre-school, or K. thru 12 schoo!. 

B. Not more than two properties upon which the retail sale of packaged alcoholic beverages Is permitted 
shell be located within one mile, 

currently, St Paul Community Lutheran Church a Md Bible Fellowship Christian Church are located within soo feet 
of the retail s.ile of packaged liquor and three convenience retail businesses [Joslyn Market, Trademark Liquor and 
King ~iquorJ sell packaged alcoholic beverages are within one mile of Joslyn Beverage. 

We suggest the City Council confirm the Planning Commissron decision and deny the appeal and support the 
following resolution. 

II 
;1 

It 

~ 
ti 
![ 



WHEREAS, the City has received ,m applicaticn for ;;Special Exception Permit for parcel 64-14-16-402· 
030, also known as 1124 Joslyn Avenue from the Applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise1 Inc., and; 

WHEREAS, the Plannlng DMslon as reviewed the applicant's Special Exception Permit request to sell 
\: packaged alcoholic beverages with a -Special Designated Distributer [-SOD] llcense, in addition to the 

existing Special Designated Merchant [SDM) license for the sale of beer and wine sales, and; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division has reviewed the requlrements:set forth in Section 2,515 of the Zoning 
Ordi_nance and Section 10.188 of the Pontiac Municipal Code and the Planning Division determined that 
aforementioned request and proposed sale of t,ackaged Hquor does not comply with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ord1n·ance1 and; 

WHEREAS, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Section 6.302 as it 
related to Speclal Exception Permit Review Procedures and Requirements, the request has undergone 
the required; technical review, Publlc Hearing, and Planning Commlsslorr decision, andj 

WHEREAS, on Aprll 3, 2019 a Public Hearing was held, the Planning Commission voted to deny the 
request the sale of packaged liquor at 1124 Joslyn Avenue. 

WHEREAS, Following Section 6.303, [H, Appeals) of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant submitted a 
letter to the Planning Manager Gustars$on within ten days of the Planning Commission decision 
requesting an appeal from Clty Councll, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Pontiac concur with the Planning 
Commlsslon decision and deny the appeal to grant a Special Designated Distributor license at parcel 64-
14-16·402·030, also known as 1124 Joslyn Avenue from the Applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc. 

2 





STATE OF MICHIGAN 

~"~o\'~ DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 

In th_e matter of the request of 
A-~ S KAJY:;ENTERPRISE, INC. 
11'24 Joslyn Ave . 
Pontiac, Ml 48340-2867 

***** 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

_O_ak_la_n_d_C_ou_n_ty,___ _________ ) 

Request ID No. 1902-02552 

At the March 027,-2019 meeting of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission in 

Lansing, Michigan. 

PRESENT: Andrew J. Deloney, Chairman 
Dennis Olshove, Commissioner 

LICENSING APPROVAL ORDER 

A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc. ("applicant") has filed an application to transfer 
' 

ownership of a 2018 Specially Designated Distributor license only with Sunday Sales 

Permit (P .M.), from Johnny's Enterprise, Inc.; and transfer location (governmental unit) 

under MCL 436.1531 (18) from 28244 John R Rd, Madison Heights, Oakland County to 

the above noted address, to be held in conjunction with existing 2018 Specially 

Designated Merchant license with Sunday Sales Permit (A.M.). This request to transfer 

ownership has been received as a result of the purchase agreement dated January 29, 

2019. 

Article IV, Section 40, of the Michigan Constitution (1963), permits the legislature 

to establish a Liquor Control Commission, which shall exercise complete control of the 

alcoholic beverage traffic within this state, including the retail sales thereof, subject to 

statutory limitations. MCL 436.1201 (2) provides the Commission with the sole right, 

power, and duty to control the alcoholic beverage traffic and traffic in other alcoholic liquor 



Request ID No. 1902-02552 
Page2 

within this state, including the manufacture, importation, possession, transportation and 

sale thereof. 

The applicant is authorized to do business in Michigan, as required under MCL 

436.1535 for Jicensure. Under MCL 436.1537, the licensee may sell the authorized 

alcoholic liquor products for consumption off the premises only. 

The Commission finds that it has considered the provisions as required in 

administrative rule R 436.1105 in the consideration of this request. 

••MCL436:1503(1)ipfovides'thafa .hew,~pplicaUqJtf()r .• a;U9~ns~,.to·.seu··a1coholic• 

: beverages •a.Hetail d?1 f~qJJ~tta'W~i~~f~r"io~~tic5~:of ,in' exi~tiri~ 'liciense shall oe denied 

.'if'th~ ,contemp!ated,;locatidn'+is witriln :,§_00 teer:6f a. chUFch br 'schoOl building' . MCL 

:.-4.~G.1503(4)proVides'th~HhJCcc:flhMi~·s\oh may waive this sectiont:lfan··objectiop is not 

· .. fil.$d by .. the church or ·schoof;thei• Cbm'rnission rriay issue-the• ucense pursuant to this.act. , 
-.-.;,.··. -:·•.:.: .. ·... ' . . .. --•···-·····. :.· ·-

,· ltan,objediOn is filed;Lthe :cornrfiis~iclll ;shai'1"tiold a hearihg• pursuarit·•to rthe ,rules 

'~stc,iblished.•6y·theiCbh1hii~§jcjtb·Jrdf~ rh~krn~i',{decisioh!;onfhJ; i~iU~n6e of the licerise. 
Th~ ,qommission finctf th~f'tfie stra~lc'ohimutiitylDthe'ran Church located at 

1133 JoslyffAV$nUe, Pontiac, Ml 483'40~ Oakland Co'i.mty is'locafed O feet away from.the 

, proposed location ~nd that no objection has been received from the ·church, The 

"pqmmissioh finds that the Bible. Fellowship Christian Church. located at 1106 Joslyn 

Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 4830i•Oakland,;Cqunty•i9J8<2.9ted 2.7? f~~,t,c1way from th~ propo~ed 

le>c~tignantj thatno0 objectiohhas 15een\eceivedfrcim the churd1~ 
· The· Corrimf~~ion· 'finds'~ffiaf if ·has :considered ihe 'prbvisioris ·as . required in 

apm iril$Jr~t.iv!;l •. ruI~.B:43~'.119?)P:Jqe, cefls.ideratioQ ;.of ttii~.req,u~st. 

,>After reviewing< the;fij~ ! clrtd ! di~C!usslon of th§ issu,es at the meetir:19, Jhe 

,; Oornmissibnfinds tliafthe appiicaritquallfies fo(aWaiver under MCL 436:1503(4)as. no 
~ <;su.=== -

objection was receiVed :frohi•st 'Paul'Comrnurii · Tutneran church or Bible Fellowship 

~_c_. hristi~n churdfi and this reqi'.i~t shotilct~" 
THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that: 

A. Approval and completion of this request is subject to receipt of the following: 

1. Estimated Specially Designated Distributor license and/or permit fees in the 

amount of $169.05, pursuant to MCL 436.1525(1 )(k). 



Request ID No. 1902-02552 
Page 3 

2. Documentary proof that applicant, A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc., received a 

$62,000.00 loan from applicant stockholder, Alaa Kajy. 

3. Form LCC~107 (Closing Form for New License or License Sale). 

4. The existing Specially Designated Distributor license being transferred shall 

be submitted to the Commission for escrow purposes pursuant to MCL 

436.1531 ( 18) before transfer of the Specially Designated Distributor license 

to the applicant The existing Specially Designated Distributor license in 

escrow shall be subject to the provisions of administrative rule R 436.1107. 

B. The applicant's request to transfer ownership of 2018 Specially Designated 

Distributor license is APPROVED subject to the following: 

1. The licensee shall pay all license fees by April 30th each year. 

2. The licensee shall maintain proof of financial responsibility, under MCL 

436.1803. 

C, The applicant's request for transfer location (governmental unit) under MCL 

436.1531 (18) from 28244 John R Rd, Madison Heights, Oakland County, to the 

above noted location, is APPROVED. 

D. The applicant's request to transfer the existing Sunday Sales Permit (P.M.) is 

APPROVED subject to the following: 

1. A reference to the time of day includes daylight savings time, when 

observed. 

2. This permit is subject to revoccition by operation of law or otherwise if the 

Commission receives notice from a county, city, village, or township that it 

prohibits the sale of spirits, mixed spirit drink, or beer and wine during the 

time authorized by this permit. 

E. The licensee shall sell the authorized alcoholic liquor products for consumption 

off the premises only, under MCL 436.1537. 

F. Pursuant to administrative rule R 436.1050, this approval is valid for two (2) 

years from the date of this approval order unless the Commission has been 

provided with a notice of pending litigation involving the application. 



Request ID No. 1902-02552 
Page4 

P1 

G. The licensee has a continuing duty to provide the commission with up~to~date 

contact information and must notify the commission in writing of any changes 

to its mailing address, phone numbers, electronic mail address, and other 

contact information it provides the Commission, pursuant to administrative rule 

R 436.1048(2). 

H. Under administrative rule R 436.1003(1 ), the licensee shall comply with all state 

and local building, plumbing, zoning, sanitation, and health laws, rules, and 

ordinances as determined by the state and local law enforcement officials who 

have jurisdiction over the licensee. Under administrative rule R 436.1003(2), a 

licensee shall not use a license at the licensed premises unless a temporary or 

permanent certificate of occupancy has been iss·ued by the local unit of 

government having jurfsdiction over the location of the licensed premises or the 

licensed premises complies with administrative rule R 436.1003(1). Approval 

by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission does not waive these 

requirements. The licensee must obtain all other required state and local 

lice17ses, permits. and approvals before opening the business for operation. 

I. The !iceflsee's failure to comply with all laws and rules may result in the 

revocation of the approvals contained in this order. 

MICHIGAN LlQUOR CONTROL 
COMMISSION 

Andrew J. Deloney, Chairman 

Dennis Olshove, Commissioner 

Date Mailed: 03/27/2019 



65 

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
PONTIAC CITY COUNCU-1 

March 18, 2010 

A regular meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was held in the City Hall, 
Thursday, March 18, 2010 at 6:30 p.m. Daylight Savings Time. 

13 th SESSION OF THE EIGHTH COUNCIL 

Invocation by Pastor Metlock 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Present: President Jones and President Pro-Tern Waterman 
Councilpersons: Carter, Pietila, Watkins, G. Williams, K. Williams 
Clerk announced a quorum present 

Present: Leon Jukowski-Mayor, Fred Leeb, EFM and Mark Hotz-City Attorney 

Journals of March 4, 2010 and March 11, 2010 were approved. 

Special Presentations -Report from the Emergency Financial Manager. 

10-72 By Councilperson G. Williams, supported by Councilperson Carter, Resolved, 
that Myra K. Allen be made Acting City Clerk. 

Ayes: Carter, Jones, Pietila, Waterman, Watkins, G. Williams, K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

10-73 By Co1mcilperson Pietila, supported by Councilperson G. Williams, Resolved 
that the following Resolution be read by Title Only. 

Ayes: Carter, Jones, Pietila, Watenna:n, Watkins, G. Williams, K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

I 0-74 Public Hearing was held relevant to appointments to Citizen District Councils. 
President opened the public hearing. Comments and questions were heard from 

the pub-lie and the City Council. President declared the Public Hearing closed. 
Vt1IEREAS, in accordance with MCLA 125.74, each City of Pontiac Citizen 

District Council shall <::onsist of not less than 12 nor more than 25 members selected u1 a 
manner that ensures that to the ma:ximum extent possible, the Council is representative of the 



75 March 18, 2010 

l 0-79 Report was received from the Mayor relevant to a request from : A & 
S Kl-VY Enterprise, Inc. request to transfer ovmership of an escrowed 2009 SDM 
license from Joslyn Enterprises, Inc., located at 1124 Joslyn. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE _IT RESOLVED, That the request from: A &S KAJY 
ENTERPRISE, INC., request to transfer o,vnership of an.escrowed 2009 SEW license from 
JOSLYN ENTERPRISES, lNC., located at 1124 Joslyn, Pontiac, MI 48340, Oakland County, 
be considered for approval. 

Moved by Councilperson G. Williams, supported by Councilperson Carter 
Ayes: Carter, Jones, Pietila, Watkins, G. Williams 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
Councilpersons ,vaterman.andK. Williams temporarily excused. 

10-80 An Ordinance entitled, "An Ordinance to update the General Employees 
Retirement System Ordinance to add furlough day value to the defi:nltion of compensation for 
inclusion in Fi11al Average Compensation", was read. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac Law Department has put forth an Ordinance for 
the City Council to consider to amend the Pontiac City Code, Section 93, "General Employees' 
Retirement System, Section 2.9 to allow that the definition of compensation include the value 
of furlough days for the calculation of Final Average Compensation (FA C), and; 

WHEREAS, the First Reading of the proposed Ordinance was conducted on 
Thursday, March 4, 201 O; 

NO\V, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council does 
hereby approve the Ordinance to amend the Municipal Code of Pontiac, Section 2. 9 to allow 
that the deficit.ion of compensation include the value of furlough days for the calculation of 
Final Average Compensation (F AC); 

Moved by Councilperson Pietila, supported by Councilperson \Vaterman 
Ayes: Carter, Jones, Pietila, Waterman, Watkins, G. Williams 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
Councilperson K. Williams temporarily excused. 

By Councilperson Jones, supported by Councilperson Waterman, 
Resolved, that the meeting be adjourned.. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:16 p.m. 

MYRA K ALLEN, Cl.'l'IC 
ACTlNG CITY CLERK 



•. Michigan .Department-of Consumer· and Industry Services 

·liquor ·control Comm_issio.n 
·RESOLUTION 

. . . 
Request ID ;t 529958 

Bushiess 1D #- 222044 

At a regular meeting of the Pontiac City Council called to order by 

-~P-"-r=e~s~id~e=n~-t~L=:~J~o~n~e~s~~ on Thursday~·March ·1s, 2010 at 7:00 p.m., 

the following resolution was offered-: 

Moved by Cmmcifperson: · Supported by Councilperson: 

Th~t the request fro~: A &S l<AJY ENTERPRISE, INC., request to transfer ownership of an escrowed 2009 
. . . . . . 

SOM license from JOSLYN ENTERPRISES, INC, located at 1124 Joslyn, Pontiac, MI 48340, Oakland County, 
' ' . . . 

be considered for ----~a'""P~P~r~o~v~a=f ____ _ 
(approval/disapproval) 

APPROVAl 

YEAS: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

DISAPPROVAL 

YEAS: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

It is the consensus of tills legislative body that the application 

be Recommended 
Recommended 

State of Michigan) 
ss 

County of Oakland) 

or _________ for issuance. 
Not Recommended 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
Pontiac Citv Council at a regular meeting held on the 18th day of March 2010, A.D. 

SEAL 
(Signed)_,--------.,-----

. (Township, C_ity, orV[JJage) 

. Yvett~ Talley, City Clerk, CMC 
Myra Allen, Acting City Clerk1 CMC 

. . 

. 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac MI 48342 

--·(Address_·qf 1:'o,vpship, City or Vil1age_ Board) 



fOR~Al AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 

Due in the Executive Off!ce No Later Than 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, _Nine (9) Days Prior to the Meeting o.ate .. 

Date Submitted; Tuesday, March 9, 20tO By: Freq leeb, EFM 

Council Meeting Date: Thursday, March 18, '.2010 Action Deferred Until:.~ ____ _ 

AGENDA CATEGORY 

~- Acknowledgments · 
__ Agreements/Contracts 
XX Applications/Petition 

Litigations 
MiscellaneoLis 
Ordinances 

a.) 

b.) 

Appointments 
Communicatio.ns/Correspondence 
Consent Agenda 

Suggested Wording: 

Public Hearings 
Public Improvements 
Real Estate 

Report from the Emergency Financlal Manager relevant to a re:guest from: A &S 

KAJYENTERPRISE, INC., request to transfer ownership of iln escrowed 2009 SDM license from 

JOSLYN ENTERPRISES, INC., located at 1124 Joslyn, Pontiac, MI 48340, ,Oakland County. 

Consideration of a Resolution to make a recommendation of approval/disapproval 

to the State of Michigan, Liquor Control Commission, 

;,upporting Documents Required: 

...1L Report/Transmittal Letter 

Map/ Chart/Graph 

__ . _ Contract ~greement 

__ EO/MCRO Approval 

Other ...1L Resolution/Prodam:ation 

.Department., Contact Person, & Phone: DPW&U Dept., D. E. Lavalais, 758-3305 

Date Received: ________________ _ 



·city of Pontiac, Michigai1 · 
. Official Memorandum 

Office of Building & Safety Engineeririg~Licensing ·. 
. . . . . . ' , . . . 

E:x~cut:ive Office.· 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

-Pontiac City Council 

Fred Leeb, . 
Emergency Financial Manager 

February.16, 201Q · ·; 

RE: 1124 Joslyn Pontiac, MI 48340, Qaktand County, 
Alaa Kajy, Applicant · 

Attached is a Resolution for: A &S KAJY ENTERPRISE, INC., request to 
transfer ownership of an escrowed 2009 SOM license from JOSl YN 
ENTERPRISES, INC., loca_ted at 1124 Joslyn, Pontiac, MI 48340, Oakland 
County. 

All applicable investigations have been completed,. and the applicant has 
been investigated and the investigating officer .finds no criminal history for 
the said applicants. · · 

The applicant has met ·all criteria and subject material has been submitted 
for Pontiac City· Coun.cil review and a recommendation to the State of 
Michigan . Liquor Control Commission for apprbval/d1sapprov.al of sald 

. . . 

transfer, 

FL/de! 



Application for Special Exception 

Permit 
City of Pontiac 

Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning 
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

T: 248.758,2800 F: 248,758.2827 

Property/Project Address; A & s Kajy Enterprise, Inc. Oflice Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 64-14-16-402-030 PF Number: Ft-03 

Date: 0i/29/2019 

Instructions: Completed application with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least ;rn days prior to the scheduled Planning Commission Meeting: Application m,1st complete in all respects 
with supporting documents such as site plllII, property survey, detailed description of the proposed use, etc. [ncompletc 
applications will delay the. review process. 

Aggllcant (~lease 12rlnt or !:Y2e) 

Name A & S Kajy Enterprise, Inc., c/o Alaa Kajy 

Address i 124 Joslyn Ave. 

City Pontiac 
. -·-- --------··· . 

State Michigan 
-------·---·-·--···-·- -------~------- ···- -----

ZIP Code 48340 
-

/ Telephone Main: 2 48-335-63 i 7 / Cell:586·219-0838 I fax; 
I 

E+1all a!kajy@aol.com 

Project and Prooertv Information 

Name of Proposed Development: Joslyn Beverage 

The subjep} r,r~f;s1~ is location at 1 i 24 
bet\:veen __.olu ! Ave. an~erly Ave. 

on the N / S / E / W side of Joslyn 

The property is zoned: C-i 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: SOD & SDM licensed establishment 

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

64-14- i 6-402-030 

aumw . ' fl:>31l>ffRi'-C.W i.t !B " :m:irwt~l'i;,l;iCf§mi' 
; ~-· CB¥1SSi'-



' 

ProQertv Owner Inforroatjon 
.. 

Name A & B Joslyn, LLG c/o Alaa Kajy 

Address 1124 Joslyn Ave. 

City Pontiac 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48340 

Telephone Main: 248-335-63i7 I Ce!l:53 6 -219-0838 I Fax: 

E-Mail alkajy@aol.com 

A.re you the X__ Owner __ Agent/rep. o f the owner ___ Other 

The proposed will be used for the following pur pose (p:ro'Vide as much detail as possible with 
ments, etc,). \hotographs; sketches, site Flans, written docu 

he subJect establishmen is currently license d as a Specially Designated Merchant ("SOM' 

1 tle,;v& Wine) retailer applying for approval to add an Specially Designated Distributor ("SOD") 

store. Applicant will not expand the footprint 
c-· 

I 

(Liquor}, No other changes to the "Use" of the 
of Ine store or property. 

Supporting materials required: 

0 Proof of ownership, purchase/lea 

0 Sfte plan, floor plan, e!evations/p 

0 Electronic copy of site plan assod 

j~/ ;y_· ,. .. 
, 

/.~ /0r2t~ = £, {, . 

Signature of Owner 

---
,Wale of Michigan 
Co,,r.Jya/Oakland 

/ 

se agreement 

hotographs 

ate planner 

/ ; 

I/ 
~J:;,flc~ 

l v;, 

Signature of Applicant 

011 this_ day of.. ___ ....., __ _, A.b., 20---~ he/on me personally appeared the ahuve r,amed person, w/za being dJ4y sworn, Slated hel,he has r,,ad 
the foregoing upp/Jcatfon, by him/her signed, and,b,aw 1/,e CDntents !h;reof, and lhat the same is JrUe ofh/sfhr,r awn knowledge, ezccpt as to tile mat.ten 
lhereitl stated to be upon i,,formatirm and belief and so as to 1/,o,e matJers he/she be//ew,s it to be !rue. 

/Vvlary J'v},/ic, Oakla,;d Cmo,iy. };J/chiga11 
My Comm/jsion fupi.rtts: ___ _ 

:i 



(1g~lui t;.d_ i 

"' 

1124 Joslyn Ave ,1-l\l!lie Buffer 
Fri Mt1rZ~7.D1il 

-••. •'.'f• •,:~wr,. 
.~ ·--- ,. 

·-.:!' ~ .L 
: .. .:,;,.~✓., 

~ ~-?u 

l1 ' "], 
,:; 

Ct:;1~t-fl'7f 

,1V'4f1~ 

L .~~-rl---·· 

~ 

.f~ ~I, . \· 

WK(tfin>ruli"f! .. 

~ .. ~;t.·, ·_., ,. J ·. 

J~·lyri M~rJfot: ··:v, .,_yj ~\ 
.:' ·,; · : _-_.,,Jc~ . -·: Tr' dem 

' ::Pf~. , J. 

,\· ,:. -··; __ . _ ~"~-: ,,,., .. -~Jff--l~1 uo~ 

. ':-..r',;.,1:;1i-::5:1 

·-fk.,'i 

' Oj ' ' ~- 3- : I ; 
t t > I ..'.:ri·· \,I), -
' fi . ; JJ' 

'' . ,.;- ' y t!J!lit1,o1rr."~1 -~'! ' ·.x "'~·-·.•· . ' ,:·~•!• 

Kings Liquo ; 

i: 
·t1 

•~-I 

~ ~ P. 

i 
~ 
"' C, 

"' 

ac __ ..:...~ 'Jt"'" 

"' "' " -e. .. ---·~--~ ,._, ~-, ·~i~t~~t~~,~:(:- f;Jitti-M"~l0<l'-Jy;~fhti.f!!.~~ 

r ~ .... ..,~ .. 
. i 
Lrtiiri'~4 
. ' l _., a,,,,,,. 

2,12s A-J25-0 

;I 
$ 

8,5,W~ 
N 

A 
1:lS 270 540-tl' 

N 

A 

.................... ,.. . . ., .... .,. -·-------------~···•·-·-···----------



UTI 



WHEREAS, 
Ordinance on 

Pontiac City Council Resolution 

the Pontiac City Council will hold a Special Meeting regarding the Community Benefits 
______________ in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 47450 

Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council schedules a Special Meeting on 
____________ in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, 
Michigan 48342. 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 42, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT", TO 
ADD ARTICLE VII, ENTITLED "COMMUNITY BENEFIT AGREEMENTS". 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Short Title; Purpose. 

(a) This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Pontiac Community Benefit 
Ordinance". 

(b) This Ordinance shall require developers of certain types of developments, herein referred 
to as "Qualified Developments", to enter into agreements, herein referred to as 
"Community Benefit Agreements", that identify potential negative aspects of 
developments and identify proportional community benefits to the City of Pontiac to rectify 
those negative aspects as a condition for development subsidies and other considerations 
by the City of Pontiac. 

Section 2. Definitions 
As used in the Chapter 42, Article VTI, the following words and phrases shall mean the following: 

(a) Community Benefit Agreement: An Agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Developer providing mutual consideration intended to rectify mutually acknowledged 
potential negative aspects associated with the proposed Qualified Development. 

(b) Developer: The person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, cooperative, or any 
other entity that is the recipient of a Development Subsidy. 

( c) Development Subsidies: Any economic incentives of value granted on a discretionary 
basis by the City of Pontiac to attract or retain a Qualified Development or jobs associated 
therewith; may include federal, state, or local economic incentives; and include but are not 
limited to economic incentives associated with, as amended: the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Commercial Development Act, Commercial Rehabilitation 
Act, Corridor Improvement Authority Act, Historical neighborhood Tax Increment 
Financing Act, Local Development Financing Act, Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial 
Development Districts Act, Principal Shopping Districts and Business Improvement 
Districts Act. Additionally, the lease or transfer of a city-owned building or property shall 
constitute a Development Subsidy. 

( d) Qualified Development: Shall be classified as either a Tier 1 or Tier 2. Tier 1 
Qualified Developments shall be those developments granted license to operate under City 

1 



Ordinance 2357. Tier 2 Qualified Developments shall be those developments being 
granted Development Subsidies by the City of Pontiac with a total economic incentive, as 
determined in the sole discretion of the City of Pontiac, of greater than $50,000.00. 

Section 3. Community Benefits 
A Community Benefit agreed upon by the Developer of the Qualified Development and the City 
of Pontiac is a benefit conferred upon the community of the City of Pontiac intended to ameliorate 
the potential negative aspects imposed upon the City of Pontiac by the Qualified Development. 
Although Community Benefits may differ based upon the Qualified Development, and this is not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the City of Pontiac recognizes amenities, benefits, or 
commitments for the following purposes as Community Benefits, by Tier of Qualified 
Development: 

Tier 1: Infrastructure, Youth Recreation, Police and Fire Services, Job Training 

Tier 2: Designated Projects, Infrastructure, Youth Recreation, Police and F~re Services, Parks 

Section 4. Community Benefits Agreement 
The Community Benefits Agreement shall be entered into between the City of Pontiac and the 
Developer of the Qualified Development. 

The Community Benefits Agreement shall set forth the Community Benefit proposed by the 
Developer of the Qualified Development and, if applicable, the interval of such Community 
Benefit. 

Community Benefit Agreements shall be timely recorded on the deed, and shall run with the land, 
on Qualified Developments for the duration of the Community Benefit Agreement. 

The term of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 1 Qualified Development shall be not less 
than the term of its License to operate under City Ordinance 2357, including any extension or 
renewal thereof. The term of a Community Benefit Agreement for a Tier 2 Qualified Development 
shall be not less that the length of the Development Subsidy, including any extension or renewal 
thereof. 

Community Benefits Agreements are not transferrable by the Developer without approval through 
a City Council Resolution. 

Section 5. Community Benefits Agreement Required for Every Qualified Development 
All Qualified Developments are subject to a Community Benefit Agreement. All Qualified 
Developments must be approved by the Mayor and City Council, and such approval may only be 

2 



subject to the execution of a valid Community Benefits Agreement with the Developer of that 
Qualified Development. 

Section 6. Exemptions 
If a Qualified Development and/or Developer believe they should be exempt from a Community 
Development Agreement, they may file an exemption request with the City Clerk. An Exemption 
requires approval of the Mayor and City Council. 

Section 7. Annual Reporting and Compliance 
A Developer shall provide a comprehensive, audited rep01i detailing compliance with obligations 
under its Community Benefit Agreement for the prior year ( or partial year) by January 1 of each 
year. The report shall include backup documentation for all donations made or funds expended 
related to the Community Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Breach of Community Benefits Agreement; Termination; Appeal 
If the City Department of Economic Development finds a Qualified Development and/or its 
Developer to be in breach of its (their) Community Development Agreement, it shall send a written 
Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement to the Qualified Development and its 
Developer by certified mail. If the Breach of Community Benefits Agreement is not cured within 
fomieen (14) days after the date the Notice of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent, 
the Mayor may terminate the Agreement. 

If the Qualified Development and/or Developer believe that the termination was made in error, it 
(they) may Appeal in writing to the City Council within thirty (30) days after the date the Notice 
of Breach of Community Benefits Agreement was sent. The City Council shall only overturn a 
decision of the Mayor if it finds the decision was arbitrary or capricious. The determination of the 
City Council may only be reviewed by the Court of competent jurisdiction within the state of 
Michigan. 

Section 9. Severability. 
This ordinance and the various parts, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or part of this ordinance shall, for ariy reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Comi of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 
effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or part thereof, directly involved in the 
controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 10. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

3 



Section 11. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation prior to its effective 
date. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. 

I hereby certify this ordinance was brought for a first reading at a meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify this ordinance was adopted at a second reading of the ordinance by the City 
Council of the City of Pontiac on the ___ day of _______ , 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Ordinance as passed by the City 
Council and was published verbatim in a publication of general circulation on the ___ day of 

-------' 2019. 

Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

4 






























































































































































































































































	20190705125433228
	20190705125534020
	20190705125820170
	20190705130227286



